IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR
THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

————————————————————————————————— X
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, :

Plaintiff,

-v.- : Crim. Case No. 78-367

JUAN MANUFL CONTRERAS SEPULVEDA,
et al.,

Defendants. :
_________________________________ %

DEFENDANTS' MOTION- FOR CHANGE OF VENUE
DUE TO THE PREJUDICF OF THE
PUBLICITY AND THE POTENTIAL JURORS

Defendants hereby move this Court for an order pursuant
to Rule 21 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure trans-
ferring this proceeding to another district for trial because
of the prejudice of the publicity and the potential jurors in
this district.

1. As the attached exhibits demonstrate, the residents
of the District of Columbia, the potential jurors in this case,
have been deluged with prejudicial publicity concerning this
case. That publicity, chiefly generated by the Government,
has discussed the crime charged in lurid and sensatioralistic
fashion, and has all but assumed the defendants' guilt. Evi-
dence, the admissibility of which has not yet even been deter-
mined, has been described to the public in detail.

2. Moreover, the news reporters and commentators, as
well as the residents of this district have treated the crimre
charped in an unusually personal way. Tt is a widespread belief
that the security of the residents of this district, and the
dignity of Washington, were particularly treatened by the assassination

by bombing of a foreign diplomat on. the streets of this city.




3. The flurry of local publicity immediately prior to
and during the issuance of the indictment and the removal
hearings in this case is indicative of the local publicity which
will attend the trial itself. That publicity has created a
circus atmosphere unabatingly hostile to all of the defendants
in this case.

This publicity, and the reaction of the local residents
to this crime establishes that the defendants will be unable
to receive in this district the fair trial by an imparitial
jury to which they are constitutionally entitled.

WHEREFORE, the defendants respectfully request that this
Court transfer this proceeding to another district for trial.

Respectfully submitted,

GOLDBERGER, FELDMAN & DUBIN
Attorneys for Defedants

401 Broadway, Suite 306

New York, New York 10013
(212) 431-9380

By: —"/?'7/44/5 % L/ - )

MICHAF OUNG 7 ///
0f Couhsel ,

STEVEN GLASSMAN

Local Counsel

Suite 410 South

1800 M. Street N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20036




IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR
THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

—————————————————————————————————— x
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiff,

-v.- ; No. 78-367

JUAN MANUEL CONTRERAS SEPULVEDA,
et al.,

Defendants. :
__________________________________ x

ORDER

This matter having come before the Court on defendants'
Motion For A Change of Venue, whereupor the Court having con-
sidered the motion, the memoranda filed in support thereof and
in opposition thereto and having further considered the argu-

ment of counsel it is by the Court this day of

1978,
ORDERED, that defense Motion For A Change of Venue be,

and the same hereby is, granted, and the proceedings herein

are transferred to the District of

JUDGE
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chael Townley in 1973.

INVESTIGATION

leean secret police agent Mi- Pmsecutor Izugene Propper:
from petty criminals to spies.

Rescue workers re‘mbve the budies of rlando Letelier and hfs aide,anr"ti' Moffitt, from the wreckaéé
of Letelier’s autemobile. Ronni’s husband, Michael, walked away with only minor injuries.

/\/ f Times Suwddy /77&@;2/1)5‘

LETELIER

The assassination of a
former Chilean Ambas-
sador to the United
States in Washington,
D.C., has resulted in a
grand jury investigation
that reveals the chilling
presence of a network of
trained terrorists at
work not only in Latin
America, but in this
country as well.

By quor Branch

EPTEMBER 2], 1978 — Eugene
M. Propper sat eating lunch in
the cafeteria at the Federal
courthouse in Washington, D.C.,
the courthouse where Judge
John Sirica presided over the
Watergate trials. Only 29, tall,

‘ slender and neatly bearded,
Propper had worked upstairs for almost five
years as an Assistant United States Attorney, but
planned to leave soon for private practice, having
tired of casework in burglaries and petty corrup-
tion.

When a superior dropped by his table and asked
him to look into the double murder of a former
Chilean Ambassador named Orlando Letelier and
his American aide that had occurred that morn-
ing, Propper agreed on a hunch that the case
might become an interesting finale to his prosecu-
torial career. He had no idea that the case would
totally preoccupy him.

With only a newspaper reader’s knowledge of
undercover operations among Cubans and Chi-
leans, gleaned from the most publicized C.1.A.
stories of recent decades, Propper was far re-

Taylor Branch is a Washington-based freelance

journalist.

September 11, 1973 — Lete.




moved from the world of Latin Ameri-
can terrorism, a world of coups d’etat,
murder and drug trafficking. It was a
world populated by a small army of
agents, some trained in the 1960's by
the United States. Fora hard-working
prosecutor like Propper, it would be a
long leap from street crime to the spy
underworlid and the heights of diploma-
cy.

The Letelier case would be interest-
ing on two levels, Propper would soon
learn. It was, of course, a dramatic in-
ternational murder case of great sig-
nificance. But beyond that, Propper
would find that the more he probed the
murder, the more he would learn about
this country’s controversial and often
shadowy involvement in Latin Ameri-
can affairs.

The murder itself is still being inves-
tigated by a Federal grand jury in
Washington, D.C., with indictments ex-
pected later this month. What the
grand jury has found so far is secret,
but sources predict that the indict-
ments will involve not only important
Cuban exile leaders but also officials
high in the Chilean Government’s se-
cret police.

Propper would learn that men like
Orlando Bosch, leader of the Cuban ter-
rorist organization, CORU; Orlando
Garcia, a top-level official in the Vene-
zuelan secret police; Ricardo Morales,
a master spy who had worked for a
number of intelligence agencies, in-
cluding the F.B.1. and the C.1.A.; Igna-
cio Novo, the leader of the U.S.-based
Bay of Pigs veterans’ organization;
along with others, like Michael Town-
ley, the American-born Chilean secret
police operative, would play major
parts in the Letelier investigation.

To many experts, the training of
these men, and others like them by the
C.1LA., was an experiment that was
bound to someday backfire. For, as
American policy toward Castro soft-
ened, a trained cadre of Cuban exile
terrorists, embittered and frustrated,
spread throughout Latin America, uiti-
mately occupying important posts in
various national police and intelligence
agencies.

Propper’s case would involve double
agents, double crosses and double
meaning, as well as a double murder. It
began the morning of September 21,
1976, as Orlando Letelier drove down
Massachusetts Avenue on his way to
work at Washington's Institute for
Policy Studies, accompanied by two
young colleagues, Ronni and Michael
Moffitt, 25-year-old newlyweds and
newcomers to capital politics. As insti-
tute researchers and aides to a promi-
nent Chilean exile like Letelier, they
had plunged quickly into the thick of
things. In 1976, Chile was much in the
news, with revelations coming out
about the C.I.A.’s persistent interven-
tions in that country leading up to a 1973
military coup against the left-wing gov-
ernment of Salvador Aliende. At the
same time, there was a growing num-
ber of reports documenting a campaign
of torture and murder by the Chilean
junta’s secret police, known as DINA.

Augusto Pinochet, leader of the Chilean military junta that ousted Allende, surrounded by .




t about the coup and
. As Allende’s Defense

‘ nearly a year in a makeshift DINA
work camp. In exile, Letelier, who had
a wide circle of influential and highly
placed friends -— including United
States Senators and European govern-
ment ministers — became friend and
mentor to the Moffitts. Traveling the
globe, he employed all his contacts and
all his talents in opposition to General
Augusto Pinochet Ugarte’s junta in
Chile. The junta, in return, stripped
Letelier of his Chilean citizenship.

But Letelier felt safe in the United
States. Entering Sheridan Circle, his
car moved past the embassies of South
Korea, Turkey and Rumania. Sudden-
ly, Michael Moffitt, sitting in the back
seat, heard a loud hissing sound that
seemed to run up the driver’s door to
the roof of the car, and he saw a flash of
light on the dashboard. The floor
erupted directly under Letelier, blow-
ing off the car door and crumpling the
roof. Careening into a Volkswagen
parked in front of the Irish Embassy,
the car settled among the scattered
glass and debris. Letelier’s legs lay in
the street nearby, his torso pinned in
the wreckage. He died shortly after
reaching the hospital. Ronni Moffitt,
while not mutilated like Letelier, died a
few minutes later, drowned in her own
blood. Michael Moffitt walked away
from the carnage with only minor
physical injuries.

1n the heart of the American capital,
in daylight, within sight of at least a
dozen foreign embassies, terrorists had
dared to carry out a major gangland-
style political execution.

From that frozen moment of terror,
there grew a mystery that investiga-
tors refused to abandon through long
months of frustration and disillusion-
ment. They would hold fiercely to the
moment, shaking it, until, finally, ques-
tions were answered and governments
began to feel the repercussions of the
investigations.

As in Watergate, the original crime
led back into a maze of official crimes
and collateral scandals whose magni-
tude would come slowly into view. But,
unlike Watergate, no Cubans were
caught red-handed and there were no
suspects.

From the beginning, Propper was
surrounded by chaos. He helped settle
chronic jurisdictional disputes among
various agencies, especially the police
and the F.B.1., and at the same time
tried to arrange some sort of. truce be-
tween F.B.l. agents and the victims’
relatives and their friends at the Insti-
tute for Policy Studies. This last was no
easy task, for the F.B.I1. and I.P.S. had
been classic political enemies for
years. No F.B.I. agent needed to be re-
minded that 1.P.S. had filed a $1 million
damage suit against the bureau for
political harassments during the Viet-
nam war. The institute, called the intel-
lectual home of the American left in
Washington, housed assorted radicals
who customarily assailed the conduct

drlando Bosch, Ricardo Morales and Ignacio Novo: Old boy

s inthe Latin American terrorist netwo

he lack of consistency in
the United States policy to-
ward Castro left a legacy
that some experts believe
finally came to include ter-
rorist acts like the murder
of Orlando Letelier, as the stories of
Orlando Bosch, Orlando Garcia and
Ricardo Morales illustrate. Trained
by the Central Intelligence Agency in
the early 1960’s, when American
policy toward Castro was very firm,
these terrorists — with the support of
American-based exile leaders like Ig-
nacio Novo — later employed the tac-
tics they had learned on behalf of
other Latin American countries after
United States policy toward Cuba
softened.

8

Orlando Bosch, recruited by the
C.1.A. in 1960, along with a number of
other anti-Castro Cubans, is now one
of the most famous terrorists in the
Western Hemisphere. Quarreling
with C.1.A. officers over his role in the
1961 Bay of Pigs invasion, he called on
Cubans to wage their own war against
Castro and became something of a
laughingstock among Miami opera-
tives who, at the time, believed their
cause was hopeless without American
support.

But by 1974, the last hopes for secret
American help had died among the
anti-Castro agents, and Bosch was in
fashion. The militant Cuban exiles not
only felt betrayed, they felt the C.1.A.
was actively undermining their ef-
forts and, according to reports, Bosch
reflected their anger by taking public
credit for inspiring a series of gang-
land slayings of ‘‘C.1.LA. stooges.”
Bosch then left the country, sources
say, to make alliances with anti-Com-
munists in Latin America — including
officials of the Chilean DINA.

In June of 1976, Bosch was chosen to
lead an umbrella group of Cuban
political factions, CORU, whose mem-
bers agreed upon a marked escalation
of violence against Castro sympathiz-
ers. Bosch returned to his base in
Venezuela and confided in two Cuban
contacts within the DISIP there — Or-
lando Garcia and Ricardo Morales.

Orlando Garcia is a pro, one of the
C.I.A.’'s best intelligence operatives
from the early 60’s, sources say. When

the Vietnam build-up caused a drastic
reduction in the huge Miami C.L.A.
station, he joined other Cubans with
C.1.A. training who fanned out among
the intelligence services of Latin
America in the mid-60's. *‘It worked
out well for everybody,’’ said a C.1.A.
official. Over the next decade, Garcia
rose to the top of the Venezuelan
DISIP, hiring younger Cubans to join
him.

One of them, Ricardo Morales, was
a member of the elite C.1.A. comman-
dos — an explosives expert, highly
praised within the agency for his
quick wits and courage. By 1964, dis-
couraged by ‘‘the Company’s” half-
hearted effort against Castro, he
agreed reluctantly to go on a highly
secret mission to the Congo (now
Zaire) on the promise that his group
could resume raids against Castro
after this ‘“big favor” for President
Lyndon Johnson.

Returning to the United States, he
was told his knowledge of the Congo
operations made him a security risk.
Morales left the agency in disgust. He
was arrested on bombing charges in
Miami in 1968, but, according to
sources, he was ‘‘prosecution proof’’
because of his C.I.A. past, and he
went free as an F.B.I. informant. His
testimony convicted Orlando Bosch
that year.

Marked as an informant, Morales
survived two assassination attempts
over the next six years. In 1974, a
bomb demolished his car in Miami,
but Morales emerged from the wreck-
age and was soon joking with report-
ers at the scene. Such panache was
part of his legend. Having worked for
Castro’'s secret police, the C.I.A,,
F.B.1. and reportedly for a number of
other foreign intelligence agencies,
Morales achieved fame as a master
spy who manipulated his numerous
involvements, playing off one of his
agencies against another. 1n 1975, Mo-
rales left Miami to work for the Vene-
zuelan DISIP, working with Orlando
Garcia and meeting his old enemy,
Orlando Bosch. Conventional labels of
‘*cop’’ and ‘bad guy’’ are hopelessly
outmoded in the world where these
three operate.
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the intelligence services of Latin
America in the mid-60’s. ‘It worked
out well for everybody,” said a C.1.A,
official. Over the next decade, Garcia
rose to the top of the Venezuelan
DISIP, hiring younger Cubans to join
him.

One of them, Ricardo Morales, was
a member of the elite C.1.A. comman-
dos — an explosives expert, highly
praised within the agency for his
quick wits and courage. By 1964, dis-
couraged by ‘‘the Company's” half-
hearted effort against Castro, he
agreed reluctantly to go on a highly
secret mission to the Congo (now
Zaire) on the promise that his group
could resume raids against Castro
after this “‘big favor’’ for President
Lyndon Johnson.

Returning to the United States, he
was told his knowledge of the Congo
operations made him a security risk.
Morales left the agency in disgust. He
was arrested on bombing charges in
Miami in 1968, but, according to
sources, he was *‘prosecution proof”’
because of his C.I.A. past, and he
went free as an F.B.1. informant. His
testimony convicted Orlando Bosch
that year.

Marked as an informant, Morales
survived two assassination attempts
over the next six years. In 1974, a
bomb demolished his car in Miami,
but Morales emerged from the wreck-
age and was soon joking with report-
ers at the scene. Such panache was
part of his legend. Having worked for
Castro's secret police, the C.1.A,,
F.B.1. and reportedly for a number of
other foreign intelligence agencies,
Morales achieved fame as a master
spy who manipulated his numerous
involvements, playing off one of his
agencies against another. In 1975, Mo-
rales left Miami to work for the Vene-
zuelan DISIP, working with Orlando
Garcia and meeting his old enemy,
Orlando Bosch. Conventional labels of
“cop’ and ‘bad guy'’ are hopelessly
outmoded in the world where these
three operate.
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The April 1974 assassination of the

first ““C.1.A. stooge’’ touched off a
spree in which assassins attacked no
less than nine prominent Miami
Cubans in the next two years, Killing
six. In addition, law enforcement offi-
cials reported 200 major bombings.
The same methods, materials and
agents of terrorism showed up in
bombings all over the hemisphere.
‘“There’s only one part of the United
States now that’s literally exporting
terrorism,”” said a Justice Depart-
ment source, ‘‘and that’s south Flori-
da.”

Prosecutors labored under a disad-
vantage that is a legacy of all the clan-
destine operations in Miami from the
1960’s: The suspects are trained and
connected.

During the gangland outburst, em-
bittered leaders of the 2506 Brigade (a
creature of the C.1.A. since its forma-
tion before the Bay of Pigs) sued the
Kennedy Library for the return of
their flag. Almost simultaneously,
they bestowed the brigade’s first
‘‘Freedom Award’ on Chile's Presi-
dent Pinochet. Representatives of the
junta began to appear regularly at
brigade rallies.

Radical new leadership took over
the brigade in its 1976 elections, call-
ing for anti-Castro terrorism. One of
the official new ‘‘military leaders’
was Ignacio Novo, now charged with
conspiracy to murder Orjando Letel-
ier. He is not a Bay of Pigs veteran or
a C.L.A. trainee or even an exile from
the Castro regime — having left Cuba
in 1954 along with his brother Guiller-
mo. Their New Jersey-based political
group was nationalist to the point of
fascism, and the Novo brothers had a
wild and rather disreputable image
among most Cuban exiles through the
1960's, according to a number of
exiles. Like Orlando Bosch, they be-
came prominent only as the more es-
tablished exile leaders moved toward
terrorism.

At Ignacio Novo's first congress of
the Bay of Pigs Veterans Association
— attended by a complement of
United States Congressmen and can-
didates — delegates voted to endorse
the brigade’'s membership in CORU,
Orlando Bosch’s new terrorist consor-
tium,

Letelier was killed less than a
month later. —T.B.
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standard, they were person-
ally incompatible with F.B.I.
agents such as L. Carter Cor-
nick, a conservative Virginian
who joked that his family had
boycotted the Washington
newspapers ever since they
started running pictures of
“pinkos'’ like Eleanor Roose-
velt back in the 1930’s.

Propper and Cornick some-
how managed to win the per-
sonal confidence of the
scholars at [.P.S., but the
I.P.S. people made no secret of
their mistrust of the F.B.1. and
the Government as a whole.
No sooner did Propper and
Comnick have the I.P.S. people
convinced that they would fol-
low the case anywhere than
I.P.S. came back again, in-
censed over press reports that
contradicted these assur-
ances; Newsweek published
an item stating that “‘The
C.LLA. has concluded that the
Chilean secret police were not
involved in the death of Or-
lando Letelier....”’ Propper,
somewhat exasperated, could
only repeat that the investiga-
tion was just beginning.

THE VENEZVELAN
CONNECTION

OCTOBER 1976 — The investi-
gation quickly received a
heavy dose of intrigue when its
focus shifted to Venezuela, of
all places. On Oct. 6, less than
three weeks after the Letelier-
Moffitt murders, a bomb ex-
ploded inside a Cubana Air-
lines jet en route from Barba-
dos to Cuba, killing all 73 peo-
ple on board. Fidel Castro,
blaming the C.I.A., promptly
canceled the 1973 anti-hijack-
ing treaty with the United
States. Shortly afterward,
Venezuelan authorities ar-
rested more than 20 people, al-
mast all Cubans, who they said
were involved in a terrorist
network responsible for bomb-
ings in several countries. The
Venezuelans charged a num-
ber of them, including a Cuban
terrorist named Orlando
Bosch, with conspiring to blow
up the Cuban plane.

This became more than a
gruesome news item to Prop-
per when F.B.I. agents re-
ported that Bosch had told the
Venezuelan secret police that
two New Jersey-based Cuban-
American brothers named
Guillermo and Ignacio Novo
Sampol had been involved in
killing Letelier. But who were
the Novo brothers? The F.B.I.
received information from

Bosch through two Cuban
exiles high up in DISIP, the
Venezuelan secret police, who
also said the Chilean junta had
been putting out murder con-
tracts on Chilean exiles like
Letelier.

While Propper’s investiga-
tion moved hesitantly forward
in Venezuela, it abruptly ran
into a strange roadblock. Sur-
prisingly, the Venezuelans re-
fused to supply further infor-
mation. Finally, Propper re-
sorted to an official means of
international inquiry known as
Letters Rogatory, in which a
court of one nation asks a
court of another nation to seek
out information useful to a
pending case. Propper sent the
Letters, which he had obtained
from the First District Court
in Washington, D.C., to Cara-
cas secretly, to avoid diplo-
matic repercussions, but the
Venezuelan courts declined to
cooperate with the Letters,
and the Venezuelan Govemn-
ment innocently maintained
that it has no authority over
the courts.

Struggling to learn why he
was getting so little coopera-
tion, Propper and his col-
leagues discovered that the
Venezuelan Government ap-
peared to work both with and
against the terrorists. They
also learned why Bosch and
two DISIP Cubans — Orlando
Garcia and Ricardo Morales
— came together in that coun-
try, and how they were linked
in one way or another to many
people who might know about
terrorist acts like the Letelier
murder. According to sources,
the three Cubans all had dif-
ferent kinds of C.I.A. careers;
when Propper found them rid-
ing the razor's edge of terror-
isin in Venezuela, they were
still ““in the business’’ of espio-
nage and intelligence. [See
box, Page 23. j

OCTOBER 1976 — After Prop-
per's Cuban sources impli-
cated Guillermo and Ignacio
Novo in the murders, Propper
subpoenaed the Novo brothers
before a Federal grand jury in
Washington, D.C., at the end
of October. The testimony
produced no important evi-
dence, sources say, but it did
contain statements that be-
came the basis for a charge of
perjury relating to the mur-
ders.

At the same time, Propper
stepped up his efforts to secure
some cooperation from the
C.L.A., since the crime ap-
peared to be of international
origin and since the witnesses
and suspects appeared to have
C.L.A. backgrounds. A Justice
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t delegation met

agency’'s Director,
rge Bush, and its general
counsel, Anthony Lapham, to
seek a working arrangement.
Sources said the participants
“got around” legal restric-
tions on the C.1.A.’s involve-
ment in criminal investiga-
tions through a high-level ex-
change of letters, initiated by
the Attorney General, which
stipulated that the agency
would only provide informa-
tion, not direct evidence. The
parties recognized explicitly
that if the Attorney General
and the C.1.A. Director should
disagree on whether a witness
or a piece of evidence could be
presented in open court, they
would refer the dispute di-
rectly to the President.

Under these agreements, the
C.1.A. began turning over to
Justice Department officials
background information on
Cuban exile political groups
and on foreign organizations
such as the Venezuelan DISIP
and the Chilean DINA. No
source would say, however,

through the forest to get a
tree.”

At the end, a small number
of visa applicants attracted
suspicion for one reason or
another. Among them were
two Chilean army officers
named Juan Williams Rose
and Alejandro Romeral Jara.
When the suspect names were
circulated among other gov-
ernmental, police and intelli-
gence* agencies for signs of
recognition, a report from an
alert Ambassador in Para-
guay about Williams and
Romeral popped up from the
records of the State Depart-
ment. These records brought
the first excitement to the in-
vestigation, the flrst moment
when suspicions and clues
came together in a promising
way, and they documented the
first of many episodes that
would make United States Am-
bassador to Paraguay George
Landau a hero to the investiga-
tors.

i FLASHBACK:
that the agency ever provided
a major new clue. THE ALIRT
AMBASSADOR
PROPPER’S FIRST
BREAKTHROUGH JuLY 1976 (two months be-

NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1976
Propper felt confident
enough in the Venezuelan
leads and in other evidence to
intensify his investigation of
the Chilean DINA. At a time
when Propper and the F.B.I.
refused publicly even to list
DINA as a possible suspect in
the case (to the dismay of
Letelier’'s  colleagues at
L.P.S.). they committed
enough F.B.I. manpower to
sift through the visa applica-
tions of every singie Chilean
who entered the United States
between May and September
of 1976. It was laborious, un-
glamorous work, stretching
out through the early months
of 1977. One member of the
search team put the number of
visas in the initial batch at
more than a thousand.
Operating on the theory that
any Chilean conspirators
“‘would not be dumb enough to
travel on an official passport,”
as one F.B.I. source puts it,
the agents started out looking
for the people who had applied
for non-official visas. By
hunches and guesswork, they
threw out the most unlikely
ones first — the large families
on vacation in California, and
so on. ““We went through them
all,” said a source invoived in
the search later. **We went all

fore the Letelier-Moffitt mur-
ders) — Ambassador George
Landau received a phone call
at his embassy office in Asunc-
fon, Paraguay, from a high of-
ficial of the Paraguayan Gov-
ermmment, who Inexplicably
wanted to assure the Ambas-
sador that the two Chileans
who had just been granted offi-
cial U.S. visas in Paraguay
were 0.K. The caller said the
Paraguayans would vouch for
them even though the Chileans
were not — as diplomatic cus-
tom requires — attached to the
Chilean Embassy in Para-
guay. After puzzling over the
call, Landau made calls of his
own to check on the story.
Whatever he learned, it did
not remove his suspicions. On
the contrary, he called the
Paraguayan official back that
same day and notified him for-
mally that the two Chileans’
visas had been revoked. He
then forwarded the visa photo-
graphs of Williams and
Romeral to the State Depart-
ment in Washington, along
with a cable setting forth the
details of the story. Such re-
ports (especially from a
known smuggling  center like
Paraguay) are fed into the
Government’s ‘‘Watch List”
to alert security agencies. But
for some reason Landau’s
cable and the photographs sat
unnoticed in the bureaucracy
until six months after the as-
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~cions. They arrived

., but sources believed it

would have been almost im-

possible to break the case
without them.

MARCH 1977 — Propper and

his investigators possessed not
only Williams® and Romeral’s
visas, but also visa applica-
tions — two sets of suspicious
records. If, as investigators
believed, these men arranged
the Letelier assassination for
the DINA, investigators be-
lieved, they committed many
blunders. By seeking official
visas in Paraguay, they not
only drew attention to them-
selves but they had also sub-
mitted photographs. Then, in-
credibly, they apparently re-
turned to Chile after their
covers had been blown and
applied for U.S. visas in Chile
— official ones, requiring no
photographs but supported by
a letter from the Chilean For-
eign Ministry. Thus, they left a
paper trail that included not
only revoked visas and photo-
graphs, but also a letter tying
them to the top levels of the

Chilean Government.

Still, the paper trail very
nearly went undiscovered, and
investigators believed that the
mistakes might well have been
consistent with other errors in
the murder — including the
death of an innocent Ameri-
can, for example. Agents of
the Chilean secret police
might well have made such
mistakes. *“The DINA,” noted
a C.1.A. official who served in
Chile, “is not a sophisticated
service. It was only created in
1973, to defend the coup, so it's
new. It took us about 15 years
to get our own State Depart-
ment to issue false official
passports for our agency, so
you can imagine how much
trouble the Chileans might
have.”’

FAILURE IN
THE GRAND JURY

the spring and sum-
mer of 1977, Propper called
more than 20 Cuban witnesses
before the Letelier grand jury,
some of them several times.
He used all the legal leverage
he had to secure testimony to
support the Venezuelan leads
and informants’ reports. He

had one Cuban suspect (later
sought as a fugitive in the
Letelier murder) jailed for
refusing to testify under a
grant of immunity. He told the
president of Miami’s Bay of
Pigs Veterans Association
(Brigade 2506) that he was a
direct suspect in the case, and
he threatened to have Hector
Duran, a Chilean consul in
Miami, declared persona non
grata if he were not more
forthcoming. Despite all this,
and much more, the Cuban
witnesses wouldn’t talk. One
F.B.1. source said that not a
single witness recognized the
photographs of Williams and
Romeral. “This case was not
made in the grand jury,”
sighed a prosecution source.
As in Venezuela earlier,
Propper had accumulated a
batch of tantalizing intelli-
gence reports and then ran
into a stone wall. The lack of
hard evidence was especially
frustrating, because the in-
formants and the testimony
showed how the same harsh
currents that brought Orlando
Bosch together with the DISIP
agents in Venezuela had also
brought Cuban exiles together
with DINA agents in Miami in
an atmosphere of violence.
The same condition that per-

petuated Miami’s violence —
too many informants, too few
witnesses — kept hard evi-
dence in the Letelier case out
of reach.

SEPTEMBER 1977 — One long
year after the murders on
Sheridan Circle, President
Pinochet arrived in Washing-
ton to attend the signing cere-
monies for the Panama Canal
treaties. At the same time,
Propper and Cornick, stymied
after months of work on the
American side of the murder
conspiracy, had been forced to
look outside the Unted States
for new leads. They managed
to have discreet interviews
with Orlando Garcia and Ri-
cardo Morales of the Venezue-
lan DISIP, and they also inter-
viewed a young Cuban named
Rolando Otero who had spent
several months of 1976 in
Chile, conferring with DINA
officials who wanted him to
kill the junta’s enemies
abroad. The United States
Government had twice
stopped Otero’s efforts to tes-
tify about his DINA contacts,

but Propper was determined
to hear what Otero knew. He
wanted information about Wil-
liams and Romeral, and about
the names of DINA officers
who planned foreign murders.
If the conspiracy could not be
traced from America to Chile,
Propper would have to reverse
direction and, using diplo-
matic leverage, go straight
after the DINA in its own land.
It was an extraordinary move,
based on the ironic notion that
it . would be more fruitful to
pursue an American murder
case in a foreign country.
Through the fall and winter
of 1977, Cornick and his F.B.1.
colleagues used routine Inter-
pol channels in Chile to seek
Williams and Romeral, as
though they were suspects in a
normal criminal case. The
Chilean military dragged on
cooperating with Interpol’s ef-
forts to locate the two men.
Finally, one Chilean general
broke the investigator's pa-
tience by leaving on a five-
and-a-half week vacation.
After long deliberations with
Justice Department superiors,
Propper decided to send Let-
ters Rogatory to the Chilean
Supreme Court. Unlike the
Letters to Venezuela a year
(Continued on Page 39)
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.~ these would be pub-
.~ announced and transmit-

_«ed to the Chilean junta along
-~ with a high-level message

from the State Department to
underscore their importance.
Attorney General Griffin Bell
and Secretary of State Cyrus
Vance approved the substance
of the plan.

FEBRUARY 1978 — Deputy
Secretary of State Warren
Christopher summoned Chi-
lean Ambassador Jorge Cauas
to his office. Christopher
handed him a draft letter
covering the Letters Rogato-
ry, explained their purpose
briefly, and then delivered the
message that had been pre-
pared in advance: ‘It is of the
utmost importance that the
Chilean Government recog-

‘nize the gravity of the situa-

tion and the possible implica-
tions for the future of our rela-
tions.”” The meeting was over
within 20 minutes.

In Chile, the branches of the
armed forces declared one by
one that they had never heard
of any “Williams’’ or ‘*“‘Romer-
al.” For 10 days, American of-
ficials in Santiago stressed the
importance of the two sus-
pects, while the Chileans
shrugged their shoulders.

MARCH 1978 — Once again,
Propper and his colleagues
found themselves in danger of
being shrugged off indefinite-
ly. Sources later said they did
not have any idea of the real
identities of Williams or
Romeral. Nor could they re-
veal what intelligence infor-
mation they had received from
the Venezuelan sources with-
out showing how little they had
connecting the two suspects to
activities in the United States.
So, it appears, they decided
that one gamble required
another.

All sources in the Justice
and State Departments and
the F.B.1. denied giving the
“Williams” and ‘‘Romeral”’
photographs to Washington
Star  reporter Jeremiah
O’Leary, but his story on
March 3, across that newspa-
per’'s entire front page, ap-
peared to be the result of a
{eak at the highest levels. The
story said that ‘‘the United
States is prepared to sever dip-
lomatic relations with Chile”
if the two men in the photo-
graphs were not produced to
comply with the Letters Roga-
tory. Newspapers all over the
world, including those in Chile,
reprinted the photographs that
had been squeezed up through
the United States security sys-
tem as a result of Ambassador
George Landau’s suspicions
back in Paraguay.

Since that time, Ambassa-
dor Landau had been trans-

ferred to Chile, a development
that Propper’s colleagues took
as a good omen in view of the
Ambassador’s previous ac-
tions in Paraguay.

Publication of the photo-
graphs lit the Letelier case
like a fuse. Two days after the
O'’Leary story, the largest
newspaper in Santiago, El
Mercurio, identified “Wil-
liams’’ as Michael V. Townley,
a 35-year-old American who
had lived most of the last 20
years in Chile. El Mercurio
had consistently advanced the
thesis that Letelier had been
murdered by his own socialist
friends in a double-jointed plot
to create a leftist martyr. Its
identification of Townley was
astunning event in a Chile that
had lived under strict censor-
ship for more than four years.

The news breaks in the
Letelier case had become too
delicious to be suppressed.
Teams of Chilean reporters
besieged junta spokesmen for
delails of Townley’s life and
wrote profile after profile on
his politics and upbringing. On
March 9, El Mercurio identi-
fied ““Romeral’’ as Capt. Ar-
mando Fernandez Larios of
the Chilean Army, and profiles
were written about him, too.
On March 10, President Pino-
chet broke his silence on the
case by declaring his Govern-
ment’s innocence and attack-
ing the U.S. investigation. ‘I
have the impression,”’ he
stated, *‘that this is a very
well-mounted campaign like
all the campaigns that the
Communists mount to dis-
credit the Government."’

By this time, the Chilean
press was discussing the un-
timely death of Protocol Chief
Carlos Guillermo Osorio, the
man who had signed the sup-
porting letters for the visa ap-
plications of *“‘Williams" and
‘“Romeral.’”’ The death certifi-
cate stated that he had died of
a “heart attack’’ the previous
October. However, the papers
learned that Osorio’s relatives
had secured an autopsy in
November, during which doc-
tors found that Osorio had died
of a gunshot wound in his fore-
head.

Having appointed three
separate panels to investigate
the circumstances of the *‘Wil-
liamis*’ passports, the junta’s
machinery insisted long after
the press identifications that
the identities of the two men
were still in auestion. Mean-
while, the name ‘‘Michael
Townley” circulated quickly
among law-enforcement agen-
cies in the United States. In-
vestigative sources said they
were startled to learn that
their suspect was an American
— and were even more sur-
prised at the news that he had
lived in the Miami area in 1967-
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1971 and 1873-1974. Agents
rushed out to interview
friends, relatives, co-workers,
family doctors, landlords and
anyone else they could find. In-
ternational travel records
were combed for Townley's
name, and helpful signs
popped up here and
there.“Townley’s name got
hot very fast,”” said an investi-

gator.

On March 19, Propper him-
self flew to Chile to help move
things along. Two days later,
Chile’s newspapers reported
more stunning news: General
Manuel Contreras Sepulveda,
who had ruled the DINA with
an iron hand as President
Pinochet’s chosen man, had
suddenly and mysteriously re-
signed from the Army. Con-
treras had wielded such im-
mense power that his depar-
ture stimulated gossip in Chile
that he must have been in-
volved in the Letelier affair.
Diplomatic sources, picking
up on the Watergate analogy
that had become popular in
Chile, remarked that Pinochet
seemed to be ‘‘sacrificing his
Haldeman.”

Over the next two weeks,
news about Michael Townley
sent shock waves all through
Pinochet’s Government. Since
he had worked for the DINA,
some Chilean Army officers
were Ssaid to be blaming
General Contreras for fouling
the honor of the Chilean Army
with ugly Matfia tactics, while
other officers were said to be
equally disgusted with Presi-
dent Pinochet for allowing for-
eigners to push around the
sovereign nation of Chile.
There were many signs that
factions within the junta were
jockeying for position in case
of a coup. Two diplomatic
sources said that the Ameri-
can Embassy in Chile had re-
ceived warnings that Con-
treras and his former DINA
colleagues might try to have
Townley killed. Factions
within the Chilean Govern-
ment maneuvered to protect
him,

The American position to-
ward the Chilean Government
boiled down to one sentence:
‘“We want Townley.”” In one
especially stormy session with
the Chilean Foreign Minister,
sources say, Ambassador Lan-
dau declared that if Townley
were not produced, Propper
would have to go back to
Washington and report a lack
of cooperation. In that case,
the Ambassador added, he ex-
pected the Carter Administra-

tion to brean

Chile. And if for .

United States deci.

sever relations unde:
circumstances, the Amba.
dor continued, he himseu
would resign.

The drama in this meeting
was matched by a continuing
excitement in the press and in
the streets of Chile. F.B.L
agents L. Carter Cornick and
Robert Scherrer scurried
around Santiago looking for in-
formation about Townley, and
Chilean citizens, recognizing
them from photographs in the
newspapers, approached them
just to shake hands. Eugene
Propper was even more of a
public figure in the streets of
Santiago. His red beard stood
out like a matador’s cape. On
several occasions, throngs of
Chileans surrounded Prop-
per’s embassy car, wanting to
say hello to the ‘‘Fiscal”
(prosecutor).

APRIL [978 — L. Carter Cor-
nick and Robert Scherrer were
eating breakfast the moring
of April 8 when an urgent call
from the American Embassy
reached them with orders to
go directly to the Santiago air-
port. They were not to pack,
not to check out — just go.
Now. Within minutes of their
arrival at the airport, an un-
marked car pulled up, and offi-
cers of the Chilean secret po-
lice emerged with Michael
Townley — in DINA hand-
cuffs.

The prosecutors worried
that all the people Townley
might implicate in the crime
would be taking precautions.
Propper threw himself into the
effort to “‘turn’’ Townley into a
Government witness, conduct-
ing intensive negotiations with
him and his lawyer, former
Watergate prosecutor Sey-
mour Glanzer. When Townley
agreed to plead guilty to a
charge of conspiring to mur-
der Letelier, investigators
took his testimony in a rush —
checking his leads, following
his clues to other suspects. The
case was breaking.

MAY-JUNE 1978 — Propper
simultaneously prepared wit-
nesses for the first trial, and
traveled back to Chile in
search of more suspects on the
basis of Townley's evidence,
this time higher up the DINA
line toward General Con-
treras. Negotiations over such
important Chilean officials
grew so tense in June that Am-
bassador Landau was recalled
to the United States for consul-
tations.

In the State Department, of-
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ficials prepared for possible
negotiations with the Pinochet
junta. The question was
whether the United States
would be satisfied if the Chi-
leans were to try certain sus-
pects (including DINA offi-
cials) in Chile instead of turn-
ing them over to United States
authorities. In Miami, Justice
Department sources grumbled
that terrorism in Florida con-
tinved without anything like
the Federal commitment to
stop it that had pushed the
Letelier case forward. Those
sources also said that only the
“least connected’”’ Cubans
would be indicted in the Letel-
ier murder, excluding any
Miami operatives.

In Washington, the victims’
relatives and their colleagues
at the Institute for Policy
Studies continued to press for
the case to be followed to the
top of the Pinochet regime,
where, they always insisted,
the conspiracy began. From
the outset, however, the I.P.S.
people had expressed their
trust in the efforts and integ-
rity of Propper and Cornick,
and this odd bond between the
cops and the institute took on
more meaning in the wake of
Townley’s confession, and his
subsequent testimony before
the grand jury.

0O

Like the cracks and reforms
in the Pinochet regime, these
developments have all come
about before a single indict-
ment has been issued in the
Letelier case, in a period when
judges have sealed all charges
filed thus far. When the first
indictment is handed down
sometime this summer, it will
open the doors to the case the
prosecution intends to prove in
court — spelling out, in the
manner of conspiracy indict.
ments, the meetings and
movements and transactions
and other “overt acts” that
took the murder conspiracy
from beginning to end. It will,
according to sources, trace the

. Locossination plot from its
roots in Chite s - dinited |

States, detailing how the con-
spirators recruited assistance
and assembled the explosives,
the detonator, and other neces-
sary equipment. Only frag-
ments of such details have
reached the public. The sinis-
ter drama will begin to unfold
as the case moves toward the
courtroom, when the wit.
nesses and defendants emerge
publicly to tell their tales.
Journalists and prosecutors
will pick apart the histories of
the participants in an effort to
explain how a crime like this
one could have happened and
how, against all odds, some
justice could be done. B
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‘THE LET EL/I ER/MOFFITT MURDER

G§AUL LARDAU and RALPH STAVYIKS

Six months have passed since Orlando Letelier and
Ronni Moffitt were murdered on Embassy Row in Wash-
ington. No arrests or indictments have occurred. From
our own investigation, published reports and Justice De-
pariment sources the names of several of the suspected
assassins are known. From independent evidence that we
have gathered, thc suspects’ motives and key details of
the crime have emerged. The FBI and Justice Depan-
ment findings concur in crucial detail with the con-
clusions drawn from our inquiry.

The actual plot for the murder began during a debate
within the Chilean junta in June 1976. Letelier had re-
ceived a letter from a reliable source which described
this discussion. The question arose whether or not to

“assassinate Letelier, whom all members of the ruling

council judged a danger to the regime. Gen. Augusto
Pinochet made special reference to Letelier's public at-
tempts 1o isolate and denigrate the ruling junta-—his part
in blocking a $63-million Dutch investment, his testi-
mony before the United Nations and other world bodies
zbout torture in Chile, his relationships with members
of Congress and State Decepartment officials (Letelier
iunched from time to time with William Rogers, As-
sistant Sccretary of State for Latin American Affairs,
and had close contact with outspoken lcgislative critics
of the junta, Senators Kennedy, McGovern, Abourezk
and Humphrey, and Congressmen Fraser, Miller, Moffett
and Harkin); his influence at international banking and
lending agencies (Letelier was an economist and a for-
mer high official of the Inter-American Development
Bank). Letelier stood for the Chilean law and constitu-
tion, for human rights and reason—in a word, legiti-
macy, underlined by his presence in Washington. All the
junta had to rule with was terror.

The “moderates™ around the Santiago decision-making
table argued that, while Letelier constituted a clear and
present danger, his assassination at that time would not
augur well for future relations with Washington. The
“hards™ said, “kill him; the United States is soft on
communism anyway.” They no longer felt concerned
-over possible U.S. reaction to assassinations. They al-
rcady felt betrayed. .

The moderates ‘prevailed. Instcad of assassination a
compromise was agrced upon: Letclier was stripped of
his Chilean nationality by a junta decree. This decision,
reached in June, was not published in the official
Gazerte until September 10, 1976.

Scveral clements entered into the junta debate. The
most important factor was that, contrary to the public
impression, U.S.-Chilean relations had suffered a steady
dccline over the previous ycar. Because of flagrant and
well-documented violations of human rights, the U.S.
Congress began to reduce the large benefits it had been
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granting to the junta since the overthrow of Allende.

Congress stopped all military aid, sharply cut back
economic aid, and inscrted human rights provisions into
aid Jegislation. From a 1975 peak of $273 million, U.S.
aid was halved in fiscal 1976 and halved again for fiscal
1977. Three members of Congress and their stafls traveled
to Chile and, upon their return home, gave eyewilness
accounts of the horrors of daily life under the military
dictatorship. In addition to such open condemration of
the regime by Congressional leaders, the Ford adminis-

—

tration voted in early 1976 to denounce Chile at the -

United Nations for its systematic viclatica of human
rights, and the State Department through the U.S. Em-
bassy in Santiago delivered signals of diplomatic dis-
approval, .
The sum of these gestures did not indicate an im-
pending break in relations; indeed, onc could intcrpret
thcm as messages 10 mend one’s brutal ways. But the
junta responded with pucrile rebelliousness. Its Jeaders,
rcalizing that Congress was determined to cut their 2id
significantly, boasted that they didn’t want it anyway.
Chile's cconomic minister announced that Chile needed
no more foreign Joans, since the Chilcan economy was
alicady glutted with foreign credit. ’

Soul Landau and Ralph Stavins were co-workers with Oricndo
Letelicr and Ronni Moffitt at the Institute for Policy Studics
in Washington, D.C. Landau, a film dircctor (Fidel), is acting
dircctor of the Transnational Insiitute, 1PS's intcrnctional pro-
gram. Stavins directs IPS's project on official illcgaliry.
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. The Chilean press increased its attacks upen libera!

U.S. legislators. Senator Kennedy was branded a Com-
munist lcader and cartoons in the junta-controlled
Santiago datlies portrayed other powerful Senators con-
spiring against the junta, with Mrs. Hortensia Allende,
the slain President’s widow, goading them on.

Pablo Rodrigucz, leader of the ultra-Right Patria y
Libertad movement, asked on Chilcan TV, “Why has
Chile become an electoral banner used in the U.S. to
win votes? I belicve it is because to a great cxtent inter-
national communism has been attracting those nations
where eventually there might be a conflict.” Détente,
according to officials in Chile, had proved that the
United States could no longer be trusted. (Shortly after
the murders, former Chilean Ambassador Manucl Trucco,
responding to Presidential candidate Carter’s attack on the
junta and U.S. involvement in the coup, wrote Carter
warning that his advisers were Marxist dupes.)

Letclier’s published writings continued to throw doubt
oa the junta's cconomic and political legitimacy. In the
August 28, 1976, issue of the The Nation, he published
an article, “Chile: Economic ‘Freedom’s’ Awful Toll,"
which connected the campaign of state terror to the junta-
Milton Friedman economic modcl. Despite the ubiquitous
terror, Letelier concluded, the generals showed no capacity
to mold a viable economy, and future investment in Chile
was foolhardy. |

On September 10, 1976. Letelier learned of the decree
stripping him of his nationality. At a scheduled speech
at Madison Square Garden, New York, he gave his
reply: “I was born a Chilean, I am'a Chilean and I will
dic a Chilean. They, the Fuscists, were born traitors,
live as traitors, and will be remembered forever as Fascist
traitors.” The overflow crowd roared its approval. DINA
agents attended the rally and reported to Santiago.

We beliecve that General Pinochet and his DINA chief,
Manuel Contreras, called a special meeting to discuss
these, for them, unfavorable recent events. This time the
moderates lost. Pinochet ordercd DINA to “hit” on
Embassy Row in Washington, D.C. as Pinochct's “sym-
bolic” response both to Letelier’s resistance and to the
United States’ “betrayal” of its promised support.

From several sources jnside the U.S. Government,
we have learned that a high-level DINA official was
instructed to conspire with Cuban exiles in the United
States for the actual killing. The DINA-exile connection,
by then many months old, had come about as naturally
as a marriage betwcen Mafia familics. Shortly after the
1973 coup, Col. Eduardo Scpulveda, a close fricnd of
Pinochet, was dispatched to Miami to mect with Cuban
exile leaders. Ramiro de la Fé, a Bay of Pigs veteran
who had served time for possession of cxplosives, and
who was a spokesman for several tcrrorist groupings,
consulted with Sepulveda and helped him sét up a front
group in the United States to promote the junta’s image.
In retum, according to former exile activist, Carlos
Rivero Collado,* Scpulveda promised moral and ma-

* Carlos Rivere Collado was active in Cuban exile affairs until
he tecently returned to Cuba, gevealing all he kncw of exile
politics.
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lerial aid in the exiles’ private war against Castro and
the Cuban Revolution,

In carly 1974, the junta blessed the arrangement by
scnding Julio Duran to deliver a keynote specch before
the cxile community in Miami. Duran, Chile’s delegate to
the U.N. General Assembly and a leading figurc in Patria
y Libertad, promised the exiles that henceforth, Chile
would support their cause.

The cxiles, most of whom the CIA had abandoncd
because of periodic policy changes and the fallout from
Watergate, became the junta’s adopted sons. The junta
and the exiles shared the same enemies and ideology.
Chile, not the United States, was dedicated to the over-
throw of Castro; Chile, not the United States, was now
the hemispheric leader in the struggle against inter-
national communism; Chile, not the United States, was
willing to use terror as a routine tool of policy. The
exiles had new parents, and, judging from the frequency
of their visits to Chile, a2 new home. In 1975 Brigade
2506, composed of Bay of Pigs veterans, awarded
Piniochet its “medal of freedom.”

According to Carlos Rivero Collado, from 1974 to
1976 the Cuban exile terrorist groups, with Chilean
moral and material aid, launched a number of violen:
attacks in and out of this country. Their targets included
not only the Cuban Revolution but some of their newly
defined encmies in the United States. In one incident,
Emilio Milian, a Miami-based Cuban exile, who advo-
cated détente with Cuba, had his legs severed when a
C4 bomb exploded in his car, the identical method used
later to eliminate Letclier. (For details of atrocities com-
mitted by Cuban exiles in the recent past, see “Miami,
Haven for Terror,” The Nation, March 19.)

’

Our evidence indicates that a high-level DINA agent
landed in Miami on September 13, 1976, and met with
a group of Cuban exiles who had already been alerted
that a “contract” was in the offing. The DINA ageat
worked out the details of the Letelier assassination with
four young terrorists noted for their daring and cold-
bloodedness. Having secured a plastic explosive and a
detonating device, they departed for Washington. There
they met with DINA agents, posing as Chilecan officials,
stationed at the. Chilean Embassy. The Washingion-
based operatives briefcd the exiles on Letelier’s habits,
his car description, daily departure times, route to work,
parking location, and probable work schedule at the In-
stitute for Policy Studies during the following week.

The next afternoon, Justice Department sources con-
firm, a group of Cubans made an official call upon their
Chilcan Ambassador, Manucl Trucco, to “protest™ the
extradition of Rolando Otero, a fellow Cuban cxile, from
Chile to the United States, there to stand trial for bomb-
ings in the Miami area. This visit to the Chilean Embassy
could scrve in the future, should it be nccessary, to ex-
plain their presence in Washington.

Upon leaving the Chilcan Embassy, they probably
drove to an alley behind the Institute for Policy Studies.
where Letelier routinely parked his car. The explosive
was taped to the I-bcam of the car, under the driver's
scat, for maximum impact. The car may have been
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whether the plastic wo‘uld remain in plz.-.
e day before A sct of Letelicr’s car keys had b 2
", from his affice and when Letelier arrived at %y
"'( 11 6.30 that cvening, one of his companions poin:.d

"t t.;m the sicht front door was ajar. He shrugped it

:,r saying, “Oh, I must have gottcn out on the wrong

side today.” _ . )

The ncxt morning Letelier drove to National Airport,

arked his car for the day, and took an Eastern shuttle
1o New York. He returncd on Saturday for a party at
his housc to celebrate Chilean Independence Day.

Monday, the day before the assassination, Letelicr
worked at his office. At the end of the day, he phoaed
Isabel, his wife, confimning a dinncr-work engagement
at home for that evening with Michael and Ronni
Moffitt. When Moffitt discovered that his own car would
not start, Letelier phoned again explaining that the
Mofiits would drive with him. They stayed until mid-
night, and then drove Letelier’s car to their own home, it
being agreed that they would pick him up and drive to
work together the next morning.

At 8:45 Tuesday morning, a Latin woman walking in
front of Letelier's residence noticed a late-model gray
sedan parked near the Letelier driveway. Threc occu-
pants sat inside and- one man stood by the car. She
identified him as *“certainly a Latin,” about 30, wearing a
gray suit and tie. The four appeared to be enjoying an
“inside jole,” she said. .

At 8:55 the Mofiitts arrived in the Letelier car, and
pulled into Letelier’s driveway. Engaged in conversation,
they did not notice any other vehicles nearby. As soon
. as they entered the Letelicr residence, one of the group
of four must have crawled under Letelier’s car and at-
tached the detonating device to the plastic charge—a
procedure that requires only seconds.

At 9:15, Letelier, Ronnt and Michael Moffitt left the
housz and began the drive from Bethesda to the District
of Columbia. Letelier took the route he always drove—-
River Road to 46th to Massachusetts Avenue. They
talked about the day's business and the dreary weather,
No one paid attention to a gray sedan trziling them at a
“safe™ distance.

As Letelier entered Sheridan Circle, a hand in the gray
car depressed a button. Michael Moffitt keard the sound

ENALL

. FIRST-STRIKE CAPABILITY

of “watcr on a hot wire™ and then saw a “white flach
Thrown clcar of the cxplosion, Moflit tricd to {ree 1}
unconscious Letelier from the wreckage on top of hir
His Jegs had been snupped from his body and catapu’ic
somc 15 fect away. Ronni Mofhitt stumbled away fron
the smoldering Chevrolet; she seemed to be O.K., bt
in fact had suffered a severed artery and soon bled ¢
decath. Michael scrcamcd out into the world, “Th
Chilean Fascists have done this.”

This reconstruction of the assassinations, based upor
evidence gleaned in six months of probing and with
some educated guessing, is supported by what we know
of FBI findings. In crucial areas, our conclusions and
those of the Justice Department match exactly: a DINA
official, himself under orders from *‘above,” ordered and
supervised the “hit”; Cuban terrorists carried it out;

- plastic explosive was the murder instrument.

Most of the FBI and Justice Dcpartment officials in-
vestigating the murders have made a concerted effort
to bring the perpctrators to the bar of justice. At the
same time, other agents inside the government have
leaked material from Letelier’s bricfcase, seized by the
police as potential evidence at the time of the explosicn.
The lcaked material first appeared on the desks of sev-
eral officials of the Inter-American Development Bank,
where Letelier had served for many years. Next, the
briefcase material was given to ncwspaper columnists
Jack Anderson and then to Evans and Novak. The col-
umas which these men wrote attempted to discredit
Letelier and divert attention from the actual killers—
General Pinochet, the Chilean junta, the DINA and their
Cuban exile hit men.

The names of most of the killers, their motives, and
their modus operandi are now known to the Justice De-
partment. What remains are the more fundamental ques-
tions: will the U.S. authorities be allowed to gather
sufficient evidence to bring the killers to trial? Will they
name General Pinochet and other ruling junta mem-

bers who ordered the assassinations? And will the role

of U.S. intelligence and defense agencics, which had
previously trained junta leaders, DINA agents and the
exiles, be revealed in full? . g

FROM MARV TO HOLOCAUST

ROEERT C. ALDRIDGE

“I am a little mixed up on these MARVs,” confessed
Sen. Thomas Mclntyre, research and development chair-
man of the Scnate Armed Services Committce, during
military budget hearings last March. It is a pointed cx-
ample of how the Pentagon has mystified the issues sur-
rounding its ncw  Mancuvering  Re-entry  Vchicle

(MARYV). If the Congressional purse-keepers, with ac-
cess to sccret information, don't understand what they
are buying, the general public certainly can’t. And to
compound the confusion, the Air Force and Navy have
again switched their stories. They scem determined to
outmaneuver public understanding. To clarify this pic-
ture, 1 propose first to review the cevolution of ballistic
missiles which led up to MARVs; then to analyze MARYV
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roday—Sunny, high near 90, low near
50. The chance of rain is near zero
throuzh tonizht, Wednesday—Sun.
ny, kizh near 90. Yesterday—3 p.m.
air quzlity index: 90. Temperature
range: 85-45. Details are on Page C2.
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Ex-CIA /

By Bob WoodWilrd .

A former CIA explosives expert and
three Cuban exiles will soon be
sought by y federal authorities for ques-
Luor .J\"’
year's Embassy Row bomb-murder of

former Chilean Ambassador Orlando
1nformed :

Letelier, accordmg to
sources.

Xdwin P, Wilson, the former Cen-
gal Intelligence Agency O crative,
ind the three ’\hamx-:ﬁasegl CJuBan eXx-

les came to ihe attention of fed%ral_
fficials when they_lgxr;xed that 11'_ -

. v —— g s - e v

'uie, 3 Ca

¥

~on was under FBI mvem"ation in ay

wnrelated assassination plot abroad.

Wilson allegedly sought to recruil
the threc Cubaus to Kiil a political op:

*;onent of the Libyan leader,

in the investigation of last

~juammar Qaddafi, last year, accerd:

2 to the sources.

Wﬂson heads & small consulting!
firm here called Consultants Interna-
tional, It is involved in the arms ex-

port business. Wilson was out of .the~

country yesterday and could not he
reached for comment. )

in revxewing information developed -

"in the Libyan investigation of Wilson,

investigators ha've _eslablished these

poscible connections wzth the Letelie:
case:

s Wilson had a sccret contract with
the Libyan government to provide de-
tcnation devices called “timing pen- -
eils”—a tube filled with chemxca‘s
that can be remotely controlled to

igger explosions. Such a “timing
penceil” is believed to have been used
ta detonate the bomb that exploded
beneath Letelier’s car.

* The three Cuban exiles arrived in
the Washington arca just three days
- before the Sept, 21, 1976, bombing of
Letelier’s car,

* One of the Cuban exiles, an ni<~ .,

e M—. e . - _ = —_

pIoswes expert bcheved to have been
trained by the CIA in the 1960s, met
in Miami recertly with a2 close associ-
ate of other Cuban exiles who have
been chief suspects in the Letelier
case.

Assistant U Attorney Eugene M.
Propper, who 15 in charge of the Léte-
lier investigation. met with CIA offj-
cials last week and asked for all files

and information on Wilson and the

three Cubans, ~he sources said,

The three Cubons are not among

the 10 anti-Costro Cubans who have.

reportedly heen bstioned already
by the grand jury investigaling the
Letelier murday,

- o,

e

‘_‘These are new Cubans and a com-.

pletely new direction *for the case,”
said one source familiar with {he in-
vestigation. The sources said, how-
ever, that the extent .of Wilson's in-
volvement, if any, could 'net be
learned until Wilson is questionad,

In the Libyan investigation, the
sources said that Justice Depariment
attorneys are not sure if any U.8. law
has been violated because the d ,part-
ment has no jurisdiction to prozccute
crimes committed abroa.d.

The Libyan case in now in the Jus-
tice Department Criminal Divisicn for
review,

That investigation began lasi yecar

ban Exiles Focus of Letelier Inguir

i &
when CIA ofﬂcx:us learned that a
mer employee was allegediy recru
Cubans for terrorist activity.
Acecording to the sources, Wi
was acling under a contract with
Libyan .governriont and wanted
Cubans to assa:zcinate a Libyan
had exiled himself to Egypt niueh
Leteclier had exiled himself to
United States afier the Septen
1973, coup in Chile and a year of
prisonment there.

The Cubans turned down the ]OI

" fer, which was. imnade by VWilson .

Sce LETELIER, Al2, Col. 1
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F ocus of Letelier Probe

_,A LETELlER From AI tions from FBI ageats in the leyan
" investigation, the sources said. ﬁ\‘
. meeﬁnﬂ in Geneva, S\ntzerland ac/ Consultants International is locatea\ : “F
cording to the sources. - at _at 1425 X St. NW. An official there M
Upon Joumm" of this, the CLA vor Nl yesferdoy 100 the fuan was nuLI J
quested the FBI open an investigation jm'olved in any questionable activity, *
-of Wilson. This case was s0_sensilivé  According to the firm's own promo-
_that President | Ford \\ aw\xaonal x - Aional literature, Consultants fnterna-
Iormed of it.” R tional could supply an army with

~ Wilson's contract with leya in- = equipment including patrol boats, par-
* cluded a promise to supply thousands  achutes, airborne accessories. and ar-
of timing pencils, “It is onc¢ of the morprotected vehicles. . .
. _most alarming things I've ever seen,” - ‘*Armaments can be arranged to
" one source said. “There were enough ~ meet the requirements of the- pur- )
(timing pencils) contracted for to sup- - chaser,” the literature says.
port terrorist activity for the rest of  .Sources said that Wilson had a con-
the century.” * tract wlth Libya to clear land mines
The Libyan government has in the . but the contract was the “cover” for
past supported terrorist activity. At a  the real purpose of suppplying deten-"
news confercnce last July 19, Presi- tion devices.

.

dent Ford said, “We do know that the. ..-.‘Explosive dctection devices” are
leyan goverument hasin many ways .one of the items on the firm's sales .
dong’certain things that mig.ht have list.

stimulated terrorist activity.” . Wilsor’s firm has received numm

In_addition,” the sources said that  ous licenses from the State Depart-

_there is some ‘evidence that Wilson  ment Office of Munitions Control to

. may_have had contact with one or  cxport arms related material though

more current CIA cmployees” who  no license has heen granted to export

_have access to supplles of tinting 'pen any thing to Libya, according to gov-
_cils. . " ernment records.

It is not clear from the investiga- Letelier, 44, former Chilean ambas-

tion if any or how many timing pen- sador to the United States, was for-

- ¢ils Wilson actually supplied to the  eign minister and minister of defense

Libyan ‘government.” in the government of the late Chilean
. .The sources said Wilson also tried  social President Salvador Allende.

1o recruit_other former CTA employ- At the time of his death, Letelier
" ‘eed to be explosives instructors in__ headed a foreign affairs research pro-
- “Libya. gram at the Instlfute for Policy Stud-

.One former CIA employee was of- ies in Washington. A staff member of
" fered $100,000 a year but turned. it the Institute, Ronni K. Moffitt, also
down, Wilson himself had contracts dicd in the explosion. Her husband,
valued at hundreds of thousands of -Mlichael, a research associatc, sur-
dollars with Libya, according to the  vived the blast.
" sources. Ben Weiser assisted in the report-
Wilson has declined to answer ques-  ing of this article.. .




“Townley's Wife Kne

" Of Plot to-

By Jeremizah O'Leary

Washington Star Staff Writer
SANTIAGO, Chile ~ . Mariana
Calle]las, the wife of Michael V.
Townley, the accused assassin of
O e
! id you teH ‘ rs &
the air’;;ort last night that your hus-
band put the bomb In lier's
car?” she was asked at her home

her¢ yesterday a’fter:a‘mght from

Washington.
“1 can't lie. I don't know how. It's

difficult for me to lie or to ignore peo-

ple,” Callejas said. -

Inmé case, she added, FBI
Carter ick had dy:
in court a week ago that husband

placed the bomb that killed Letelier,
so she said she didn’t see anything so
new in that. .

“But did you know about the assas-
sination plot beforehand or that the
were going to put a bomb in Leteli-
er'scar?’’ she was asked. = .

“Yes. Including the day that the
attempt was ma (lSeJn 21, 1978),
when Michael cailed me  from
.Miami,”* she said. : )

CRLLEJAS, WHO has
maigen name as many
womlen do, was completely cog‘{ospd
although tired from the 7,000-mile

her
ilean

Kill Letelier

flight from Washington to Santiago. -
he said she went there at the invi-
tation and expense of the U.S. gov-
ernment to testify before the grand
jury and to see her husband, Mich-
ael, 38, who is in custody somewhere
near Washington, . -
Townley's home in the Lo Curro
hills overlooks the smoggy basin in
which Chile's capital is 'located.
There i3 a swimmin% pool the family
has never used. The view of the
snow-capped Andes is magnificent.
But Callejas is difficult to get a fix:
on. A wistful smile constantly plays
across her face even when she dis-

~ cusses calamity or hardship.
One of those

. hardships is that she
is raisins two children, Chris, 15, and
Brian, 12, 'both bili and’ biond
like their father, but po m is
coming in to the chalet on at 4925 Via
Naranja. :

“I have sold one of the cars.in
; order to feed my children,” she said.

“‘Obviously the government of
Chile cannot help us because that
-would be an admission of guilt. Mich-
ael told me I ought not to be giving
interviews for free when we need the
money so badly.” _ .

AS SHE TALKS Callejag” skips
from subject to subject withbut dis-
tress and always in low keys” -

See TOWNLEY, A4
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'TOWNLEY

One myment she says, “I am a
Chilean and ! will always be a Chi-
lean.” The next, she says clearly but
without passion that she is angry that
her government gave her husband
over to the United States without due
process of Chilean law.

At the same time, Callejas says,
the grand jury treated her nicey e-
cause they are nice pel?ﬂe and she
spoke well of Assistant U.S. Attorney

ugene M. Propper and FBI agents
Cornick and Robert Scherrer,

What did she have to tell the grand
jury last week? .

“Not very much,” Townley's wile
said. She said they questioned her for
about 20 minutes.

“But I am not a woman to ask
many questions. I knew Michael was
with the DINA and that he is
with electronics, but we didn’t talk
mg;h about what he was doing,” she
said.

She slowly wanders around the
house where she and Michael Town-
ley lived together. _

j;lt is very lonely here now,” she
said.

THERE ARE NOT manx books. A
couple of paperbacks catch the eyé:
“The Terminal Man'" and somethin
in sci-fi called “The Shores o
Death.”

The bar contains only a bottle of
tequila, looking long ignored. Thedhi-
fi.is impressive, wired by .
hut none of the recerds is in sight.,

“1 write. 1 read. I keep busy with
the children,” Calle&as said:

“What do you think of the United
States? Don’t you have some chil-

* dren by a previous marriage living
there?" she was asked.,

“That is a thing of the past,”” she
said. “Bet 1 do net iike it when the
U.S. biackmails Chile and other
countvies asthey da. The Americans
say you'll get no food uniess you de
a8 we say. ismotright.””

Marijana Callejas, three times
married and now separated from her
husband by one of the most publi-
cized acts of violence ever commit-
ted in Washington, does not think she
would attend a trial.

She says she cannot afford the trip
and that she has to take care of the
children. But it comes out that she
would not want them exposed to.sight
of their father as a prisoner in jail
and in the dock.

SHE IS A FEY woman who seems
to move through life as if it were a
dream, or a nightmare. It is hard to
say whether she is the perfect victim
of circumstances or as clever as her
conper=ztion indicates she may be.

She has told Chilean interviewers
at various times that she has boew a
Communist, a Socialist, a Zionist, an

good f

_Friday for punchin

antl-Allende activist ang, guring =
stay in the United Statey, a supporter
of Eugene McCarthy.

“But he was a disappgintment,”
she said with a sigh, as if ail her men
might fit that description.

gom in the small town of Rapel in
the province of Coquimbo, her father
was a justice of the peace. She at-
tended high school and then college
but .dropped out. She explains that by
saying, "I am an Aries and Aries
people are always complicated. I was
preoccupied with the problems of the
world at an early age and this made
problems with my father who was
anti-Communist.”

And there were her marriages.
The first lasted six months until she
was 17, second

hwsband was
Jewish and took her te live on & kib-

butz in fsrael.

SHE MARRIED Michael Townley
after a 10-month courtship. They
lived in Florida, where she worked
'or McCarthy's cause.

When they came back to Chile, she
said, she became a collaborator in
the right-wing Patria y Libertad
organization against President
Salvador Allende.

Life looks bleak to Mariana Calle-
jas, but her omnipresent smile
makes one wonder if she really
understands how serious a turn her
life has taken,

It is all very disorganized, some
woeful sculpture, the unused pool, /
the flea market quality of the fur-
nishings in a house that has one of
the most beautiful views in Latin
America. -

But that view is lovely only looking
outward. It is very probabie that the
electronic equipment and explosive
caps used to kill Letelier in Washing-
ton were assembled in this house on
the Via Naranja.

His Dog’s Honor Cost
NJ. Man $10,500

PATERSON, N.J. (AP) — A West
Milford man was fined $10,500 for as-
saulting his neigl_xbors to protect his

dog’'s . :
§oaeph Walters of West Milford
was fined in Passaic County Court on
his neighbor,
biting the man’s wife and shooting
their dog with a .22-caliber rifle.
According to court paxers. the
suburban feud started in April 1976
when Walters spotted Link, a male
mongrel owned by neighbor Salva-
tore F. Reale, mating In the back-
'yard with his purebred Eskimo sled
\doF. Tundra. ‘
ncensed, Walters reportedly
the mongrel in the hind quarters.

When the Reales emerged from
theirhh%uts‘_e. l}ea&e tfestifi , mlﬁn
unched him in the face, pus m
go the ground and then bit his :-6.‘#’?"

the left thumb. g
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By Jerem!zh O'Leary .

Washingion Star Swatl Writer

On March 7, 1973, a short letter
. was sent to a Washington-area fire-
A arms dealer by Ambassador Orlando
+ Letelier of Chile on embassy station-
4 ery.

£ Ttread:

+Please enter my order for two In-
ram M}l Systems .380 ACP cal. for
<7 and evaluation. Very truly yours.
rlando Letelier. Ambassador of

hata
g

o sl T

R a2 Y 3
b ]

-
3

.

In less than two days, the State De-
nartment’s Office »f Munitions Con-
.rol had signed the export license,
! ynd the transfer was also signed by

. Rex Davis, director of the Treasury .
Department’s Bureau of Alcohol,

o e e R il
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Tobacco and Firearms. Both docu-
ments are dated March 9, 1973.

Late that afternoon, a messenger
from the firearms company arrived
at the Chilean embassy residence,

where he received a check from an.

administrative officer named Hernan
Navarro in the amount of $476.80.
The check was signed by Letelier,

THE CHILEAN ambassador then
teft for a 10-day visit in Santiago via
LAN Chile Airlines Fiight 451 with
his lupgage and, apparently, the
package from the Washington-area
arms dealer. The package contained
two Ingram Smm submachine guns.
These weapons are equipped to fire a

32.cartridge _clip, effective at 100

'.!’H
o L

meters single-shot and more il
sprayed atthe full-automatic setting.

With the sound suppressor, or si-~
lencer, the Ingram is described by
U.S. authorities as a lethal counterin-
surgency weapon that has no other
purpose than killing by stealth, With
the silencer and clip removed and the
.wire shoulder stock folded inside the
gun, the weapon is 1o larger than a
i5-caliber pisto}l of the standard
American make.

The reason for the purchase of two
of these submachine guns with si-
lencers, plus 200 rounds of ammuni-
tion, by Letelier ~ sixX months before

Ay
B

his Marxist Unidad Popular gover- The type of submachine-
nent was overthrown by the Chilean and with 32-round clip in piace.

- See LETELIER, A-l2, Tove

.;\l'lnhingmn Star Photographer Ray Lustig
gun pux;i'l}:;sed bi' },etcher, equipped with silencer
{ 'ith stock folded as shown and siiencer ¢

. . e.
d itis about tie same size as Colt .45 automatic in picture.
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armed forces — is as much 3 mys-
tery today as his murder here last

Sept. 21 when a bomb exploded under

his car, -

FEDERAL QFFICIALS and Wash-
ington police investigating the mur-
‘ders of Letelier and his assocate,
Ronni Karpen Moffitt, discovered
that he had bought the weapons. The
Washington Star began checking the
same ground last week after Leteli-
er's widow, Isabel Letelier, told a
Georgetown University audience that
her husband had been falsely ae-
cused by the military junta of in-
volvement in drug trafficking and
weapons smuggling, . -\

Dets. Stanley R. Wilson and Joh
R. Chaillet of the Metropolitan Police
homicide squad, assigned to the
Moffitt-Letclier case, .were asked
about the junta accusations and Mrs,
Letetier’s response. Although they
refused to discuss any aspects of
their investigations, the detectives
said there was no evidence of any
kind that Letelier had been involved
in drug trafficking.

They did confirm, however, that
Letelier had bought two weapons be-
fore he was recalled from his ambas-
sadorship here in May 1973, but de-
clined to disclose any further details
of the purchase. But The Star located
the arms dealer, who also insisted on

anonyinity, and has obtained a copy

" of Letelier's order for the subma-
chine guns. :
The dealer insisted that the sale
was legal and showed the U.S. gov-
crnment documents he obtained at
the State and Treasury departments
before making the delivery to the
ambassador. The dcaler said he
hand-carried the documents to State
and Treasury for the neccssary
signatures. A State Department
source said the transaction appar-
tly was expedited by officials be-
&cﬁ normally the necessary ap-
prevais could not be obtained in a
two-day period. - |

Wednesday, Aprit 20, 1977
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THE SILENCERS, according to
Deputy Director James D. Hataway,
could not be cxported now under
State Department policies estab-
Jished since Letelier bought the si-
lencers and submachine guns.

The Ingram submachine gun was

designed for use with a silencer and
is out of balance without it. Without

« the silencer and with the stock at full

extension, the weapon is easily can-
cealed inside a suit coat. It has little
recoil and, with the silencer, is al-
most noiscless.

While it could not be ascertained *

whether Letelier took the weapons
with him to Chile on March 8, 1973,
the messenger who delivered the
package to the chancery was told
that the ambassador nceded the
package for his journey. Bringing the
weapons out of the United States and
into Chile would not have heen smug-
gling because Letelier had all the
necessary permission from U.S. au-
thorities. There would have been no
diificulty in getting the weapons past
customs since Letelier could either
have carried them in his luggage or
in the Chilean diplomatic pouch.

THE ARMS DEALER said he had
no idea whether Letelier wanted the
weapons for his own use, was taking
them to Chile for someone else or
whether the ‘“test and evaluation”
motivation was genuine. Officials say
the nermal procedure for any gov-
ernment acquiring weapons for test
and evaluation is through military at-
tache channels. In any case, it is not
known what Letelier did with them.

The Chilean Embassy here, now
representing the military junta, said
it would have to ask Santiago if the

Ingrams and the silencers were cap- .|

tured when the armed forces took
power. The scrial numbers of the
weapons bought by Allende are 3-
360819 and 3-3001047. The silencer
numbers are S-3-2000379 and S-3-

2000460, according to the records of :

the arms dealer here. .

Letelier returned to Chile in May
1973 and became successively foreign
minister, minister of interior and de-
fense minister. He was taken
prisoner by the armed forces on Sept.
11, 1973, when the coup d’etat was
carried out by the armed forces
under Gen. Augusto Pinochet, and
spent much of the next year on bleak
Dawson Island near the Straits of
Magellan.

SRR -

About a weekjalter the coup, a Star
reporter visited Mrs. Letelier in her

- Santiago home and was asked if her

husband had had any weapons. She
said he had a pistol that was given to
him by fellow employes when he was
leaving the Inter-American Develop- ¥
ment Bank. Mrs. Letelier, who now §'3
lives in -Bethesda, said she turned §*:
this souvenir pistol over to the Chi- [
lean national police as soon as the 'Ef&,'
junta issued a decree requiring that B~
all weapons be handed in. _
The Ingram submachine gun and § -
silencer were made by the Military §"
Armament Corp. of Powder Springs,
Ga. The local arms dealer said the
company since has gone out of busi- §-
ness. ) .
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' Dramatic Political Change Caused by Pressures on Ch

By Charles A. Krause
Washington Post Poreizn Service .
SANTIAGO, Chile—The political
gituation here has changed dramati-

~

. cally in recent months after almost .

- five years of harsh authoritarian mili-
tary rule.

President Augusto Pinochet, whose
‘name has become associated abroad
with total suppression of political lib-
erties and brutal repression ¢f human
rights, is clearly on the defensive as a
result of iIntermal and external
pressures—not the least of which is the

. LS. investigation into the 1978 assas-

sination of exiled Chilean dxplomat .

. Orlando Letelier.

. These pressures have already forced
‘Pinochet to relax his grip on the coun-
try and to consider an end to the mili-
tary dictatorship that he has headed

since 1973, when he led the overthrow

of leftist president Salvador Allende,

The question is no longer whether
the ikt will leave power but
when and uwi¥er what circumstances.

g

L

Last January, Gen. Pmochet said he
could see no reason to hold another
election in Chile for 10 years and
added that the military had no inten-
tion of leaving power until 1990 or
1961,

By . March, Pinochet had cut nine
years off his timetable for when the
next election would be held and six or
seven years off his schedule for re-
turning Chile to c¢ivilian rule. . Pino-
chet announced that he would have a
proposed new constitution written by
the government ready by the end of
this year, t hat there will be a plebi-
scite to approve or disapprove the
document next year and a return-to

_an elected gevernment here by 1984

or 1885.

Most observers ‘here believe that
the details of Pinochet’s timetable for
phasing out military rule and his
ideas for the -kind.of civiian govern-
ment he would like afterwards are
less important than the fact that he

. felt it necessary to discuss the subject

3

in the coatext of other liberalization
measures and concessions to foreign
critics that have perceptibly changed
the atmosphere here.

“The fundamental shift that has oc-

-curred is that it is now worthwhile to

talk about what the future might look
like,” said one. diplomatic™observer.
“It's possible that this change in ambi-
ance will be ephemeral. But, at the
moment, the Christian Democrats and
the other opposition partjes are riding
high.” -

A Chilean lawyer who is a leader of

\a centrist political party—all parties

are still officially outlawed—was both
more cautious and more. optimistic

- during a recent interview.

“At this time, there isn't much re-
pression because of international pres-
sure. But we believe that Pinochet
doesn’t really want to return to de-
mocracy and that the repression could
return. The Letelier case is very seri-
ous for the governmens-saiduwill have

—i

an important effect on what happens,”
he said.

Since the United States has not yet
charged any Chilean former secret po-
lice officers with a role in the politi-
eal murder and the evidence against
them has not yet been made public, -
the lawyer said, “it is impossible to
say exactly what is going to happen.

“But I have the most profound be-
lief that we will return to democracy
because, really, this 18 a democratic
country. In 1973, after the coup, I
was optimistic in. the long term. Now,

I am optimistic in the shorter term.” -

Most observers here seem to believe
that the 1973 coup was welcomed by
the vast majority of people here after
the last year of economic and political
chaos under the Allende regime. But
most Chileans have never considered
a military solution permanent.

1t has been viewed as an interlude
— less agreeable to some than to oth-
ers — that would eventually end. The
beginning of the end started last Jan-

uary, according to most observers,
and the question that could be an-
swered within the next several
months is whether civilian govern-
ment will be restored in six or seven
years, as Pinochet has said, or sooner,
as many people heré now think.

At the same-time, the government
has enough support and power “to
clamp a temporary lid on -the liberali-
zation that has - already occurred if
Chile’s  unions, political parties and
leftists - reassert themselves too
quickly or try to pmvokc a direct con-
frontation.

The government, for enmple broke
up the first May Day labor demonstra-
tions since the coup last month. Byt,
significantly, there was little police vi-
olence and all of thosge arrested were
allowed to go home within hours. _

The hunger strike that ended last
week did not achieve its primary ob-
jective of getting the government to

‘See CHILE, A36, Col, 2—

GEN. AUGUSTO
... how much lonz
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Chile, Under Pressure, Accelerates Move to Civilian Rule

) CHILE, From A3l

admit that more than 600 leftists have
disappeared, probably at the hands of
the secret police, since 1973, but for
the first time the issue was given
prominent coverage in newspapers —
which are closely watched by the gov-
ernment.

This weekend, the government an-
nounced that it will allow the U.N.
Commission on Human Rights to visit
Chile later this year.

“I don’t think that Chile is going to
take as long to return to democracy as
Pinochet and some of those around
him wish,” said another diplomat.“But
the situation is delicate. Things are
vastly improved but the bottom line is
that there's nothing to prevent the
government from going back. There
hasn't been an institutional leap.
Most of the generals haven’t seen the
light.” _

What they have seen, apphrently, is
that Chile’s. worldwide reputation as a

matically and militarily. Chile no
longer receives arms aid from the
United States and has obtained little
diplomatic support for its border dis-
putes with neighboring Argentina and
Bolivia. ) '

The generals also thought they saw
an attempt by Pinochet last January
to turn. the results of a plebiscite on
his rule—which netted him 75 percent
of the vote—into a means of personal-
izing the regime, It is said that the
military sensed that. Pinochet -har-
bored designs of converting the junta
with power shared by the army, air
force, navy and national police—into
a one-man dictatorship.

Opposition to Pinochet, led by air
force commandant Gen, Gustavo
Leigh, began to surface. Leigh began
to talk about a return to democracy as

a,way of countering Pinochet’s appar- .

ent grab for power, according to
many observers.

Then came the U.S. investigation

into the Letelier murder and a contin-

uing stream of allegations that it was
carried out by the secret police,
known here as DINA, at the behest of
Gen. Manuel Contreras, a close confi-
dant of Pinochet’s who headed the or-
ganization. ) .

Supporters and opponents of the
military agree that Pinochet has al-
ready been hurt by the revelations
from the Letelier investigation and
the intense international scrutiny and
pressure to improve the human rights
situation here.

The series of liberalization meas-
ures announced by the government so
far—an end to the state of siege, a po-
litical amnesty, appointment of a ma-
jority civilian Cabinet and the
speeded-up timetable for the constitu-
tion—are seen here !as tactical conces-
sions to world opi.nidln.

Many opponents ¢f the junta be-

lieve that Pinochet had mo intention
of seriously beginning the transition
to real democracy but that the liberali-
zation measures, coupled with contin-
uing internationzl pressure, have
taken on a life of their own. -

The country’s largest political party,
the Christian Democrats, has been
working with two smaller parties to
write a constitution that could serve
as an alternative to the government

effort, which is- based on principles

that would - give interest groups—

rather than political parties—repre-

sentation in a new legislature. -

A group of more conservative law-
yers is also known to be working on a
constitution while a source close to
the absolutely illegal Communist

Party said that.a working group had -

been formed to consider which of the
conservative economic policies imple-
mented by the government the party

could support after a return to democ-
racy. .

The likelihood of the military allow-
ing the Communists to become legal
again, even after same form of demo-
cratic government is'restored, is not
considered to be very great, however.

The rezl unknown is the outcome of
the Letelier affsir. Many people here
believe a large number of Chileans,

including sothe “military, could not

stomach the idea-that DINA carried

“out a political assassination and many

people would find it hard to believe
that Pinochet did not know about it.

There Is ‘intense debate over
whether Pinochet ceuld continue as
president in the wake of clear evi-
dence that his old confidant Contreras
was _involved. At a minimum, it is
thought that the return to democracy
would be hastened if the junta is dis-
credited by U.S. indictments.

P c—
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ORLANDO LETELIER
.. munder investigation raises issues
L

gross violator of human rights has se- "
verely, weakened the country diplo- ‘

"
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Paraguayan Links Chile’s DINA to

By Jeremiah O'Leary have been secretly collaborating for
Washingon Star Staft Writer sevgra: yex?ln in ‘:rdgan_'i_zte_d (:peratiqns

An FBI agent last week QUIEtly fom ench countin. boen 1o the crtent

s into the capital of Pargs:ulsz ?m oo ting %’Sﬁ&'&i"ﬁ‘éﬁ%‘

Asunciol, and conducted a secret ,pi:::ﬁ:a‘ ’

interview {?it'hl. high-ranking Para-  “The interview with the unnamed

B I pawemn e Chicn o Pacaguayto il by FoI Speca

 cret police and the assassination of  scmes Chue o 1D maeong t0

Orlando Letelier. pected to wrap up the Justice Depart-

This “Paraguayan coanection’ is ment’s case against DINA, the secret
another piece of evidence the United. police organization of Chile.

States has collected showing that the
secret police of four right-wing Latin
American governments — Chile,
Paraguay, Argentina and Uruguay —

While officials of the State and Jus-

tice departments and the FBI would
not comment on the “Paraguayan
connection,” the deposition of the

| Letelier

ayan government had cooper- try
staerdf rm‘llllyy with the investigators.

the Clegg mission, which was
ar?::getf in lggge part by the Statt:

- Department.. and Agnbassador ’
Paraguay Robert White, resulted in
the disclosure that the U.S. govern-

1-

nt has long known about the co
i:le)oration of right-wing governments ...
in southern Latin America.

For several years, American offi-

cials have confirmed, Washington

Four Latin Nations Cooperate Against Dissident Exiles
Paraguayan official was essential for andenraguay to get U.Sgvisas for
the indictments a federal grand jury two DINA agents under fagse names

and with.phony Para an pass-

is expected to return, sometime after
July 25, against former DINA chief
Gen. Manuel Contreras Sepulveda.

Contreras, one of the best friends
of Chile's President A Pino-
chet, was forced into retirement re-
centlI because of exposes of the
DINA plot with. exiles- to kill
Letelier. - o

THE “PARAGUAYAN - connec-
tion” involved offictal collaboration
between the governments of Chile

There is no evidence, officials
emphasized, that the Paraguayan
official or his government knew what
‘the DINA murder team planned to do

-im the United States. It is probable

~ that Paraguay did not know anything
except that Contreras had asked one
of his counterparts for help in getting
the visag in what might be called a
visa-laundering operation.

tions against exiléc from each co\nf-

STENCE OF the four-nation
caﬁa’%‘wu known to the State Depart-
ment and the CIA, accor
informed official sources, for some
time l:neforew the Sept. 21, 1976, assas- !

ination in Was! f
?;?taislt politician and diplomat, Le-

to well-

of the Chilean

But U.S. officials emtggaéi\:ed that

d never expecC
5‘33}3" be a political murder of a

known about the secret CO0PETa-—py jigsident in the United States.

has \ ¢
ion of the intelligence services ]
gaour military governments in opera

See PLOT, A4
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-It was after the investigation was
’éato the Letelier murder by Assist-
. ropper

Attorney Eugene M.

- and the FBI that officials discovered the

" so-called ‘‘Para

ay connection.” This
was the August 1976 trip by two members

. of the Chilean secret police to Asuncion,
° whete they tried, but failed, to obtain

' rankin,

official U.S. visas with the aid of a high~
Paraguayan official by passing
themselves off as Paraguayans.

Sources in two U.S. government agen-

" cies said it was one thing to know about
_ the multinational secret police collabora-
* tion and another to discover that it had
. reached out to cause the death of two
' people in the heart of Washington, Le-

telier and his colleague, Ronni Karpen

Moffitt.

INFORMATION available to U.S. offi-

- cials about the four-nation secret police
" pact has been closely held and carries
- the highest security classification. In

art, olficials said, this is because the
IA had succeeded in penetrating one of

~ the four secret police services and the

cables containing reports on this penetra-

- tion are accessible to only a handful of
" officials.

In August 1976, one month before Le-

" telier’s car was blown up, Washington

learned that Michael V. oqnla,_ 36, an
American expatriate living in Chile and
working for DINA, and Cac%t. Armando
Fernandez Larios of the Chilean army
had gone to the Paraguayan capital.
There, with the aid of the unnamed

. Paraguayan officiel, thef l?;;)plied at the

) employee and the

U.S. consulate for officia visas. Re-

portedly one of the Paraguayan clerks in.
the consulate noted that the applicants -

were obviously not Paraguayans. .
Both the Paraguayan woman consular

"+ who requested the U.S. visas for the two
¢ Chileans would be important witnesses at

the expected trial of Townley and three ' pore

"- or more Cuban exiles, investigators said.

" mined that, even if indicted, no Chilean

U.S. officials have realistically deter-
officers will be extradited under the Chi-

- lean military government for a trial

here.
COINCIDENTALLY, the U.S. ambas-

sador to Paraguay in 1976 was George W.
* Landau, who is now ambassador to Chile.
» The applications came to Landau’s atten-

kY

" for inter-American affairs,

ion through the embassy chain of com-
and and he asked Washington for in-

ructions.

The then-assistant secretary of state

Harry

araguayan - official .-

Shlaudeman, now ambassador to Peru,
was aware of the four-nation compact for
secret police mutual assistance. Shlaude-
man has told The Washington Star that
he cabled back immediately to Asuncion
the instructions to retrieve the visas is-
sued to Townley and Fernandez in the in-
vented names of ‘“Juan Williams Rose”
and ‘‘Alejandro Romeral Jara.” Consu-
lar officials did manage to get the visas

.back and the photographs that appeared

to be of no importance at the time were
filed away.
It was this incident in Paraguay that

gave U.S. authorities possession of photo- .

gaﬁgs of Townley and Fernandez, alias
illiams and Romeral, a month before
Letelier was assassinated in downtown
Washington. No one realized the signifi-
cance of the Asuncion matter in August
1976, but it was remembered by several
U.S. officials aware of the four-nation se-
cret police arrangement as soon as they
heard that Letelier had been killed by a
bomb.

Tracing the Asuncion pair was not
easy. At first, U.S. officials in Washing-
ton decided they would have to permit
Propper, Assistant U.S. Attorneg Larry
Barcella and FBI Sﬁecial Agent Clegg to
have access to all State Department
cable traffic regarding both the Letelier
killing and the secret police agreement.

PROPPER, BARCELLA AND CLEGG
have declinecf to comment on any aspect
of the Latin secret police matter or the
case, but it is now well established that

. the CIA’s files and reports also were

made available to the investigators.

In tracking down every apflication for
U.S. visas made from several Latin capi-
tals, investigators soon noted that men
named “Williams” and ‘‘Romeral” had
made similar applications in the Chilean
capital, Santiago, after being turned
down by the U.S. consulate in Asuncion.

But the mystery was that the photos of
the two men in Santiago bore no resem-
blance to the two who applied for visas in
Asuncion, And when U.S. investigators
asked to see “Williams'' and “Romeral,”
they were shown pictures of two men who
no resemblance to the two of the

‘same name who aprlied in Paraguay.

Subsequently, investigators learned
that the applicants in Asuncion were
really involved in the Letelier case while
the applicants in Santiago essentiallir had
been used as a smokescreen. The latter
two had nothing to do with the Letelier
case, .

In fact, investigators learned that
Townley came to the United States under
one of many aliases he is known to have
uged, while Fernandez used still another
name and passport. '

This point caused considerable confu-
sion at the early stages of the probe of
Letelier's murder.

WHEN THE ASUNCION photos weré
ublished by The Star and theMin Chile
the news aq_er El Mercurio, the true
identities of Townley and Fernindez
were quickly made known by readers.
Identifications were made both in Wash-
ington and Santiago by people who know
Townley and Fernandez.

The important point for U.S. diplomats
and intelligence officers was that the
ﬂwemments in Santiago, Buenos Aires,

ontevideo and Asuncion were working |
{oge}her. at least on the secret police !
evel. '

All four countries of the so-called Cono
del Sur (southern cone) have many citi-
zens from the other nations living within
their boundaries, Argentina, particu-
larly, has many Paraguayans who, be-
cause of politics or economic pressures,
leave their landlocked nation and go to
live in Buenos Aires. Uruguayans and
Argentines quite frequently cross and
recross the Rio Plata estuary, A number
of Chileans, either voluntarily or through
fear, went to live in neighboring lands,

One of the most obvious cases of secret
golice terror was that of Gen. Carlos

rats, who was commander of Chile's
army and defense minister until three
weeks before the armed forces rose up
against the elected Marxist regime of the
late President Salvador Allende. Prats
and his wife went into exile in Argentina
but within a year they were killed by a
bomb blast in Buenos Aires. This assassi-
nation occurred after Prats wrote a letter
denouncing Pinochet as a traitor without
parallel in Chile's history.

U.S. OFFICIALS carefully do not say
that Argentina collaborated in the Prats
murder. But the agreement among the
four South American secret police forces,
as U.S. officials understand it, would
have permitted DINA agents to operate
freely in Argentina.

Since the death of Letelier, there have
been substantial changes in the region:
and U.S. officials sai collaboration
among the four dictatorships is no longer
as close. :

Relations between Chile and Arge tina
have cooled over the Beagle Channel ter-
ritorial dispute.

Chile, Argentina, Paraguay and Uru-
guay were all condemned in varying de-
8rees for human rights violations by the

rganization of American States, al-
though the four are now trying to
imﬁrove their image on that score.

owever, U.S. officials say, the inves-
tigation into Letelier's murder has shed
so much light on the secret police forces
of the Southern Cone countries they
have been heavily curbed in tifeir opera-
tions.
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SANTIAGO, From Al

”Among those repdrtedly implicated
by Townley is Gen. Manuel Contreras
Sepulveda, the head of DINA at the
time of ‘the Sept. 21, 1876, bombing.

Letelier and &n associate, Ronnl K.
Moffitt, were killed when a bomb at-
tached to the car was detonated by a
remote control device as it traveled
around Sheridan Cirele, -

In Santiago, Chile's military gov-
ernment, its supporters in the press
and its friends in business circles
have become both frightened snd fu.
rious as the U.,S. investigation hss
turned toward the involvement of
Chilean citizens,

The Childan government has re

cently questioned the motives of the

U.S. Justice Departmemnt official con-
ducting the investigation in addition
to not cooperating fully with U.S. re-
quests for imformation, according to
well-informed. sources in Santiago.

The wave of anti-American feeling
isthe first In decades, among econ-
servative Chileans who have tradition-
ally looked to the United States as a
friend in thelr efforts to stop leftists
and Communists from gaining control
of Chile.

“Why does your government always
have to meddle in‘our affairs?” a very
well-connected conservative business-
man asked a reporter the other day.
“The United States really is imperial-
istic.”

The marked change in attitude be-
gan about three weeks ago during the
most recent visit to Santiago of As-
sistant U.S. Attorney Eugene M. Prop-
per, who is heading the investigation
into the murder of Letelier, a former
foreign minister and Chile’'s ambassa-
dor to the United States during the
leftist government of former president
Salvador Allende. Until his death,
Letelier was an outspoken critic of
the right-wing military regime that
overthrew Allende in 1973.

Propper, accompanied by Assistarit
U.S. Attorney E. Lawrence Barcella,
Jr. and two FBI agents, made what
was his third visit to Santiago in the

past three months to gather évidence.

to present to a grand jury investigat- -

2 the Letelier affair in Washington.
On the most recent visit, the first
after Townley’s  deportation and

questioning, it soon became clear to ..

Chilean government officials that
the evidence Propper was after would
be used to indict three former secret
police officers, including Contreras.
The former secret police head, who
left the investigative agency when it
was reorganized last fall, has long
been a confidant of President Augusto
Pinochet.

The reaction in Santiago to the
Propper mission and to the headlines
it generated was Iinstantaneous and
harsh as the realization sunk in that
U.S. authorities and the grand jury
would almost certainly charge the
three Chileans with having ordered or
participated in the Letelier murder.

The Chilean press reaction to Prop-
per’s visit was at times hostile. It was
a sharp contrast to the earlier visits
to Chile by Propper and FRI agent L.

Carter Cornick, who were covered by

' An unmuzzled press that considercd

‘high-ranking American officlals
and treated them with respect.
Indignation, a sense of helpléssness
and, ﬂnally, cold anger swept through
the govemment and its supporters at
the lmpllcagdons of Propper’s requests
for information. No issue is as danger-
ous to the continued viability of the.
military government here as the Le-
telier case because many political ob-
servers believe that, faced with abso-
lute proof, larg‘e numbers of Chileans
would find it impossible to continue
supporting a government that had
ordered a cold-blooded polltieal assas-
sination. .

The Letelier case s particularly

dangerous for Pinochet because of

his close connection to Contreras.
“Pinochet . might not have known
about . the Leteller murder, as the

.president has sald he did not” said

one lawyer who is not closely associ-
ated with either the government or
the opposition.’“But far fewer people
would believe him” if Contreras is in.

" dicted in'the United States.

After Propper returned to the
United States, the. Pinochet govern-
ment went on the offensive. On May
26, Interfor Minister Sergio Farnan-
dez issued 8 statement which said
there had ‘been “no precise objec-
tive” {for Propper's third .visit to
Santiago.

The statement suggested thati the’
investigator migt have had “ulterior
political” motives for personally com-
ing to Chile. The government sald the -
visit had contributed to an “artificial
climate with which Chile’s enemies
pretend to invovle our authorities”
in the Letelier case.

Persons familiar with the relation-
ship between Chilean and U.S. offi.
cials during the case said Chilean in-
vestigators have never directly ac-
cused the U.S. investigation of being
political and have treated Propper
and Cornick ag nonpolitical investi-
gators, -

Since the alleged involvement of
DINA officials has become public,
the Chilean government has begun
conducting a military inquiry into the
alleged Chilean involvement in the
plot. Chilean investigators have trav-
eled to Washington to gather informa-

tion for use in that Investigation, -

sources said.

The Fernandez statement also
stressed that Chile would continue co-
operating with U.S. authorltiea but,
according to informed sources in San-
tlago, the Chilean government has
failed to turn over several pieces of
information that Propper requested
during his trip there.

One source sald the government ap-
parently is withholding the informa-
tion, hoping that Propper ‘will be un-
able to obtain a grand jury indict-
ment without it. Other sources have
said, howeyer, that Contreras and the
ot:he'!""!'ii EINA officers will be in.
dicted even If the information re-
quested 18 not provided.
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Letelier Murder Also Nettlesome

Chile’s Military Still Stained
By Participation in Coup

By Jeremiah O'Leary.
Washington Star Staff Writer

.. SANTIAGO, Chile — Man for man,
the armed forces of Chile are re-
arded as the best in Latin America,
ut in recent years the code of honor
by which the nation’s soldiers are
governed has been under a cloud,
and the military has suffered.

The problem stems from the mili-
tary's role in the coup of 1973 and
from the murder of Orlando Letelier.

An experienced diplomat ex-

lained the state of mind of the Chi-

n armed forces this way:

“Every officer who graduates
from the military academy here is
made to swear a most sacred oath on.
the hilt of his sword to protect not the

people or the rresident. but the con- -

stitution of Chile.

“When the order came on Septem-
ber 11 five years ago to attack the
elected
Salvador Allende, there was no ques-
tion of disobedience. C

“No order in the chain of com-

mand is questioned. But it was trau-
matic for the Chilean officers
because the order for the uprising
amounted to forcing them to violate
theiroath. - ... -. . .
**And that is a’Serious matter to
Chilean officers. 1 think many of
thefn decided that if they had to sully
their honor, a lot of other people were
.going to sufter with them.? .

THAT EXPLANATION makes

more sense than aﬂ ome: of the vio-

dent attack on La 8, the presi-
dential palace, the arrest and impris-
onment of thousands, the deaths of
an upknown number of Chileans, the
disappearances, the curfew and the
rigor of the rule imposed on' 10 mil-
lion Chileans by the armed forces. * -
It may even be a partial explana-
tion of how Chilean officers ~could
have been involved in the bomb-mur-
der of the former foreign minister,
Letelier, in Washington and perhaps
other murders committed by DINA,
the secret police organization.

government of President

-and Capt.

the United States on the expulsion of
Michael V. Townley in the Letelier
plot and has his own inquiry going
against the Chilean officers involved.

The police still make political ar-
rests and clean out small leftist cells.
But their actions do not approach the
magnitude of the mass seizures of
1973 when people were jailed by the

. thousands in open-air stadiums.

And Pinochet retired his closest
friend, the DINA chief, Gen. Manuel
Contreras Sepulveda, when the Le-
telier case began coming home to
roost.

The speculation here is that Chile

will prosecute the three army offi-

cers allegedly involved with Townley
in the Letelier assassination but
would never allow them to be extra-
dited to the United States. In fact, the
signs are that the United States is
cooperating with Chile so that Gen,
Hector Orozco, chief of intelligence,
can proceed with the Inquiry.

A HIGH-RANKING Chilean offi-
cial, who did not want his name used,
said the United States is sendin
Chile some of the evidence on whic
it has charged: Townley and five
Cuban exiles with consgiracy to com-
mit murder and which everyone in
Chile expects will lead to indictments
of Contreras, Lt. Col. Pedro Espinoza
( Armando Fernandez
Larios. '

Orozco, it was learned this week,
traveled to the United States in Arril
and was granted access to Townley,
who is in custody at a military base

- near Washington for his own safety.

Orozco's legal adviser, attorney
Miguel Schweitzer, has been to
Washington three times to see Town-
ley and to confer with Eugene Prop-
per, the assistant U.S. attorney han-
dling the case, and -FBl agents
investigatingit, .

Townley's Chilean wife, Mariana,
has been in Washington for the past
week to testify before a grand jury.
She-ie-<itpected to return to Santiago
Saturday. <



~Chile nas a uterate, miaaie-ciass,
Evropean soclety with-a long tradi-

“ tiow of\ democratic  ingtitutions that -

.-have-worked. !ﬁh’%ﬂundinﬂ.
perhaps like some paris ¢f Germany
in Hitler's heyday, n?ny “Chilegns
.could not bring themselves 10 believe
that their officers, their, DINA, ¢ould
commit such acts as the arranged
murder of Letelier, or the imprison-
ment of thousands and the disappear-
ance of 617 persons. Ve

It is a small country where people
tend to know about one another. It

- has been a great shock to the Chi-
leans to learn from the press, the
church and from each other that so
many atrocities were committed in
their name. :

Diplomats stationed here say that
the majority of the people still sup-
port the military junta headed by
Gen. Auygusto Pinochet or see no
alternative to-it. It is possible that
Pinochet enjoys more support from
the mass of the people than he does,
within the regime, where institu-
tional rivalries arerife,' " ° .-

The longer the Chileans tire in con-.
frontation with the United States
over the Letelier affair, the more dis-
turbed the Chileans become. There
are-even some signs of anti-Ameri-
canism here because it is the United
States that is pressing Chile the hard-
est to put its house in order on the
human rights issue, the Letelier case
and ultimately a return to democ-
racy.

TO SOME EXTENT, Pinochet has
modified the authoritarian nature of .
the regime. He has coqperated with

oy



Envoy to Chile
Reoam’ Ovei :
Letelwr Probe::

ByJohnM Goshko ".l‘*»"
and Timothy 8. Robinm
" Washington Post Btatt Writery

‘The United States, in a strong M
ture of disapproval, yesterday restiied
its ambassador to.Chllo becauss of - _
that coun%s t;uez‘ed "m to co-
operate e in n.
the 1976 murder here of Chilean mf.
sident Orlando Leteller, .

-LeteHer, an outspoken eritic of G\l—
le's military regime, and an Am
associate, Ronni K. Moffitt, were
killed on Sept. 21, 1978, when a homb
reniseion's Batesey Bow, o
' 's Bm .

In announcing the U.S, aeum, smc

Department spokesman John Tretinsr .
said: “Ambassador George W, Llndm
is ‘being recalled from Santiage for. -
consultations with the State and Jul- .
tice departménts. The Chilean authdr- "
itles have not been forthcoming .od
important requests for information a*
the Letelier-Moffitt murder case pend.
ing by the Justice Department fer.
some time,”

The United States has said the mw-
ders were planned in Chile by the fer-
mer Chllean secret police agemcy, .
DINA, and earried out here by DINA ™
agents in collaboration with md-Clq- ;
tro Cuban exiles.

Under U.8, pressure Chils
an  American citizen, Michael y
Townley, who is now in cultodym
and who hag admitted being the DINA"
agent who -placed tho bonb yagder
Letelier's car, L

Townley also reportedly has tmpla
cated in the plot three Chilean army

officers who were assigned to DINA,~ o

Gen. Manuel Contreras Sepulveda, re -
tired former chief of DINA and & - .
close friend of Chilean President Au- - -
gusto Pinochet; Lt. Col. Pedro E&pb v
noza, former DINA operations ¢ . .
and Capt. Armando Fernandez e
who reportedly worked with wanlq, L
iﬁ;ﬂmﬂ the bomb devige te. W-h X

O w’ Lo
" Trattner refused to dilcuu tho
ture of the U.S. requests that th.
Chileans allegedly have not honored.’.
However, rellable sources said the .
most important was a request that &'
key witness—apparently a DINA ﬂﬁ.w
ervisor of Townley-—either comp 3‘"
the United States to testify before .
a federal grand jury or allow himsel!
to be guestioned by U.s ofﬂehk h’~ :

a third country.

In addition, the sources ldd\t‘bc
United States feels Chile has not’ #
operated in efforts to obtaln informa.
tion from the government of Pl'l-j“
guay about an attempt that was made . -~
there to obtain U.S, vh.!nr‘rwnlq .
and Larios under false names. = ' . -~

Other sources l%ﬁ' decision ¢ °

_.See CHILE, All W 2



S. Recalls Ambassador to Santiago,

Cites Chile’s Failure to Aid in Probe

CHILE, From Al

recall Landau — a step that stops jus_t
short of breaking diplomatic relations
— was made jointly by Deputy Secre-

tary of State Warren M. Christopher.

and Fugene M. Propper, the assistant
U. 8. attorney heading the murder
probe for the Justice Department.

However, the sources revealed, Jus-
tice Department officials were sur-
prised and angered by the way in
which the State Department, in an-
nouncing the recall, seemed to link it
to controversies about humar rights
in Chile.

The Pinochet government, which
took power in a bloody 1973 coup that
included the killing of Marxist Presi-
dent Salvador Allende, has been ac-
cused of murdering, torturing and im-
prisoning its opponents. Letelier had
served in the Allende government as
defense minister and as ambassador
to Washington.

When Trattner announced that Lan-
dau‘was returning to Washington, he
added: “Ambassador Landauw’s visit
will also give us a chance to review
the human rights situation in Chile.”

Under questioning by reporters,
Trattner also said that a shipment of

practice bomb parts for the Chilean -

air’ fgrce, which has been held up in
Califo¥pia because West Coast long-
shorem refuse to load them aboard
a ship, net be loaded while this

- assessment of the human rights situa-

tion is going on.”

t-h B

' GEORGE W. LANDAU
_+«.to consult with State, Justice

Justice sources protested privately .

that State had acted improperly in

‘ leaving the impression that the hu- .

man rights and murder investigation
questions were tied together.

By so doing, these sources said, the
State Department had undermined
Justice’s contention that it is inter-
ested only in bringing the murderers
to trial and not in Chile’'s internal pol-
itics. There recently -have been esca-
lating chages within Chile that Wash-

ington is using the murder probe as a’

pretext to topple the Pinochet govern-
ment.

Reliable sources said thie decision to

include the language about reviewing

the Chilean human rights situation in
State’s public. announcement was
made by Christopher, who oversees
human rights policy within the State
Department.

However, the sources were unable
to explain why Christopher, who is a
former deputy attorney general, felt
the two issues should be linked or
whether he had checked thi: move
with Justice.”

Chilean Foreign Minister Hernan
Cubillos, who is in Washington attend-
ing the annual meeting of the Organi-
zation of American States, responded
to the announcement of Landau’s re-
call by charging that the United
States was not cooperating with
Chile’s own internal investigationof
the Letelier affair.

Another Chilean government
source, who declined to be identified,
said’ the Pinochet government had
been informed of the decision to re-
call Landau last week. Yesterday’s an-
nouncement, the source charged, had

UGENE M. PROPPER
. heads Justice Department’s probe

been timed to embarrass Chile in thc
midst of the OAS meeting. :

In addition to Townley, five other
persons, all Cuban exiles, have been

charged so far in connection with the
Letelier assassination plot. Three are
in custody in the United States, and
two others are fugitives.

All of the Cuban exiles ar to,
be members of the Cuban Nat:;u!alist
Movement, based in nort New
Jersey. .



HOW AN EX-CHII.EAN DIPI.OMAT WAS KILLED IN D.C.

. By Jeremish O’Leary
AT Waskingtoa Star Staff Writer
NEWARK N.J. — When Michael Vernon Town-
% arrived in New York from Chile in September
he seemed an usremarkable traveler.
Sandy-hanr well-dressed, - Enghsh-speakl
men in their 30s do not attract attention at John
Ket International Airport.
ley was on a grim mission.

ng to the FBI,-although Townley is an
ican citizen he was on assignment
!DINA, the Chilean military government’s secret

AR A

| police, to kill leftist: former Clnlean Foreign Minis-

, ter Orlando Letelier.

. He brought some of his equipment with hlrn
. “electric matches’ or blastmi caps used to set off
explosxves. the FBI says, and he knew he could get

Jersey-New York area.

Souht by FBl in Letelier Slaying

The rest of the things he needed to blow up, L}- tioning by
Jnamnte from anti-Castro Cuban activists in the telier’s car in Washington, I).C., were availabie in Lawrence Barcella before U.S. Magistrate Serena

the nauon s capital, the FBI noted.

HEFOR%N Aﬁl. SeptMZI 1976, Letglie:'1 arda
colleaguwe, Rorni Karpen Moffitt, were dead. They
were killed when a powerful bomb exploded u‘nder
Letelier’s car in morning rush hour- trafflq htj
Washington’s Sheridan Circle.

Yesterday FBI Special Agent Carter +
testified to these and other details of the @
murder in court here: It was the first time th: gov-
ernment disclosed much of its case against Town-
ley, five Cuban exiles and an undisclosed number
of Chilean officials the United States says were m-;
volved in the conspiracy to kill Letelier. -

The ecsasion was a sought by:

ro per ta

Asgsistant U.S. Attorney Eugene M.
transfer ome of the Cwban suspects,

- [Dims, to federal custody in Washington.

According to Cornick’s testimony, under ques-ﬁ
opper and Assistant U.S. Atterney E;

See szsusn A-l
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*-Suarez joined them )
- stayed in Washington and tried to
confirm the surveillance of Letelier,

-~ Phrretti, Townley constructed the

bomb and attached it under the front
seat of Letelier's car while it was
parked near his Bethesda, Md., home.
The bomb was triggered, Cornicks-

said, by Jose Dionisio Suarez, a’

Cuban exile sought by the FBI.

CORNICK'S TESTIMONY was
largely based on the account Town-
ley, 36, allegedly has given FBI
agents of the conspiracy and how it
was carried out.

There was no mention yesterday of
the so-called ‘‘Chilean connection,”

,,:l:‘:ce t that Townley was assisted in
e

nited States by Chilean Army
Capt. Armando Fernandez Larios. .
he Atestimon{‘did not say who au-
thorized the DINA agents to murder
Letelier.
As Cornick reconstructed the
events of the murder, Townley ar-
rived at JFK airport Sept. 9, 1976,

Cubans, Virgilio Paz, and asked to
meet with him, The two men had
known one another from a previous
relationship, Cornick testified,

The special agent testified that Paz
and Townley met somewhere in the
Newark area. Townley indicated

what his mission was and asked to be

put in touch with some members of
the Cuban nationalist movement,
Cornick said.

PAZ, ACCORDING TO the testi-
mony, arranged for Townley to meet

'with Suarez, Guillermo Novo Sampol

and himself at the Chateau Renais-
sance, a local motel, on Sept. 11 or 12.
It was at this meeting, the govern-
ment contends, that the conspiracy
became an active scheme. Townley

'told Paz, Novo and Suarez of his plan

to assassinate Letelier and requested
their assistance.

including his routes to and from

o ¥hork. as carried out by Fernandez.

.and immediately called one of the

ey also bought other parts that
ing the bomb.”

Since Townley brought the electric
matches with him from Chile and ob-
tained the dynamite from the Cubans
in Newark, all he needed were bat-
teries and a receiver to set off the
explosion. But there was no testi-
mony introduced to give all details of
where the bomb parts came from.

Cornick testified that Townley has
admitted the bomb was constructed
by himself and Paz, but that Townley
himself placed the bomb in position
under Letelier’s car. Paz and Suarez
accompanied him to the Letelier
neiﬁhborhood for the actual placing
of the bomb, Cornick said.

~ AS SOON AS THE bomb was in
place, Townley left Washington so as
to be elsewhere when the bomb was
detonated, Cornick said. That left
Paz and Suarez in Washington on
Sept. 21 when the fatal blast oc-
curred. -

“Did Towoley tell you which of
them triggered the explosion?”

- asked attorney Paul Goldberger,

Ross also was present at the meet- |

‘ing but Cornick said Townley has not

mentioned anything that Ross may

_have said then.

Townley, who is being held for his

" own safety at a military base near
:-Washington, told Cornick of his inten-

tions and received agreement of the

Cubans to help two days later, about

Sept. 13 or 14, .
eanwhijle a fellow DINA officer,

. Fernandez, was in Washington, and
X Townley has told the FBI that Fer-
- nandez’ role was to maintain 2/sur-

veillance of Letelier’s comings and
goings so that the plotters coufid work
out a timetable.

“TOWNLEY SAID HE and Paz

"‘went to Newark where the; obtained

the TNT on. Sept. 15, the FBI agent

" testified. ““Then Townle; and Paz
a

2’ Volvo.

drove to Washington in
They

later.

representing Diaz.

‘He said he didn’t know which but
he had a pretty good idea,” Cornick
testified. ‘‘He told us he had talked to
Paz at his home and he concluded, as
;: l;ave. that Suarez triggered the

mb."”

B ———

Ironically, Suarez was questioned
by a federal grand jurr hery, last
spring and was sent to jall for ndgrly
a year when he refused to ansWyer
questions despite a grant of im-
munity, Less than two months ago,
federal officials had to release
Suarez because the life of the grand
jugly had expired.

ownley, a 20-year-resident of
Chile, was ideologically attuned to
the military regime there and be-
came an activist against the leftist
overnment of Salvador Allende be-
Jore joining DINA.

PROPPER AND Cornick escorted
Townley to the United States from
Chile when he was expelled by the .
Santiago government under heavy
U.S. pressure and then was charged
with conspiracy to murder a foreign
diplomat. Since his arrival in the
gnited Stat;l.th'rovlv?rggy har'yth told

ropper an e everything
about the plot but no details have’
been released about which Chilean
higher-ups may have been involved.

agistrate Perretti agreed to the
transfer of Ross to federal custody in
Vluhinﬁton, and in about a week
Ross will be brought to District Jail
by U.S. marshals,

Indictments against t tive
Cubans, Townley and an utgnown
number of Chileans are expected to
be returned by.the grand jury

inYate
June or early July.

- —



Halt in Arms for Chile
Is Passed and Reversed

By John M, Goshko
Washington Poust Staff Writer

The House yesterday voted to halt U.S. arms
shipments to Chile until the government there
surrenders three men indicted' in the murder
of former Chilean ambassador Orlando Letelier.
Then, after protests from the Justice Depart
wment, the House reversed itself.

The confusing sequence of events stemmed
Irom Tuesday’s action by a federal grand jury,
which indicted eight persons in connection
with the 1975 car-bombing deaths of Letelier
ind an American friend, Ronni K. Moffitt, as
‘hey drove through Washington’s Embassy Row.

Among those indicted were Gen. Juan Man-
il Contreras Sepulveda, former head of the
Zhilean secret police (DINA), and two DINA

mployes, Pedro Espinoza Bravo and Armando . -
Wernandez Larios. Contreras, a close associate. °

4

of Chilean President Augusto Pinochet, is be.

lieved to be the first high-ranking forefgn in.
telligence official indicted in this country.

Yesterday, as the House was congidering the
fiscal 1979 foreign military ald bill, Rep.
Thomas R. Harkin (D-Iows), an outspoken
human-rights advocate, introduced an amend-
ment calling for the cutoff of all, arma ghip-
ments to Chile until the three are extradlted
to the United States.

Congress halted military assistance to Chile
in 1976 to protest alleged repression and rights
abuses by ghe Pinochet government. However,
an estimated $24 million in so-called plpeline
shipments — equipment purchased or con-
tracted for before the cutoff—has been con-
tinuing.

The Harkin mendment called for halting all

Soe ARMS, Al5, Cel. 1
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Pinochet:
US. Must
Show Proof

Chilean S.tresses
Barriers Facing
Extradition of 3

. By Charles A. Krause
Washingten Post Forelgn Service

SANTIAGO, Chile — President
Augusto Pinochet, reacting sharp- .
ly to the U. S. indictment of three
Chilean secret police officers for
murder, said yesterday that these
were merely accusations and extra-
dition will require presentatlon of .
proof.

Asked if the action against Chile’s
former secret police chief and two
gover_nment * an et deffau.e“; by
clared: “Absolutely not”” He ‘Hlso
chastised State-Department ‘dffictals, *
saying they “are “‘invplved in, things .
tl:iev have no business gémng mvolwg
ed in.”

Pinochet insisted in a meeting
with reporters that he expects U.S.
requests for extradition to be handled -
in conforfnity with Chilean law" lnd
international commitments, It ‘Was -
widely felt here, however, that he
does not expect the three accused to
be delivered to Washington for trial.

The key responsibility for extradi-
tion falls ynder the jurisdiction of;
Chile’s Supreme Court and Pi,n%"-
made it clear that he does nqt;intend
to supersede that. procesu“by ‘person-,
ally ordering that t,hs three be put in
U.S. hands. -

Extraditjon, procedures are ‘spelled
out in 81802 treaty hetween Chile and
the, Yhtited States. The Supreme
G rt ‘which is officially indepengd nt
of the military gevernment, s nohe.
theless thought to be lnﬂuénced by it.

The' Supreme Court, even in’ the
days when it ‘!ung:tieﬁed ‘itnder demo-
cratfe govern hts, rarely bas
granted .pxtridition of Chilean citi?.
zens, Fythermore, the U.S.Chiléan:

ition treaty makes it clear that
times of “a political .chifacter” are,
not extraditable offense

At the ,aame‘time however, assassi-

natz%&@nd murder are crimes for
extradition may he granted, an
) yparent contradiction which lawyers
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Halt in Arms to Chile Voted, Then Reversed
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.material in the pipeline until the
‘three have been extradited by Chilean
authorities. After an emotional debate
in which House member after mem-
ber took the floor to denounce
Chilean “death squads,” the amend-
ment was adopted by voice vote.
-But, when word of the House’s

ction got out, it sparked an immedi- .

aie: protest from the Justice Depart-
shitpt on the grounds that it was pre-
mature and inappropriate. The .de-
partinent then instructed its congres-
slonal liaison officers to begin con-
gcting members of the House to
-nke known its obections.
“XRebert Keuch; deputy assistant at
torney general in the criminal divi-
sion, said in a telephone interview last
night:
~ “We feel such an action is improp\er
at the present time because the for-
t to Chile for extradition

Pinochet: U.S. Must Prove /

CHILE, From Al
battle that is expected once the
United States formally ssks for the
extradition of the. three former secret
police officers charged with the mur-
der of Chilean exile Orlando Letelier
two year ago in Washington. )

If extradition is” not granted, an-
other treaty signed by . both the
United States and Chile provides that
Chile has the, obligation to. try the ac-

cused here if the accusations against _

them, are considered to be cnmu un-
der Chilean law. * ~

Pinochet has denied since the day
Letelier was assassinated that he had
any personal or prior knowledge of
the affair. He has continued to main-
tain'that his government had nothing
todo withit.

The Chilean prendcnt pomted out

hasn’t been made yet, and there is no
sign at this point that the Chilean ju-
dicial process will not be forthcoming
in meeting the request for extradi-
tion.” a
Keuch said the extradition papers
probably will be filed within the next
two weeks, and added that it’s likely
to take some time before the matter is
decided by the Chilean courts. He said
Justice was aware of news agency re-
ports from SantiaZo quoting Pinochet
as saying there: was some doubt. about

‘whether the three Chilean nationals’

will be extradited.

But, Keuch added, the interests of
justice require that the appropriate
legal channels be used and given an
opportunity to work without actions
that could be construed as undue po-
litical interference.

Privately, other Justice Department
sources said actions like the House
amendment could seriously impede ef-

again yesterday that the charges
hrought against the three former offi-
cers—Gen. Manuel Contreras Se-
pulveda, former head of the National

Directorate of Intelligence (DINA),

Pedro Spinoza Brave, former director
de operationes at DINA( and Armando
Fernandez Larios, a DINA agent who

. allegedly helped carry out the murder

—do not constitute proof of their

guilt under the T.S. system of justice.
" Since it became publicly known sev--

eral months ago that Contreras was
under investigation, -there bas been
widespread speculation here about
whether or not Pinochet would have
known about the assassination if it
was in fact carried out at the instruc-
tion of Contreras—a personal friend
of Pinochet's who reported directly to

forts to bring the tb.ree Chileans to
trial, because it could be cited within
Chile as an interference by Congress
in its internal affairs and a politically
inspired maneuver to topple the Pino-
chet government, _

The arguments made by the Justice
Department apparently had considera-
ble impact within the House. Late in
the afternoon, Rep. Charles E. Wig-
gins (R-Calif.) moved to reconsider the
Harkin amendment, and, on that go-
around, it was overturned on a roll-
call vote, 243 to 166. ’

In the indictment, Contreras and
Espinoza, DINA operations supervi-
sor, were charged with plotting: the as-
sassination of Letelier, an outspoken
foe of the Rinochet government. Fer-
nandez Larios was named as being
one of two DINA agents—the other

being an- Ameriean citizen, Michael V.-

Townley—who c¢ame to the United
States to carry out the pjot in:cooper-
ation with militant Cuban exiles.

Its Case to Get Extradition

the president during his years as head
of DINA.

It is generally believed here that
only Pinochet and Contreras know for
sure what the Chilean president knew
before and after the assassination oc-
curred near Sheridan Circle in Wash-
ington. Contreras’ extradition and
trial in the United States could prove
extremely dangerous for the current
Chilean government, according to
_many observers in Santiago.

Supperters of Pingchet argue. thlt
he would never.have ordered the ex-
pulsion 0 the United States of Mi-
chael Townley last April if he had
suspected that DINA was invelved-in
murdering- Letelier. Townley, an
American who worked for. DINA; has-
admitted his part in actually earrying
out the Letelier assassination and has
provided - mueh of the evidence

against Contreras, Espinoza and Fer:.

nandez.

The Chilean government announced

Tuesday night that it had placed the
*Three Chileans under arrest after the
United States formally asked for
their detention pending the formal
request for extradition. -

The U.S.-Chilean treaty provides for.
the arrest and detention of accused
persons. for a period of two months
when extradition is contemplated.

Pinochet stressed the two-month in-
vitation yesterday in calling for proof
of the charges.

Although the indictment of the
three Chileans had been predicted for
some time, the action of the grand
jury in Washington on Tuesday has
met with intense interest here.
Groups gathered around newspaper
kiosks reading newspaper headlines
about the Letelier case.

Nonetheless, none of Chile’s offi-

cially banned political parties issued
statements or otherwise indigeted re-
action to the indict s—which
some politicians were saying until re-
cently could lead to the end of the
military government.

|
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By 'Bimotlly St Robinson -

Washingten Post Staff Writer
.After a 22month iavestigation, a
federal grand jury here yesterday in-
dicted the former head of Chile’s se-
cret police (DINA) and seven others

in the bombing death of former Chi- -

+

the Umzed Stat ] were charged by the’

+ grand jury with plotting, carrying out

.

. outspoken’ critk:. of the
- ernment at ‘the time. The explosion
-that ripped through Leteler's 1875

lean ambassador Orlando Letelier on °

Washington's Embassy Row.’

“The indictment of Gen. Juan Man- '

wel Comtreras Sepulveda, a close 2550-
ciate of Chilean President Augusto Pi-

nochet, was believed to be the first

ever returned in the United States

against a high official of a foreign
oouniry’s intelligence agency.
Cortreras, twé DINA operatives in

~

and covering up the September 1876
murder. of -Letelier, a prominent and
ean gov-

Chevelle also killéd an’aide, Ronni K.

. Mofiitt, and injured her. buxba'nd

‘The Chilean’ government last mkht
announced the “arrest ‘of Contrerns and

‘two other Chileans named in the in-
> dictment, D

A operatigns  director
Pedro Espingza Bravo and DINA agent
Armando Fernandez Larjos.

In a statement issued l‘y ‘Interior
Minister Sergio Fernandez, Chile said

¢ all three had been placed under military
Ctile 2nd five Cuban exiles living in |

detention at an undisclosed location.

The Clnleau statemept came hours

after Assistant U.S. Attol'ney Eugene
M. Propper reported that' the Ubited
States government would ask for the
arrest and jailing for extradmon of the
three. But the request for -extradition
was expecied to touch off a complicated
legal proceedings,
AlQ).

The mdlctment accuses Espinoza of
ordermg the assassination during a

meeting in Chile and Fernandez of -

coming to the United States to spy on
Letelier. s that the assassins would

" know when to strike.

The Cubans, .members of the New
Jersey-based Cuban Nationalist Move-
ment, a militant anti-Castro group,

(Details . on Page, .

) 1ght Indlcted in Letelier Sla mg

dre accused of helpmg to carty out
the bombing.

The 15-page indictment was explie-

itly detailed because of the coopera-
tion with U.S, autherites of American-

" born DINA agent Michael V. Townley,

who has agreed to plead gmlty to
planting the bomb.

The indictment outlines with preci- -
- sion the alleged plot that resulted in

" the 9:30 a.m. blast on Sept. 21, 1978,

S

on the placid Sheridan Circle area of
embassies, chanceries and dlplomats
homes.

Letelier was killed- mstantly when
the bomb atop the A-frame of his car
ripped up through the floorboards un-
der his legs as he drove around the
circle. He was on his way to work at

i

»
L]
v

the\lnsﬁtute for-Policy Sttuﬂes, where
he had become internationally known
for his outspoken criticism of the Chi-

’lean military regune

Ronni Moffitt was ‘sitting on the
passenger's side-of the front seat. She .
died a few seconds after the blast as
she staggered from the shattered,

burning car.*Her husband, and IPS co-

worker, Michael Mottitt,
slight injuries. . .

The Letelier car came to rest
against a Volkswagen parked within
100 yards of the Chilean ambassador’'s
residence, and set the stage for a mas-

* See LETELIER, Al16, Col. 1 -

Backgrounds of the principals in the
Letelier indictments, Page All

suffered

[

' ORLANDO LETELIER
* .+« ¢ victim of 1976 bombing
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Eight Are Indicted in Letelie

LETELIER, From A1

sive worldwide FBI' investigatiorr into
the first diplomatic assassiyfation
here, . C

Leteliet's coworkers, and dthers in
leftist - cipeled, immediately” accused
DINA; at the time the focus of allegs-
tions of massive human rights. viola-
tions and borture of political. prisoners,

of the bombing. - They said DINA-

was concerned about the ‘eontinuing
attentign that Letelier was able to fo-
cus on the Pinochet regime, and sl-
lenced him for thgt reason. , .. -

The FBI, with help from the D.C.
Police Department, began the ipten-
sive 1ab work and search of the bomh
scene. Its. agents began the Iiyst of

thousands of Interviews, weeding out”

the possibility of domestic plots and
other suspects before focusing on po-
litical motivations. s

The Justice Department worked out
careful alliances with the State De-
partment and the Central Intelligence
Agency to. allow - their.. cooperation
with the investigation.  Within a
faonth of the blast, the investigation
was centered on the Cuban National-
ist Movement and the allegation by a
jailed international terrorigt that two
CNM members—Ignacio Novo Sampol
anf Guillermo Novo Sampol—were in-
volved in the plot, :

The Novos, known for their firing
of a bazooka at the United Nations in
1964 when Che Guevara was speaking
there, were brought betore the grand
jury and questioned. Yesterday's in-
dictment accuses them of committing
perjury when they told that grand
jury that they did not know anything
about Letelier, DINA or the slaying.

A few months later, another Cuban
Nationalist Moverhent leader, Jose
Dionisio Suarez Esquivel, was called
before the same grand jury and
granted immunity from prosecution if
he would testify about his alleged in-
volvement in the plot. He refused, and

as jailed for contempt of court for

1 months until that particular grand
jury’s term expired this year.

In February 1978, prosecutor Prop-
per and lead FBI agent L. Carter Cor-
nick decided to make a public request
to Chile that the country produce for
questioning two men who had trav-
eled to the United States on official
Chilean passports and had met with
Cuban suspects in the plot.

Chile denied the existence of the
twe men, but after The Washington
Star obtained and published the pho-
tographs of the men they were
quickly identified as DINA agents
Townley and Fernandez.

The United States was able to pres-
sure Chile into turning Townley—an
American citizen who grew up in
Chile while his father headed a U.S.
auto firm there—over to them. Once
he arrived in the United States, Town-
ley agreed to plead guilty to one count
of comspiracy to murder Letelier. He
spent day after day telling FBI agents
and prosecutors the additional details
they needed to charge others in the
plot. -

According to the indictment re-
turned yesterday, the plot began in

July 1976 when DINA chief Contreras’
asked the Paraguayan military intelli-

gence service director to authorize the
issuancé of Paraguayan passports for
two DINA agents to use on an unspec-
ified secret mission to the United
States.

Contreras then ordered Fernandez
to go to Paraguay to meet with that
country’s military intelligence agency
in connection with a two-man mission,
about which Espinoza would give him
more details, the indictment said.

Espinoza gave false indentification

_méterials to Fernandez for the Para-
. Busyan trip to pick up the passports,
..and Fernandez called Townley to ar-
. range for Esplnoza to meet him, ac-
1 eording to the indictment.

At a second meeting that month, Es-
pinoza told Townley that he and Fer-
nandez “were heing ordered to go to
the United States on a DINA mission
to assassinate Orlando Letelier,” the
indictment stated.

After the fwo men obtained Para-
guayan passports, Contreras ordered
Fernandez to travel to the United
States in August on a DINA mission,
the indictment alleges, and Espinoza
gave him a" ticket to the United
States, where Fernandez and another
DINA agent arrived on Aug. 26 to be-
gin surveillance of Letelier, .

On Sept. 7, 1976, according to the in-
dictment, Espinoza sent Townley to
the United tes to “carry out the

MICHAEL MOFFITT
.+ . “we feel vindicated”

Envoy Motel on New York Avenue
NE.

Sept. 18—Paz, Suarez and Townley.

" constructed the bomb in a Washing-

previously discussed mission to assas- -

sinate Orlando Letelier.”

Townley, using a passport in the
name of Hans Petersen Silva, arrived
at Kennedy International Airport on
Sept. 9 and got the Letelier surveil-
lance information from Fernandez, the
indictment said. :

Then, according to the indictment,
the following acts occurred over the
next two weeks:

Sept. 9—Townley, driving an Avis
rental car, went to New Jersey to
meet with CNM leader Virgilio Paz
Romero and asked him to set up a
meeting with Guillermo Novo.

Sept. 10 — Townley met in New Jer-
sey with Guillermo Novo and Suarez
and “requested their assistance” in
lllll DINA orders to assassinate Lete-

fer.

Sept. 13 — Townley outlined the
Letelier murder plot to members of
the governing council of the CNM
during a meeting at the Chateau Ren-
alssance motel in North Bergen, N.J.
Alvin Ross Diaz, another CNM leader,
joined the others at this meeting.

Sept. 15 — Guillermo Novo and
Suarez  gave Townley and Paz explo-
sives and a remote-control detonating
device,

Sept. 16 — Paz and Towuley drove
to the District and checked into a Hol--
iday Inn in Northeast Washington. .

Sept. 17 — Additional wires and
other elements of a bomb were pur-

ton motel room.

Sept. 19—In the early morning
hours, Paz, Suarez and Townley drove
to Letelier's house in Bethesda, and
Townley crawled under the car and
strapped the bomb into place.

Sept. 19—Townley called his wife,
Mariana Ines Callegas de Townley,
who also was a DINA agent, in Santi-
ago to have her tell DINA the bomb
was in place.

Sept. 19——Townley flew back to ﬁew '

Jersey and was picked up by Ross.
They met with Guillermo Novo, and
Townley {lew to Miami. ’

Sept. 21—The bomb exploded, and
investigators surmised it was deto-
nated by Suarez, the only member of

"the assassination team remaining in

Washington. Later that day, Townley
called Ignacio Novo in Florida and
Novo told him that “Something had
happened in the Distriet of Colum-
bia.” Novo and Townley met in Flo-

“ rida, where Novo was briefed on the

chased by Paz and Townley at a Sears .
Roebuck and Co. store in Northeast -

Washington,

Sept. 18 — Novo, Suarez and Ross
got additional bomb parts in New Jer-
sey, and Suarez drove fo the District
of Columbia to join Paz and Townley.

| ly

mission.

Sept. 23—Townley flew back to
Chile from Florida.

Sept. 24—“Within the Republic of
Chile, Michael Townley advised Pedro
Espinoza that the DINA mission to as-
sassinate Orlando Letelier had been
carried out,” the indictment states.

The indictment specifically charges
the three Chileans and four of the Cu-
bans—all but Ignacio Novo—with con-
spiracy to murder Letelier and the
murder of Letelier under federal stat-
utes, murder of Letelier under local
statutes, murder of Moffitt under
Jocal statutes, and murder by use of
explosives under federal statute. Each
count carries a possible life sentence.

Guillermo Novo and Ignacio Novo
are charged with two counts each of
ing to a grand Jury, and Ignacie

Suarez registered at the Best Western | NOvo was charged with failing to tell

law enforcement authorities about the

, crime after it occurred—a federal

Ali

yes
for

his
ent
ves
of
ingt
mer
Asgi
Bar
will
Jud;
R«

Now:
Lete
tody

their

T Als
Wash:
Meye:



-’

e Indicted in Letelier Slaying

July 1876 when DINA chief Contreras

asked the Paraguayan military intelli-

gence service director to authorize the
issuance of Paraguayan passports for
two DINA agents to use on an unspec-
ified secret mission to the United
States, <
Contreras then ordered Fernandez
to go to Paraguay to meet with that
country’s military intelligence agency
in connection with a two-man mission,
about which Espinoza would give him
more detalls, the indictment said.

Espinoza gave false indentification

mhterials to Fernandez for the Para-
guayan trip to pick up the passports,
and Fernandez called Townley to ar-
range for Espinoza to meet him, ac-
cording to the indictment.

At a second meeting that month, Es-
pinoza told Townley that he and Fer-
nandez “were being ordered to go to
the United States on a DINA mission
to assassinate Orlando Letelier,” the
indictment stated.

After the two men obtained Para-
guayan passports, Contreras ordered
Fernandez to travel to the United
States in August on a DINA mission,
the indictment-alleges, and Espinoza
gave him a ticket to the United
States, where Fernandez and another
DINA agent arrived on Aug. 28 to be-
gin surveillance of Letelier, .

On Sept. 7, 1876, according to the in-
dictment, Espinoza sent Townley to
the United States to “carry out the
previougly discussed mission to assas
sinate Orlando Letelier,”

Townley, using a passport in the
name of Hans Petersen Silva, arrived
at Kennedy International Airport on
Sept. 9 and got the Letelier surveil-
lance information from Fernandez, the
indictment said.

Then, according to the indictment,
the following acts occurred over the
next two weeks:

Sept, 8-Townley, driving an Avis
rental car, went to New Jersey to
meet with CNM leader Virgilic Paz
Romero and asked him to set up a
meeting with Guillermo Novo.

Sept. 10 — Townley met in New Jer-
.ey with Guillermio Novo and Suarez
ind “requested their assistance” in
iis DINA orders to assassinate Lete-
jer.

Sept, 13 — Townley outlined the
etelier murder plot to- members of
1e governing councll of the CNM
uring a meeting at the Chateau Ren-
issance motel in North Bergen, N.J.
Jvin Ross Diaz, another CNM leader,
)ined the others at this meeting.
Sept. 15 — QGuillermo Novo and
1arez gave Townley and Paz explo-
ves and a remote-control detonating
wice,

Sept. 16 — Paz and Townley drove

the District and checked into a Hol-
ay Inn in Northeast Washington. -

Sept. 17 -- Additional wires and
ser elements of a bomb were pur-

ased by Paz and Townley at a Sears

wbuck and Co. store in Northeast
yshington,

3ept. 18 — Novo, Suarez and Rosg

¢ additional bomb parts in New Jer-

«, and Suarez drove to the District

Columbia to joia Paz and Townley.

arez registered at the Best Western

'MICHAFL MOFFITT
v “we feel vindicated”

Envoy Motel on New York Avenue
NE.

Sept. 18—Paz, Suarez and Townley.
constructed the bomb in a Washing-
ton motel room. .

Sept. 18—In the early moming
hours, Paz, Suarez and Townley drove
to Leteligr's house in Bethesda, and
Townley crawled under the car and
strapped the bomb into place.

Sept. 19—Townley called his wife,
Mariana Ines Callegas de Townley,
who also was a DINA agent, in Santi-
ago to have her tell DINA the bomb
was in place.

Sept. 19—Townley flew back to New
Jersey and was picked up by Ross.

They met with Guillermo Novo, and

Townley flew to Miami.

Sept. 21—The bomb exploded, and
investigators surmised it was deto-
nated by Suarez, the only member of
the assassination team remaining in
Washington. Later that day, Townley
called Ignacio Novo in Florida and
Novo told him that “Something had
happened in the District of Colum-
bia.” Novo and Townley met in Flo-

" rida, where "Novo was briefed on the
mission. i

Sept. 23—Townley flew back to
Chile from Florida.

Sept. 24—“Within the Republic of
Chile, Michael Townley advised Pedro
Espinoza that the DINA mission to as-
sassinate Orlando Letelier had been
carried out,” the indictment states.

The indictment specifically charges
the three Chileans and four of the Cu-
bans—all but Ignacic Novo—with con-
spiracy to murder Letelier and the
murder of Leteller under federal stat-
utes, murder of Letelier under local
statutes, murder of Moffitt under
local statutes, and murder by use of
explosives under federal statute. Each
count carries a possible life sentence.

Guillermo Novo and Ignacio Novo.

. are charged with two counts each of
! lying to a grand jury, and Ignacie
| Novo-was charged with failing to tell
t law enforcement authorities about the
, crime after it occurred—a federal

charge known as misprision of a fel-
ony.

Yesterday's indictment before U.S.
District Chief Judge William B. Bryant
ended 22 months of often pessimistic
waiting by Michael Moffitt and others
who had closely watched the progress
of the {nvestigation.

Moffitt, 27, was sitting in his office
at the Institute for Policy Studies
when the official news of the indict-
ment arrived.

He said he was “satisfied, but there’s
still more to be done” in terms of see-
ing how diligent the United States
will be in making sure the charges
against the Chllean officials are tried.

“I hate.to say, ‘I told you so0,”
Moffitt said, but “we feel vindicated
(by the charges against DINA). We
knew who was responsible and we
never changed that.”

IPS staffers, whose leftist think
tank was 'infiltrated and otherwise
spied on by the FBI and police during
the antiwar years, early in the case
publicly doubted the willingness of
the FBI and other U.S. agencies to
solve a ctime against a leftist diplo-
mat such as Letelier.

“It was difficult for a while until

“there was some kind of trust—not

trust in the mushy sense, but respect,”
Moffitt said. He said FBI agent Cor-
nick and prosecutor Propper are
“decent people. Cornick is & damn
good cop . . . there are obviously good
cops {n the FBI and Carter Cornick is
one of them, We weren't trying to sell
them our whole political program.
We just wanted to see justice done.”

Moffitt said that he now lives “out
of a coffee cup and out of a beer glass
and it's no substitute for a marriage.
My work (anti-Chilean junta activities)
is my life because the junta was
responsible for the death of my wife.”

He and Ronni Moffitt had been
married for four months before the
bombing,

Letelier had been imprisoned by
the military regime after the fall of
Marxist Chilean president Salvador
Allende in a 1973 military coup. But
after his release from a one-year
prison term, he had returned to
Washington—where he bhad served
Allende as smbassador to the United
States-—and built up a strong follow-
ing in leftist political circles.

His wife, Isabel Letelier, was va-
cationing in Martha's Vineyard, Mass.,
yesterday and could not be reached
for comment.

U.S. Attorney Esrl J. Silbert and
his top aides, all of whom were pres-
ent when the indictment was brought
vesterday, praised the investigation
of the case by the FBI and its Wash-
ington field office. He also com-
mended the work by Propper and
Assistant U.S. Attorney E. Lawrence
Barcella Jr., the two prosecutors who
will try the case hefore U.S. District
Judge Barrington D. Parker.

Ross, lgnacioc Novo an Guillerme
Novo have already been arrested or
Letelier-related charges an are in cur
tody. Paz and Suarez are fugitive
and warrants have been lssued f
their arrest.

Also contnibuting to this story -
Washington Post staff writer Lawr
Meyer.
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By Timothy S. Robinson
Washington Post 8taff Writer

One of the first police officers to ar-

rive at the scene of the explosion’

watched the  debris still | floating
through the damp air to the ground
like ash from a campfire. He looked at
his watch and noted the time: 9:38
a.Jm. on Sept. 21, 1976.

Stately Sheridan Circle on Embassy
Row was soon filled with investigators
frpm the D.C. police, the FBI, the Ex-
ecutive Protective Service, which
guards diplomats and embassies here,
and the US. Treasury’s Alcohol, To-
bacco and Firearms unit, which inves-
tigates crimes involving explosives. As
smoke continued to rise from' the
ngangled Chevelle on the roadway of
the circle, the investigators scurried
to collect every possible bit of evi-
dence from the debris around it.

They shook tiny particles down
from tree leaves, drained a rain pud-
dle and strained its contents, vacu
umed debris from the grass, and un-
ceremoniously put ladders up against
embassy walls to search rooftops. By
the end of the gray, rainy day, thou-
sands of tiny plastic bags had been
filled with fragments that were taken
to an FBI laboratory for analysis.

. Painstaking work in the laboratory
produced the first clues to the nature
of the crime. The bomb had been
strapped with precision above the I-
béam of the Chevelle's frame so the
driver would be hit with the full force
of the blast. The high power of the ex-
pertly constructed explosive was
clearly intended to kill. And the fact
that it could have been detonated

remote control was further evi-
dence ‘of the sophistication of the
ctime.

~The next clue was the identity of
the target of the crime: Orlando Lete-
er, a former ambassador to the
Jnited States from the Chilean gov-
efnment of Marxist president Salva-
dor Allende and an outspoken oppo-
rent in exile of the current Chilean
president, Gen. Augusto Pinochet,
who overthrew Allende in 1973.

» ~Letelier had been working here at
the Institute for Policy Studies, a lib-
efal “think tank” that gave him a plat-
form for speeches and writings erit-
ifal of Pinochet's government and the
Chilean secret police, then known as
DINA.

“Two colleagues of Letelier’s were in
his Chevelle when it was blown apart
oh Sheridan Circle. One of them,
Ronni Moffett, who was riding along
sifle Letelier in the front seat, died
qdickly of a severed artery, Her hus-

bind, Michael, who was in the back -

seat, was thrown clear of the car and

survived. ’
‘Letelier's colleagues at IPS, which

itaelf had been infiltrated and spled

upon by informants for the FBI dur-

ing the anti-Vietnam war years, imme-
diately decided that DINA had mur
dered Letelier to shut him up. And,
because of disclosures of CIA involve-
ment against Allende in Chile, they
doubted the U.S. government’s. deter-
mination to find and bring Letelier’s
killers to justice if it meant embar-
réssing the Pinochet government.
Their suspicilons and anger grew
when they discovered that investiga-
tars, checking out every possible mo-
tive, were asking whether anything in
Lgtelier's and the Moffitts' private
lives might be connected to the kill-
injg.

“Asgistant U.S. Attorney Eugene M.
Pf-opper of the major crimes division
was sitting in the cafeteria in the fed-

eral .courthouse here that September
R e e atentinan nf the

ThemLetelie‘r Case: Mi

MICHAEL TOWNLEY
. . . decided to cooperate

Orlando Bosch—who was being held
in that country for the bombing of a
Cuban commerical airliner in which
73 persons died—had implicated “the
Novo brothers” in the Letelier case.
By the end of October 1977, the Novos
and other Cuban exiles were being
brought before a federal grand jury
here for questioning.

The Novo brothers—Ignacio Novo
Sampol and Guillermo Novo Sampol
—were known in the U.S. Cuban com-
munity and to federal agents as lead-
ers of the Cuban Nationalist Move-
ment, a group that wants to regain its
homeland without help from the
United States.

In 1964, they had fired a bazooka
from across the East River toward the
United Nations while Che Guevara
was speaking there. They were ar-
rested, but charges against thém were
dropped because they had nd¢ been
properly informed of their righth.

Ignacio Novo also had been chhrged
in the early 10708 in New Jersey with
an explosives-related case, according
to court records. And Guillermo Novo
was on probation for a 1974 conviction
in New Jersey in connection with a
plot to blow up a Cuban ship and
other property in Montreal.

The Cuban exile movement headed
by_ the Novos, who had been living in
this country for nearly two decades,

was considered extreme even by |

some other militant anti-Castro Cu-
bans. They eventually were “adopted”
in a sense by the rightists in the Pino-
chet government in Chile, according

to some sources, at a time when anti- |

Castro forces .here felt betrayed by
the U.S. government’s effort at rap-
prochement with the Fidel Castro gov-
ernment.

The government’s Cuban exile in-
formants were reluctant to. appear
before grand juries as witnesses. Po-
lice officers and FBI agents who had

Ju'led them for years were reluctant to
disclose even to other central investiga-

tors thg names of persons providing
them with information in the Letelier
case,

At the same time, in early 1977
U.S. investigators began checking the
foreign travels of some of the persons
whom they believed, based on infor-
mation from the Cuban exile infor-
mants, to be centrally involved in the
murdgr conspiracy. They also were
planning ways to put pressure on

some of those per i
SOme ol those persons so they might
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Henni Moffott, who was riding along
sife lLeteller in the iront seat, died
ydickly of a severed artery. Her hus

épt, was thrown clear of the car snd
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Letelier's colleagues at IPS, which
itself had been infiltrated and spied
ugion by Informants for the FBI dur-
ing the anti-Vietnam war years, imme-
diately decided that DINA had mur
dered Letelier to shut him up. Ahd,
because of disclosures of CIA involve-
ment against Allende in Chile, they
doubted the .U.S. government's. deter-
mination to find and bring Leteller’s
Killers to justice if it meant embar-
rassing the Pinochet government.
Their suspicions and snger grew
when they discovered that investiga-
tors, checking out every possible mo-
tive, were asking whether anything in
Léetelier’s and the Moffitts’ private
lives might be connected to the kill-
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ﬁ%d, Michael, who was in the back

Assistant U.S. Attorney Eugene M.
Propper of the major crimes division
wis sitting in the cafeteria in the fed-
erpl .courthouse here that September
mprning when the investigation of the

telier killing began. Propper had
just told friends at the table that two
pélice officers with whom he had an
appointment could not show up be-
cduse “some ambassador” had "been
killed when one of Propper's supervi-
sdrs came by and asked him to work
on the Letelier case.

JHis supervisors warned him that
sych crimes are among the most diffi-
cult to solve and prosecute and that
this one seemed particularly likely to
involve unpleasant politlcal pressures.
Bgt Propper, a prosecutor who had

already begun thinking of leaving the
" U;S. attorney’s office for private prac-.

tice, agreed to take the case anyway.

A few blocks away In the Washing-
top field office of the FBI, agent Car-
tet Cornick had been waiting for his
aspignment here to take shape after
his recent transfer from Puerto Rico.
‘When the Letelier bombing occurred,
Carnick was selected by FBI agent-in-
charge Nick F. Stames for the job be-
cause of Cornick’s availability, his
knowledge of Spanish, and his investi-
gations of other bombings in Puerto
Rico.

“Cornick Is an outgoing man de-
scended from several generations of
Virginians who is frequently given to
humor—traits not often expected in
the dry sterotype of FBI agents.

Propper and Cornick, whe had
never met before, wouid spend the
next 18 months on the unusually
painstaking and often frustrating in-
vejtigation that only last month prod-
uced arrests of a number of suspects
and word that federal prosecutors
here knew the details of the crime

anfl had traced its origins to DINA.

and the Chilean government.

Unknown to the victims' friends
anfl colleagues at the Institute for
Policy Studies, the FBI investigation
alteady had turned toward Chile,
Agents in the nation's Cuban exile
cofnmunities, aware of a growing af-
finity between some very militant
anti-Castro Cubans &nd the rightist
Pinochet government in Chile, began
checking Cuban informants.

The FBI and the Justice Depart-
‘ment soon realized that this part of
the investigation necessarily would in-
volve intelligence information here
angl abroad, so they began laying deli-
cate groundwork. Propper, Assistant
Atlorney General Stanley Pottinger
anfl C1A Director George Bush met to
determine to what extent that agency
cogld help in the investigation. A
carefully worded agreement placing
th§ Letelier case in a “national secu-
rity” status allowed that cooperation,

The investigation quickly focused
on-the Cuban exile connection after
Venezuelan authorities informed the
United States that Cuban exile leader

|
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by the Novos, who had been living in
this country for nearly two decades,
was considered extreme even by
some other militant anti-Castro Cu.
bans. They eventually were “adopted”
in a sense by the rightists in the Pino-
chet government in Chile, accarding
to some sources, at a time when anti.

Castro forces here felt betrayed by -

the U.S. government’s effort at rap-
prochement with the Fidel Castro gov-
ernment,

The government’s Cuban exile in-
formants were reluctant to appear
before grand juries as witnesses, Po-
lice officers and FBI agents who had
used them for years were reluctant to

"disclose even to other central investiga-

tors the names of persons providing
them with information in the Letelier
case,

At the same time, in early 1977,
U.S. investigators began cheeking the
foreign travels of some of the persons
whom they believed, based on infor-
mation from the Cuban exile infor-
mants, to be centrally involved in the
murder conspiracy. They also were
planning ways to put pressure on
some of those persons so they might
be forced to cooperate.

In early March 1977, while most law
enforcement people here were occu-
pled with 12 Hanafi Muslims barri-
caded in three Washington buildings,
Propper, Cornick and Assistant U. 8.
Attorney E. Lawrence Barcella Jr,
were in Venezuela meeting with that
country’s secret police.

There they learned that Guillermo ‘

Novo had traveled to Chile and Ven-
zuela in late 1974, in apparent viola-
tion of his probation in the United

" States. They determined to use that
information to try to put pressure on
Guillermo Novo,

Then, in April 1977, they decided to
grant immunity from prosecution to
two Cuban exiles, Jose Dionisio Sua-
rez Esquivel and Alvin Ross Diaz, it
they would cooperate with investiga.
tors. Suarez refused to testify to the
grand jury, and was sentenced to jail
for an 11-month contempt of court
sentence with the vow that he would
never talk. At a press conference at
the time, Ignacio Novo and Ross ac-
cused the government of harassing
Cuban exiles.

In June 1977, prosecutors made
their attempt to have Guillermo
Novo's probation revoked. However
Novo failed to show up for that Tren:
ton, N.J., hearing and became a fugi-
tive for the next 11 months,

Then prosecutors learned in the
late fall of 1977 that two persons
whom they believed could have been
DINA agents had come into the
United States on official Chilean pass-
ports and met with Cuban exiles
shortly before Letelier’s murder,

Propper, Cornick and others de-
cided to make one more attempt to

shake loose information on the case in .

February 1978, The term of the origi-
nal grand jury in the case was expir-
ing soon, and investigators felt it was
time to go public with some of what
they knew. The procedure took the
form of “letter rogatory,” a legal ma.
neuver in which the court of one
country asks the court of another
country for help,

The United States used that ap--
proach to ask Chile to produce for
questioning the two persons who had
traveled here with the official Chilean
passports and met with Cuban sus-
pects in the Letelier investigation.
That highly irregular move left the
clear implicatiof that someone in the
Chilean government was involved in
the murder,

Within a week, photographs of the
two men had been leaked to Washing.

“ton Star reporter Jeremiah O'Leary

and published here and in Santiage.
Almost immediately, sources in Chile
identified one of the men as an Amer-
ican-born DINA agent, Michae! Ver-
non Townley.

Townley, 35, is a soft-spoken and in-
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tennely articulate man who has made
Chile his home for the past 30 years
after his father headed » large Ameri:
can autometive eperation there,

-Af he is described by pecple whe
know him, Townley is an acknowl-
* edged electronic technician with the
edpability of bullding devices to deto-
nate bombs by remete countrol. He had
been active in commando raids
againat formor President Allende. He
had been charged with murder in 2
raid in which a night watchman was

killed, but the charges were dropped”

when Pinochet came to power in late

1973 and Townley became a DINA .

agent,

Diplomatie sources nwrtedly made
it clear without making specific
threats that Washington was ready to
sever relations with Chile if Townley
were allowed to stay there. Evi-
dently for that resson, Chile turned
Townley over to the United States.

Faced with possible prosecution for
murder in the Letelier case and poset-
ble assassination himself because of
his knowledge of numerous other iu-
ternational terrorist activities, Town-
ley made a deal with prosecuiors

here He would enter a gulity ples to

& less serious charge and cooperats
with the Letelier investigation, But he

- would- not be asked to provide infor- -

mation on anything else.

While Townley was deciding to coo-
perate, FB1 agents in Miami had also

struck paydirt. In mid-April, they had

discovered—with the help of Miami
area police—two otber persons be-
lieved to be involved iu 'the Legelier
case: Guillermo Nave Sampel, who 11
months earlier had falled to show up
at his probation hearing, and Alvin
Hass Diaz, once granted immunity but
fow considered a suspect in the mur
der. They had beem caught with co-
caine and weapons, apparently in the

dstofaplotton!ldruﬂsandﬂee
he country

e

Once Townley's cooperation became
known publicly, FBI and prosecutors
worked swiftly to begin rounding up
others whom they suspect partici-
pated in the bombing. They had hoped
to catch Ignacio Novo, Jose Dionisio
Suares Esquivel (freed from prison -

-when the term of the first grand jury

probing the Letelier case expired) and
Virgilio Paz Romero, al]l in the same
night, However, Qitu a lengthy stake-
out in northern New Jersey, only Ig-
nacio Novo was apprehended. .

In the hopes that Paz and Suarez
will be caught and a trial could be
held by autumn, prosecutors have be-
gun putting together a case that fo-
cuses on a Chilean-ordered Leteller
murder plot carried out by Cuban ex-
iles.

Although details remain sketchy be-
cause of the govermment's desire to
withhold the amount of its knowledge
from unarrested suspects, the follow-
ing outline of the government's case
hés emerged from various sources:

About a month before Letelier and
Moffitt were killed, two Chllean se-
cret poliee agenta, Townley and Chi-
lean Army Capt. Armando Fernandez
Larios, were semt to the United
States to find someowne to kill Orlando
Letelier. Townley met with Cubans in
Miami with whom he had become ac-
quainted when he lived there in the
early 1870s, and with Cubans in north-
ern New Jersey.

Qver the next 10 days, the bomb
was planted in Letelier's car and
plans were made to blow it up with
him in it. The date of the blast hap-
pened to coincide with a major 1865
event in Chilean military history,
when a vice admiral named Juan Wil-
liams broke through a Spanish naval
blockade off the coast of Chile and be-
came a Chilean Naval hero. J wil-
liams also was the fake under
which Townley had engéred the
United States.




Indictments Against 8 Outline !
Alleged Plot to Kill Letelier

By Jeremiah O’Leary
. Waskington Star Stafl Writer

There was nothing to attract spe-
cial attention about the arrival of the
{'oung Latin American coupie at New

ork's JFK Airport on Aug. 16, 1976,

Capt. Armando Fernandez Larios
of the Chilean army and his woman
companion passed through immigra-
tion, ‘customs and the JFK traffic
jam without incident.

But, according.to a grand jury in-
dictment "handed up yesterday in
U.S. District Court here, the couple's
visit was to have dramatic conse-
quences, because. the captain was

here as an agent of DINA, the Chi-
lean secret police, and was on a mis- |

sion to spy on former Chilean Ambas-
sador Orlando Letelier,

He was to pass the information on
to the men who intended to Kill Le-
telier, a murder squad of one
American and several anti-Castro

_Cubans, the indictment charges.

The details of how Fernandez and,

the woman known to the FBI only as
“Liliana Walker Martinez" allegedly
carried out the mission are part of
the 10-count indictment in connection
* with the murdérs of Letlelier and his
. colleague, Ronni Karpen Moffitt.

THE GRAND JURY indicted eight
persons, including the former DINA
chief. Letelier and Moffitt were killed
when a bomb attached to the exiled

ORLANDOLETELIER
Murdered diplemat

diplomat’s car exfloded at Sheridan
Circle on Sept. 21, 1976.

The indictment charges that Gen.
Manuel Contreras Sepuiveda, former
DINA chief and close friend of Chi-

lean President Augusto Pinochet, .
initiated the conspiracy.. The panel °
did not implicate anyone of higher -
‘rank in Chile, but said Contreras

“‘ordered - the assassination of Le-
telier either aloné'or with others un-
known to the grand jury.”

The indictment said the order to
kill Letelier was conveyed by Lt. Col.

MANUEL CONTRERAS
Ex-Chilean secret police head

Pedro Espinoza, DINA's director of
operations, to Fernandez and Mich. §
ael V. Townley, an American expa-
triate working for DINA. It said Con-
treras and Espinoza used the
resources of DINA fo arrange inter-
national travel, false documentation,
cash and intelligence contacts for the
assassination, - . i - ...
The' ptosecutors, Asgistant U.S.
Attorfieys Eugene M. ‘Propper and
Lawrence Barcella, immediately re-
quested that Chief U.S. District
See LETELIER, A8

e .



LETELIER:
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dge William B, Bryant issue bench
iuariants for the arrest of the three
Chilean army officers and two Cuban
exiles named in the indictment who
are not in custody.

THE STATE DEPARTMENT said
it sent a diplomatic note to Chile re-
questing the detention of the three
officers and advismf the Santiago
military regime that qrmal requests
for their extradition will be made as

n as possible.
so‘Ijn Sae\tiago. the military govern-
ment last night ordered the arrest of
the three officers after receiving the
U.S. detention request. The Chilean
interior ministry said_ ‘they were
ordered placed under military deteni
tion pending the outcome of legal

ings. .

P"I)-'coe:rd aﬁeged conspirators are In
U.S. custody: Townley, the 36-year-
old expatriate who, U.S. officials say.
has given them a full account of the
lot; brothers Guillermo and Ignacio
Rlovo. members of the anti-Castro
Cuban Nationalist Movement, whnck}
is centered in northen New Jersey;
and Alvin Ross Diaz, also an anti-

Castro activist.

The FBI is seeking two other
Cuban exiles, Virgilio gaz and Jose
Dionisio Suarez.

THE GRAND JURY _charged that
the plot was carried out as follows: q

In July 1976 Contreras contacte
the idirector of Paraguay's m\hta;y
inte} igence service to request thatf e
authgrize Paraguayan passports for
two INA agents to be used on an_uné
specilied mission to the Unite
su;:\es'mid-July Contreras ordered

to |
Fernandez to travel to Paraguay !
make contact with the Paraguayan

secret police. The DINA director of

: i ave Fer-
ooerations, Espinoza, gave Fer-

JOSE DIONISIO SUAREZ

i
|
i

VIRGILIO PAZ

|ndictent Outlines Murder Plot N

IGNACIO NOVO

These three are among these indicted in the slaying of Chilean diplomat Orlando Letelier.
| Y

Inley” and Paz, who then drove
h New Jersey to Washington.
Sept. 16 Townley and Paz
{ked in at a Holiday Inn here and
he next two days busied them-
es getting parts — some at Sears
buck — to be used in the bomb.
lermo Novo, Suarez and Ross ob-
bd other parts for the bomb, and
ept. 18 Suarez checked in at the
"Western Envoy Motel here.
was the day Paz, Suarez and
nley built the bomb.

) Sept. 19 Paz, Suarez and Town-

Hrove from Northeast Washing-

o Letelier’s home, where Town-

. laced the bomb in the car. That

same day Townley made a phone call
to Chile to tell his wife, Mariana Ines
Callejas de Townley, also a DINA
agent, to advise DINA that the bomb
had been placed.

LATER THAN DAY Townley went
from Washington to Newark, N.J.,
and from there to Miami. Two days
later, Sept. 21, the bomb was deto-
nated, killing Letelier and Moffitt in
morning rush hour traffic. Later that
day, Townley met Ignacio Novo in
Miami, briefed him on the mission
and then, on Sept. 23, flew from
Florida to Chile.

The indictment does not say who

set off the charge, only that the
“bomb was detonated,” but an FBI
agent testified at a U.S. magistrate’s
hearing on the case in June that
Townley believed Suarez had deto-
nated the bomb.

All the defendants except Ignacio
Novo are indicted for conspiracy to
murder a foreign official, murdering
a foreign official, two counts of first-
degree murder and murder by use of
explosives. Conviction on each of
these charges carries a sentence of
life imprisonment. Charges j{ncluding
false declarations could net %e Novo
brothers $10,000 fines and fivee years
imprisonment.




warcants for the arrest of the three
Chilean army officers and two Cuban
exiles named in the indictment who
are not in custody.

THE STATE DEPARTMENT said
it sent a diplomatic note to Chile re-
questing the detention of the three

i the Santiago
military regime that
for their extradition
soon as possible.

In Santiago, the military govern-
ment last night ordered the arrest of
the three officers after receiving the
U.S. detention request. The Chilean
interior ministry said -they were
ordered placed under military deten-
tion pending the outcome of legal
proceedings.

Four alleged conspirators are in
US. custody: Townley, the 36-year-
old expatriate who, U.5. officials say,
has given them a full account of the
gllot; brothers Guillermo and ] nacio

ovo, members of the anti-Castro
Cuban Nationalist Movement, which
is centered in nerthen New Jersey;
and Alvin Ross Diaz, also an anti-
Castro activist.

The FBI is seeking two other
Cuban exiles, Virgilio Paz and Jose
Dionisio Suarez.

THE GRAND JURY char ed that
the plot was carried out as follows:

In July 1976 Contreras contacted
the 'director of Paraguay's military
intefligence service to request that he
authbrize Paraguayan passports for
two LJINA agents to be used on an un-
specilied mission to the United
States.

In mid-July Contreras ordered
Fernandez to travel to Paraguay to
make contact with the Paraguayan
secret police. The DINA director of
operations, Espinoza, gave Fer-
nandez a false identity card for this
journeg. .

At about the same time, Fernandet
called Townley to arrange meetings
petween him and Espinoza.

“On or about July 1976, the exact
date being unknown to the grand
jury, Pedro Esgljnoza told Michael

ownley that Townley and Fer-
nandez were being ordered to g0 to
the U.S. on a DINA mission to assas-
sinate Orlando Letelier,” the indict-
ment charges.

TOWNLEY 1S MENTIONED only
as a co-conspirator in the indictment
and is not charged. Officials have
indicated he will.make a court ap-
pearance this week to plead guilty to
one count of murder of a foreign
diplomat. He is expected to testify
for the government at the trial.

Fernandez and Townley went to
Asuncion, the Paraguayan capital,
July 20, 1976, and returned a week
later to Chile with special
guayan passports issued under false
names. The whole transaction was
noted by American officials, who re-

will be made as

called it two months later when Le-

telier was killed.
Fernandez and his woman travel

companion flew 1o the United States,

and, a couple of weeks later, began
keeping tabs on Letelier's move-
ments. Meanwhile Espinpza gave
Townley his orders to come here and
carry out the assassination.

. Townley arrived at JFK Airport on
1 Sept. 9, usin§ false identification
gapers.from DINA. He was met there
1 by Fernandez, who gave him the
- information about Letelier’s move-
. ments between his Bethesda home
yand his office near Dupont Circle.
, Fernandez and his companion left
-that day for Chile, and Townley
.rented a car.

DURING THE NEXT lour days
Townley had several meetings with
Paz, Guillermo Novo, Suarez and
Ross, told them of his orders from
DINA and asked their help in carry-
ino out the assassination.

Para-
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The Letelier Prosecutor: An Unhkely Celebrzty in Santzaé

FISCAL UAL PROPPER EN lel-' f

B =2

By Timothy S. Robinson
Washington Post Staf! Writer
¢t Im Chile, he is greeted by hordes of
‘cnish—speaking reporters shouting
z::secutor Propper, Prosecutor
per” and hidden photographers
to snap his picture as he walks
streets or comes out of build-

¢ His comings and goings are doclu-
qmted with bold red headlines, and
WEWSDApers speculate on matters
v from his briefcase, which
think is “James Bond-equipped,”
the specially built car they say is
to Chile from the United States
hig use there, and even his alleged
life when he is in Santiago.
The object of the aitention is 31.
-old Eugene M. Propper, whose
is not neatly as exotic as the Chi-

Mjan press proclaims, o
One of 161 assistant U.S. sttorne¥s
the Distriet of Columbia, he was as-
by chance tWo Years ago to in-
te what many people thought

be the unsolvable assassination .

former Chilean ambassador Or-
Letelier,
4 , he stood before a federal
here and asked that
Chilean secret police (DINA) of-
including the feared ex-direc-
the agency—be arrested in the
21, 1976, bombing murder of
er and an aide, Ronni K. Mof-
on Sheridan Circle.
«Along the way, in a manner unri-
in many major investigations,
flamboyantly bearded Propper
drawling FBI agent L. Carter
i have become the interna-
thnal symbols of the dogged persist-
egee of U.S. authorities to solve the
Lgtelier murder case.
“Propper and Cornick say they can-
nit directly dlscuss the Leteher case
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The Washington Post
Chilean newspaper and mxadne articles devoted to “El Fiscal Propper.”

had to “sell” themselves to the friends
and coworkers of the victims, who had
worked at the Institute for Policy
Studies, a leftist think tank here that
had been spied upon and otherwise in-
filtrated by thc bureaun during anﬂwu-

ample. Amsistant U.S. Attorney E.
Lawrence Barcella Jr., one of Prop-
per’s supervisors, has worked behind
the scenes on the ease for more than a
year and will join Propper in trying
the case.

Robert W Scherrer, the FBI's legal
attache in Santinon elen hac hosn in.

EUGENE M. PROPPER
++ - at first, royal treatment

*"m,_

‘. . . a eocky young
_ tspoken in
his views abount .’. .

 offiice policy, but -

not any sort of
smA . . P,




v&sngate what many people thought

wotuld be the unsolvable assassination .

former Chilean ambassador Or-
lendo Letelier,

£Tuesday, he stood before a federal
j#dg¢ here and calmly asked that

Chilean secret police (DINA) of-
ficial{—including the feared ex-direc-
thr off the agency—be arrested in the
?pt. 21, 1976, bombing murder of
‘Letelier and an aide, Ronni K. Mof-
it on Sheridan Circle.

sAlong the way, in a manner unki-

in many major investigations,

flamboyantly bearded Propper

d drawling FBI agent L. Carter

rnick have become the interna-

tnal symbols of the dogged persist-

efce of U.S. authorities to solve the
Letelier murder case.

+Propper and Cornick say they ean-
ndt directly discuss the Letelier case
ht:ruse of the pending trials. But a

picture has emerged of two well-

tched, plodding and innovative in-
vestigators who have come out, so far,
sipelling like roses in a case that eas-
ily could have generated a very differ-
aroma.

«On Sept. 21, 1976, Propper was sit-
tiag in the U.S Courthouse cafeteria
when his supervisor, Donald E. Camp-
bifl, asked him if he would take the
caise. He knew nothing about Chile
other than what he had read in news-
pgpers, and spoke no Spanish.

Cornick, a 38-year-old University of
V!rgmla graduate and ex-marine, had

putatlon of sorts of minor boat-
king in the normally staid world of
look-alike FBI agents, some of his ac-
qﬁmtances say. He had just arrived
the Washington field office after a
t in bomb-rocked Puerto Rico, and
came to mind when Washington
Fgl agent-incharge Nick F. Stames
whs looking for a Spanish-gpeaking
agent to assign to the Letelier case..

*Cornick and Propper seemed to

k together well quickly according
tq, people who watched them at the
time. Propper’s ego was such that he
wpuld make seemingly ouirageous
demands; Cormick would soft-seap
those demands so that they seemed
pexfectly normal when' they were re-
layed.

ZPropper, who is from New Hyde
Pirk Long Ishnd, earned an under-
Tﬁgf‘i?uate degree in économics at the

ersity of Massachusetts at Am-
herst and a law degree from the Uni-
versity of Minnesota. He worked

‘who operated a- fake

¢Quién
Iefene nnedo

'&:_2{&-;
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L. CARTER CORNICK
. . - Spanish-speaking boat rocker

fore joining the U.S. attorn\ey’s office
in 1972 to get trial experience. ...
He had worked in various sections

of the prosecutor’s office trying |

crimes including murders and rapes,
and had joined the fairly elite major
crimes ‘diviston—where he dealt wita
such mattm as contract murders and
the widely publi¢ized second Sting
project involving undercover agents
stolen-goods

Cw A A aB . AT oa B oAl om T nd oYt Y s

E. LAWRENCE BARCELLA JR.
» « « behind-the-scenes superviser

he was contemplating leaving the of-
fice to enter the more lucrative field
of private practice. i

Propper was_ knowni u n cocky
young man, outspoken in his views
about some aspects of office policy

but not any sort of “star” in the court- -

room or in his handling of mvestiga-
tions,

of the early part of the investlgation

Al o W A ww . _ __

In one of the more touchy lspeeta

hundreds of i)l agents acroes the
United States and other investigators
throughout the world who have
brought the Letelier case this far.

Other point out that, in many ways, .

the case was the type in which the
PBI is at its best—lots of laboratory
work, use of informants, massive man-
power svailable for the tedious job of

mmmwm—m,

'l‘voother mnjetlnvesttntonhan
come to the limelight , for ex-
ample. Assistant UBS. Atm'my E

Lawrence Barcella Jr., one of Prop-

per’'s supervisors, has worked behind
the scemes on the ease for more than a
ruradvmkhm intrymx
the ease. -

nohct' ﬂeha-m the ral'cleul

attache in_Santiago, also has been in- |

dispensable te: the case hecause of the

network of contaets and the respect

he had Duilt up in elgit years in

‘South America, accarding to several

persons involved in the case. .
But the major focus of media ‘atten.

« tion in Chile was on Propper—ealled _|
t ° “Piscal” or prosecutor there—and on - |

Cornick or Barcella as they made a to-
. tal of three trips to Santisge this

" spring. They have told associates how
reporters for the sensationalist press.

in Chile would try to talk their way
into hotel rooms at 8 a.m. for:inter-
views, guess the identity of who might
be with Propper at any one time, seek
them out in restaurantz, and fry to
identity persons with them by brace
lets or rings. ..

During the first two trips, the US.
investigators were treated royally by

the press. But by the third trip, when ~

the sericusness of the investigation -
- -and its possible aim at high Chilean
officials  was clear, the atmosphere

changed, they have said.

That was when a racy journal aec-.
) enndPropper of using U.S. funds to '
come to Chile for an assignation with

an attractive female journalist. News-
papers proclaimed in English, “FBI
GO HOME.” And, as in a Pef
ers movie, photograp!
. of Fiat windows ch
station wagon at high :peeds through
a market distrigt, scattering chickens

as they weat, trying to hhe picturu".

of Barcella and Propper.

Propper; his fame changing to noto-
riety so quickly after his whirlwind
romance with the Chilesn press, said

r Sell- -
out .
by % (llbassy f
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plosive into d hollowed-out copy of “British at the Gate"
when it blew up in his hands. -
Crespo, believing himself dying, was rushed to.the
'hospital shouting “Viva Cuba Libre.” The police, un-
nerved, shacklted Crespo to his bed. The Miami papers
identified him and his partner in the venture, Humberto
Lopez Jr., as members of the National Cuban Liberation

T IS ALL but certain that Cuban exile terrorists were

responsible for the bombing of an Alr Cubana plane
‘last month and the resulting death of the 73 aboard. An-
tother exile argapization Is sus ected in the assassination
{two months ago of formér Chilean Foreign Minlister Or-
.lando Leteller. These were simply two Incidents In an_
repidemic of bomblngs killings and kidnappings carried © °
lout by anti-Castro exiles based in Miami over the past K
‘three years. The frequency and ruthlessness of these at- . )f
itacks have reached the point where the posslbﬂlty must* - ‘.{
| be considered that we g itnessing the coming of age " "
i0f the first serious’ Mﬂ%?ﬁ"mﬁ 3
|An effort to understand who these people are and o
(gauge the danger they pose might well begm wlth a sin-.

why this group had formed, exactly who its members

;" attempting such acts went unexplained.

ground had been examified. Far from being suddenly
“ possessed of terrotist notions, both men were veterans

'gle stark case history. - ; (": "‘; A “of gy a campaigns lgainst Castro hacked in another_ T

Luis Crespo seemed a most’ unhkely candxdate fot ter-'
iror. He was a shy, 32-year-old father of two, a drug store
isalesman, just another of the 450,000 or so Cubans in Mi-
iami, But there he was in March of 1974 assembling a
book bomb Just after midmght he was mting the C4 ex-

tl . (( K 4 \
R A v

~"'x ' era by the CIA.

e " gram based in Nicaragua. Crespo had been a member of
s, one of the CIA's elite commando teains operating from
fMiaml during the Kedned He had been trained
rvin the use of explosives-and sabotage techniques and
\ . waet ; wis then sent oh raids to Cuba. Like ali of the CIA’s full-
L LR e .. fledged agents, he had sidied £ secrecy oath, submitted

u

ie . -

Crile is Washington editor of Harpers magazine and to polygraph tests, served under the command of an
nuthor of a book to be published by Doubleday on the American case offlc_e; :
CI1A’s Cuban operatlons . . ot / ! .j‘*:‘-l N ‘,See CUBANS, Page C3

Front a newly formed anti-Castro terrorist group. But.
were, and why such seemingly 1:pright youpg men wors

* 1t ‘might all have seemed less puzzling if the back- '

Lopez had partlclpated ln an Agency-ﬂnanced pro- .

Miaml Hen.ld -~

Lms Crcspo, manaclcd toa hospual bcd after a bomb he was as#(-mblmg exploaea.

- . e



The New Cuban Terrorists

CUBANS, From Page c1
 When he went to work for the CIA, he was just 21, one
f almost 2,000 Cubans recruited in Miami for Operation
fongoose, the Kennedy administration’s secret war on
'uba. He served under Rip Robertson, the legendary
Jmerican case officer who had led the Brigade ashore at
he Bay of Pigs. There had been no question in those
vars about the U.S. commitment to the exiles’ cause.
Crespo was then a totally reliable instrument of U.S.
whiey. The policy changed in time but, like the brcom of
& sbreerer’s apprentice, Crespo could not be induced
% sLOp e e et
When President Jolnson halted the CIA’s paramili-
ary operations in 1965, Crespo left the Agency and be-
1an to mount independent raids with other Agency vet-

rrans. When Customs and the Coast Guard began to ar-

:est thie raiders, he turned to lerrorism as the only tactic
wvailable.

Then came the bomb accldent From the hospital, he
~as taken to the Dade County jail. When 1 talked to him
here, he had just started a hunger strike to dramatize
1is cause. He now looked the martyr, an emaciated, boy-

=5Db figure with a hook where his right hand had been.
* He had long ago, Crespo explained, committed his life
a mgﬂnws_fﬂ_ﬂ&_ﬂba Any regrets ior his
osses were outweighed by pride in his sacrifice and the
»utpouring of sympathy and respect from his fellow ex-
Jes- “1 have beca paid richly in moral payments, far
nore than I deserve, for what little I have done.”

Hxs only smiie came when he spoke of Rip Robertson.
the CIA men he had known. They were honest,
{edicat®d anti-Communists. But he did not see how he
:ould b criticized for resorting to terrorism. He was
mly doipg what he had been trained to do. And what,
dter all had Robertson been if not a terronst hke him,
\gamst Castro" .

foreign Conneclions

T IS PEOPLE like Crespo, driven by similar ambmons

and molded by the same conditions, who are at the

" as the last, best hope of liberating Cuba. Once the Viet-

"would be given by Washington to resume the secret w,

.lantly to arrest those exiles still t

........ -~ “ e e e M B T R R R R A I TS & & &
R R

Sundsy, November 7, 1976 .
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hgs But there are no indications that he was ever a con-
trolled agent. Qn the contrary, he was one of the first ex-
ilq leaders to turn against the Agency. .

In thé , Bosch bitterly denouneod the CIA for
“dispersing, dividing and destroying the anti-Castro rev-
olution.” Hé, for one, would pursue an independent
path. Thanks to his Cuban Power, Miami Jed the world’s
major cities in bombings — 44 — in 1968. The terro
promptly stopped late in that year when Bosch and eig
followers were arrested and jailed.

Some exiles responded favorably to.Bosch’s efforts in
the 1960s, but few of the CIA’s Cubans or the main-
stream anti-Castro leaders took his work seriously. They
saw the bombings as symbolic gestures without real im-
pact, and they continued to logk to the U.S. government -~

nam struggle ended, they believed, the green light

But events were under way which would radicalize :
many of the mainstream exiles and, in 1973, precipitate
the first popularly supported terrorist campaign. The de-
cisjve development came when the United States si
a treaty against hijacking with Cuba and began vigi- -
to raid the zsland
in soma ca..es‘fh_e?‘ﬁere fhe very velerans the
trained and sponsored on such missions only a few years
before. Sens. Claiborne Pell (D-R.I) and Jacob Javits (R-
N.Y.) went to Cuba and Dr. Kissinger began talking as if
he planned to open negotiations with Castro.

“Fish” in the *Sea”
T WAS AT this moment, when all seemed lost for the
exlles, that Palestinian gunmen were demonstrating

that terror could make a considerable political and pub-
lic relations impact; soon Yasir Arafat would appe identified in exile eyes with the effort to renew US. re-

with a pistol at his belfto address the U.N. Genera As lations with Cuba, to vary their routes to and from work

sembly. With the example of the P ery m . lnw
in_mind, the bickering factions among the exile actjvists - Though the terrorism created bittér debate within the -

.moved to unite and to renew their way. Coaveniently, “  exile community, the new campaign did gain in popular- , -
[ Just heen parpied after tour years in pris. . ".dty. At a rally held TG raise a defense fund for Luis
Fittla Stvvana walked in nﬂ the =treet andd contribmied

| - N . " - o : United Press I
: " Radio commentator Emilio Milian had his legs blown off when a bomb exploded in this
watching “Ben Hur” on television. His killer left a note
identifying the assassination as the work oZERODthe
same group which claimed responsibility for the Lejgh-
ton machine-gunning in Rome. A subsequent letter '
threatened other old-style leaders who had “misled” the
exiles in thé past Alarmed by these developments, 1he

FBI advised Senators Pell and Javits, who ‘

defected to Cuba, publicly denouncing the te

"\ fascists and — more significant — describing t

ership in detail.Their plans, he clalmed incly
sination of U.S. officials.

The Offensive Begins

HE CIVIL war aspects of this supposed!
tro terror campaign grew in intensity aft
Collado's departure, culminating in Decem
with a sudden rash of bombings, including the
the FBI and state’s attorney’s offices. Then th

in Mianii all but stopped. And_a true offe

Jaunched agoinst Cuban targets in_Europe

“Thieapparent explanation for this reversal in



"r ““inonths stver: ithe machine-gunning of Bérnardo Leigh-.

‘There have been over_lﬂ%oﬂbflmwlp_i since
Crespod’s bomb blew up two and a half years ago. Earlier
this year Rolando Otero, who at the age of 16 had been

. the voungest soddier in ile UTA'S 2506 Rrigade at tha Bay
of Pigs, was arrested for bombing the Miami I'Bl, the
l State’s Attorney's office, the Dade County police aepnrt-
{ ment and Miami International Airport. These aliac
were clearly targeted_ggainst officials investigating thg
1&]‘?}!5&5’_“ is a miracle that no one was senously in."?

ure
= Even more alarming are the political assassinations.

. Five exile leaders have been murdered since the Crespo
incident, and several others seriously wounded. Some of
the vi oderatation toward the Ca
. mi% rime. Emilio Mman the leading exile radio commenta-
tor, hiad both legs torn off by a bomb in his car after he
Bad criticized the terrorists for committing such acts
within the United States.
A similarily designed bomb killed Letelier. Signifi-
cantly ‘pechaps,. that /assassipation came only a matter. of 3}

~ton, & former Chilean Christian Democratic leader, and

wife in Rom
g htgu;‘;{Subu a n.aat une Press repurt suggests tnav itatan

fascists were responsible for the Leighton incident,
sorne investigators tend to- believe it was the work of

B particularly ruthless Cuban exile organization
which claimed credit in a communique describing the
weapons used, the number and caliber of shots.

1t is known that a number of exiled activists have been
“omrlg_giosnly with the right-wing Chilean junta. And,
according to U.S. government sources, they may have
carried out or arranged the Leighton shootings as part
of an ongoing mutual assistance agreement with DINA,
the junta’s secret service.

The extent of the foreign assistance available is partic-
ularly significant. Just as the Palestinians have been
able to operate only With the help and financial backing
prévided by Libya and other Arab countrics, 50 too do
. lhe Cyban terrorists require the support of friendly gov-
2, ernments in this hemisphere.

They have built-in bases of support withi?wegl
of-Caribbean and Latic Amcrican countries§ Verczuela,
- for instance, has a prosperous and influential exile popu-
Igtion of about 25,000, and exiles have held sensitive
in the Venezuelan intelligence service since the
eiyly 1960s, when the country was under attack from
stro trained and armed guerillas. Some of those ar-
rested in Veneczuela in connection with the Air Cubana
bombing were meeting with high government officials

b

rot long ago. They had even been given a $1,000-a-plate

tund rai..ing dinper for their cause in Caracas. -
OSe of the men indicied. Luis Posado Carilies, bad
been both a C1A veteran and a high Venezuelan security
“official. He is reported to have been a lmk between the

o BAvVEerntrant AU o

- ey

, theoretician and mdisputahle leader. In the autumn of
' 1973 70 different oxile organizations gathered in San
Juan for a congross, an umbrellu organization was

f’r!“t‘\(( and rhay ”ll 0‘\nr aafine 1he tacrge }si sor. :;\u an

—dote -
was initialed by the bombing of severai Cuban diplo-

patic missiops.
It is a part of the doctrine of “liberation” movements ‘

.that terrorists must function as “fish” in the “sea” of a

supportive environment. The “fish,” men such as Luis .-

Crespo, seem to be in abundant supply among the exiles.
The critical factor is the hospitable sea. Without it, a ter-’ .
rorist cannot finance his activities, cannot escape his en- .
emies and, perhaps most unportant ‘cannot sustain him- .
self emotionally. It is here that the shift in senmpegt

among the mainstream exiles counts; 1t_l_13§_cga;t_gd.1__..

substantjgl. suhcultyre within the ‘Miami community . - ..
which has so far provided the support needed to sustam }

the current terrorist war—

siraim

) the last constitutional president of Cuba, to'the new de-:

“v'» ' velopments. From his exile in Miami, Prio warned that’

exiles would react violently to any move by the United
[teing tn roacaoniza Nactra, adding:

“My position is against indiscriminate terrorxsm l
dan’t like dynamite — it is too blind. It’s not good to lull
innocent people. But it is good to attack the Castro peo- .
ple wherever they are. That’s okay. I'm not against this .

'kind of political terrorism just because it is lmlde the |
i United States. It's all right with me.”

Perhaps even more significant was the position voiced
by Dr. Miro Cardona, who had been Castro’s first prime

minister and then, as president of the Revolutionary
Council, the man selected by the CIA and the Kennedy

!

;Take the instructive reacnon of C f‘“i quﬁsocearm., L

administration to become president of Cuba once Castro -

was overthrown :

He was a highly respected jurist, but over the years he
qn become mcreasmgly embittered. e neared the
end of his

gan {0 méet with Dr. Bosch and to .

adyvocatea ggllcy of terrorism:
‘We are aione absolutely alone . . . there is only one
route left 10 follow and we will follow it: violence, the in-
‘s

terpationalization of the struggle for the freedom of
-Cuba at all levels.”

- Miro's words, spoken at the end of 1973, served asa
-battle ery and moral justification for the new campaign.
Overnight, the initials of the new exile front, FLNC,
were painted'on walls across Miami’s Little Havana. Ei-
ther out of respect or fear, no one painted them over,
Later that year, when a young terrorist died while
trying to bomh the Cuban embassy in_Paris, he was
given a martyr’s funeral in Miami. Hundreds; incliding
former President Prio, aiiénded. An article in the Miami
Herald went so far as to make analogies betwee;: the
slain man and Jose Marti, the father of Cuban ingepend-
ence. .

~

S
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Little Havana walked m ott the street and contributed
more than $12,000, mostly in $§1 and $2 donations. And
when the two men went on trial, Miami's Mayor

“Thie"qpiparcnt explanation for this reve

to be found in the sudden entry of the.

" Bay of Pigs Brigade into the struggle. T
reached ai the 15th reunion of the Brigar

‘Ferore wrote the judge askng tGTE weroy bowata .

: ¢ Judg judge asknp thi traceey b this yeai. The Biigade joaders clain tud
the patriota ——————
\ITI———-B d N D . dii aucw witb lue giuer terros lblb

€ trigace's Decision wat_at home; in Teturn, (be Brigade wot
'HERE HAVE been hundreds of anti-Castro crgam- t ti:Castro war.

This new coalition was apparently resg
following incidents:

zations [ : . at one -
pomt th lice files listed 105 revolutionary groups

Nevertheless only one of these organizations, the (Bay April 8 — two Cuban fishing vessels m

. o Pigs) Brigade 2508 Assocnatxon, commands unjversal .. one Cuban killed. April 22 — a borab kills
respect : : o bassy officials in Lisbon. July 5 - Cu_b_g

" ... The Brigade Associatlon, 'with its approximateiy 1500 ~° “bombed: July 9 — homb explodes in lugg

. members. bas always managed to remain-aloof from Lit- a before being loaded aboard Air -
| tle Havana's internecine intrigues. Until a year ago it July 10 — Cuban airlines office in Bart
had been a fraternal organization. But at its 14th auni- Aug. 9.— two embussy officials in Bue
versary geremonies ip Allrll 1975 a marked shift was ap- . napped Late August — one Cuban officia

Plrent » shift; which Wduld Socn bring- about a tunda-, i » ~/1¢0 £ity, and an unsuccesstul attempt m
. .. another i in Yucatan. 1

In the midst of the camipaign last sun

leaders met in the Dommuag Republie wi

tives of Dr, Bosch and of several terrorist

.'_19‘-”"‘ No ‘__\r\ xl)f!x‘ A oww ﬂg*nornonf w

form a urﬁl_c-ﬂ ront Lo cumout a coordini

"of internativnal terror against ar

they could be reacligd. The new organi

(Cominandos of United Revolution

‘tions), would not become known (o the A

until the group was implicated two mont

_ crash of the Air Cubana plane en route {
to Havana.

During the Labor Day weekend the Br
unprecedented step, apparently designed t
hase of the terror movement. It held its

——m—

_and there announced tlie opening of a wi
tablish an exile “government in arms.” TH

zation universally respected among the e

lapt its prestige to tefror.__

Like Lust Crespo, the Brigade’s leaders
understand why the United States should
their lagest effort, now that the violence
abated. Seventy exiles have reportedly bee
to testi{y before a Grand Jury in »hami

besn—called_befere 2 Grand Jury in &
" connection with the Letelier kiling.

* The leaders of the Brigade's terrorist -
have yiolated no _Amnerjcan Jaws Mast are 4
zens and they are careful to conspire abroa

One of them, a long time veteran of Anm
wars against Cuba, spoke of his bitter r
being labeled a terrorist. “To us a terrorist
sets a bomb off and doesn't care who he k
tmnar ns a man wiio uses the methads ar

Twelve years “earifer the Brigade had preaemed 1ts
flag to President Kennedy. The President hailed the Bri-
. Bade as the standard-bearer,of {reedomn in ihe heini-
apnete @nd. betfore tens of whuusands of cheeriig exiles
in the Orange Bowl, pledged to return its flag to the rree
soil of Cuba.

Now the Brigade veterans were malﬂg s'peec'heq ac-,
cusmg the United States of use, and

Wned Library return the
f]a threatening brary if refused. ( mly,
momes by awarding its first Freedom Award to Gen. .
"~ Pinochet of the Chilean junta. . :
- m..anch too, was apparently estabhshmg close links
the Chileans. He had jumped parole, fleejng the
United States just after the Torriente kiliing. Hle was in-
terviewed in Curacao by an exile newsman who re-
ported that Bosch was being escorted by a band of
armed Chileans and had access to all the money he néeed-
ed. (The reporter also said Bosch was reading a biogra-
- phyof Yasit Arafat)
, State Department files indicate that the Chileans were
(1]

l

.

ffering safe haven, passports and even the use of diplo-
matic pouches to some Cuban terrorists{ One govern-
ment investigator says that a remote control detonating
device, used in the assassination of the exile leader Ro-
lando. Masferer in 1975, had been brought into the
United States in a Chilean diplomatic pouch.

The Chilean connection is beyond dispute; the ques-
tion is just how far it goes. Max Leznik, ‘the | publisher of
Little Havana's largest newspaper, Replica, says that
some of the exile terrorists are performing strong-arm
services for DINA. “The Chileans are using the Cihans:

~ they use thetr@caufe the Cubans are_crusaders DYou

tell o8 ¥ETITRIaane 7o Pasic abhn oot




Te of the men indicied. Luts Posado Carilles, bad
n both a ClA veteran and a high Venezuelan security
cial. 1le is reported to have been a link between the
ernment of Venezuelan President Perez and the Chi-

n junts.
Violent Tradition
A 1iE EASE with which upright members of the exile

. ‘communities of the Caribbean murder their politi-
enemics, or fiuance those who Go, uzy stariic pecpic

the United States, ?Lﬂmwm? -
gma among Cubans that it does for Americans. Rath-

MUis Tfie time-honered jnstrument of revolutionaries _
inst any regime they considered unjust. Had it not
mn for the CIA’s virtual monopoly on the anti-Castro
ivities iin Miami in the early 196Cs, there probably
lild have been major outbreaks of organized terror
Hier, As it was, there were two short-lived campaigns
p\red by men who figure prominently in recent
eunits. )

Iie (irst Degan in 1964 with the mortar attack on the
N. when Che Guevara came to address the General As-
nbly. This was the work of the fanatically right wing
W@ made up of disgruntled
y of Pigs veterans who warned the exiles not to trust
RGEA instead for an Algerian-styled terror.

. he Natlonallsts gre active once again; Kkwo vet-
¢wmm are

EwLme_r_sss,ass T
e second outbreak came in 1968 wnth bombings in
ami harbor of ships flying the flags of countries that
d relations with'Cuba. Readers of Miami's daily papers

l'day

ire introduced to “Ernesto,\ the mysterjous leader of 5
uban Power,” through “clandestine, exclusive” inter-

iws in which the terrcrist -would appear in a black
iod and whisper his intentions to bomb Cuban installa-
ins and kidnap and assassinate Cuban offmals around
eworld. |

Later, “Ernesto” dropped the nom de guerre and re-
aled himself as the well-known pediatrician, Dr. Or-
ado_Bosch. Today Bosch is considered the terrorists’
iding force. In testitnony before the Senate Internal
curity subcownmittee this year, he was aceus
I the assassingtion of Secretary of State Kissinger. Hé
now in jail in Venezuela under indictment for an al-
ted role in the Air Cubana bombing. Rumors persist

at Bo;ch had received CIA training before the Bay of

Rt I e d

3d molded by the same condmons who are at the

nf.plm..

. moved to unite
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Herald went so far as to make analogies betweer the
slain man and Jose Marti, the father of Cuban mde;end-
ence.

And then, urly in 1974, a2 FLNC communique de-

chrod that henceforth “anyone, anywhere who negoti- ’

d a objective”,

Shortly after this warning, George Davis, the FHI's.

whose house had been Luis Crespo’s bomb factory. The

following moiniog a car without Lghts started up ra2p

\éhief Cuban expert, served a8 subpoena on the man
’ idly behind Davis and, accelerating. bore down on him.

He wis barely able to leap to safety. . -
A week later, on Good Friday, exile leader
Torriente was assassinated in his living roo

adiami Herald
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. Dr. Orlqﬁdo Bosch: jailed in Venezuela on

J

bombing charg‘e.
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tory incidents most likely to créate dissension within the
éxile community orto-enrage 1IN Opinjon. . "

y .
Y

" they use the

services for DINA. “"I'he Chiieans are usmg Lie {ybhans,
ecaufe the Cubans are crusaders
fleans in Paris who were close

tell them there

£t to Allende and that Allende was ciose to Castro and they

L A
_ Like other

[ARaORE oa3 o0

ciuq,umn:hu

mhcat
‘Mymr«.ﬁhenddmhterﬁevupuﬂdoutr‘

~ 4% and said, “K’s incredible, but [ nced this 1¢ survive 2o
an editor. You American newsmen feel you don’t need
> t0 carry a gun but think what it was tike ir: the Old West.
- It's like thag iere. Everywhere I g5, T the 3 man with
pistol and other weapons. If the police take ttem away,
froin me, then I die.”
Leznik’s problem is particularly lhorny because haisa,

pr t and _gqgh& alongside Castfo in 1he

Sierra Maestra. Some of the exiles, he says, cannot distin-

guish between socialism and communism and doubt his.
loyalty to the anti-Castro cause. However misguided’
about Leznik, it is understandable that °

they may be

some exiles are confused about the loyalties and even
 the identities of their comrades.

Such suspicions were reinforced by the nature of the

violence in 1974-75. Although the terrorists did strike at .
.. , some Castroite targets abroad, they concentrated their<

attacg: in Miami and most of the targets were other ex-’
iles. The campaign was by no means universally support--

&m:mﬂwmmm

Some of the exiles, however, came to see the terror -

cunpalgn as suspiciously counterproductive. It not only
spread fear and suspicion within the community but
> also alienated the U.S. government and public. * ‘
That the exiles have been deeply penetrated by agents
from Havana is a view Jong held within
other interested agencies. No one seriously questnons the

_fanatical sincerity of most of the terrorists, but some ex-.: ...

ile leaders and US. officials have begun to theorize that
rovocateurs were behind some of the inflamma-

4 Such observers cite the history of Carlos RweroCoIla-
" do, Brigade veteran, son of ‘a pre-Castro prime minister

. and a leading member of the oldest and most funatically
' right-wing exile terror grou jsts) He was. ¢
said 1o have been one of the lg;;?"mr%gté)nost formida-

bla .members, with a personalTollowing among the
© younger terrorists. Suddenly, in the fall of 1574, several
"months after ‘Torriente’s assassination, Rivero-Coliado

T mmesass sviiuLLIL CrEALEU DIUET debate within the

exile community, the new campaign did gain in pop ) o
s ular-
*' AAty. At a rally held 5 Taise a defense fund for Luis

and

1O 2 VUILL 011 allu UULsE L Cad @ wab 0e AllS. ¢
Linary is a man who uscs the methods
.+ available to him at the moment to hit Fidel Ca

"are revolutionaries.”
e The AYR Tan he nffored fm- tha Afr l‘nhﬂ

,. 'l ", was that the new terror campaign is aimed at th
.. economy, The crash, it was assumed woh—ﬁdu
Tourlst trade. —

“Also,; he said, “98 per cent ol the people
plane were Ccrmunists and
_muniste!” It was Lioned. he added, that the terro;
would lead tu_increased tension b:Iweéen the
" States and Cuba. -
e aetceettn oo ot o -
Facing Realities

ND INDEED Castro quickly abrogated the
) ‘ jacking treaty, charging that the CIA was
he terrorism. This was just what the terriyists
— to put Cuba and the United States bax
heads.
There is no reason to helieve Castro s charge
CIA is sponsoring today's terrorists, but there #
.+ ‘way of degying the past intimate CIA connecty
<~ many of thesc inen. - .
©  The 1mpres=£>5lﬂlﬂ_dl@_beflﬂﬁ.hﬂem
of the CIA's Cuban veterans have become terr
that ail or most of the exiles support the terror
is not the case. But lherwa%gh’mjm&
m terribie problems for some
come,
"The Air Cubana bombing, which caused the
the entire Cuban national fencing team among |
. taken by the Cuban people as a national tragedy
i. . . ‘Inaspeech shortly after the crash, Castro wa
henceforth his government would retaliate for
Ipetarrorists for their part, say there will b
tacks, and soon. The prospects are om "
The natural tendency is 1o dismiss the exile |
as fascists or part of some lunatic fringe. But n¢

ago they were our closest military and 1deologu
* f{ acclaimed by President Kennedy as the chan

eedom in the hemisphere.

1

- are now to find a way of contammglh
' Jwe must begin by reinemberj
tliein down the desperate path they are followin
e

: mm, Geotge Crile L

i e ——

the FBI and state’s attorney’s oinces Then the v

in Mianli all but stopped. And a true offensi

jaunched against Cuban targets in Eurcpe 2
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The Weather

Yeday — Variable cloudiness and
humid with a 30 percent chance of

thunderstorms, high near 90. Thurs- -

day — Partly cloudy, humid, high
near 90. Yesterday—3 p.m. AQI: 35,
Temp. range: 85-73. Details or B2
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\Eight Indicted in Letelier Slaying

By Timothy S. Robinsoa
Washington Post Staff Writer

After 2 22month investyation, a
federal grand jury here yesterday in-
dicted the former head of Chile’s se-
eret police (DINA) and seven others
in the bomhing death of former Chi-
ieam ambassador Orlando Letelier on
Washington's Embassy Row.

The indictment of Gen. Juan Man-
wel Comtreras Sepulveda, a close asso-
ciate of Chilean President Augusto Pi-
mochet, was believed to be the first
ever returped in the United States
against a high official of a foreign
country's intelligence agency.

Contreras, two DINA operatives in

\&1& amd five Cuban exiles living in

the United States were charged by the
grand jury with plotting, carrying out
and covering up the September 1876
murder of Letelier, a prominent and
outspoken critic of the Chilean gov-
ernment at the time. The explosion
that ripped through Letelier's 1975
Chevelle also killed an aide, Ronni K.
Motfitt, and injured her husband.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Eugene M.
Propper said yesterday that the U.S.
government would ask Chile for the
immedigte arrest and jailing for ex-
tradition ot Contreras, DINA opera-
tions director Pedro Espinoza Bravo,
and DINA agent Armando Fernandez
Larios.

Chilean officials had no immediate
response to that request, which ap-

prently is unprecedented in diplo-
matic and judicial channels.

The indictment accuses Espinoza of
ordering the assassination during a
meeting in Chile and Fernandez of
coming to the United States to spy on
Letelier so that the assassins would
know when to strike.

The Cubans, members of the New
Jersey-based Cuban Nationalist Move-
ment, a militant anti-Castro group,
are accused of helping to carry out
the bombing.

The 15page indict.ment was explie-
itly detailed because of the coopera-
tion with U.S. authorites of American-
born DINA agent Michael V. Townley,
who has agreed to plead guilty to
planting the bomb.

The indictment outlines with preci-
sion the alleged plot, that resulted in .
the 9:30 a.m. blast on Sept 21, 1976,
on the placid Sheridan Circle area of
;:basslu, clnnoems and diplomats’

mes

Letelier was killed instantly when
the bomb atop the A-frame.of his car
ripped up through the floorboards un-
der his legs as he drove around the
circle. He was on his way to work at
the Institute for Policy Studies, where
he had become internationally known
for his outspoken criticism of the Chi-
lean military regime.

burning car. Her huspband, and IPS co-
worker, Michael Moffitt, suffered
slight injuries. '

The Letelier car came o rest
against a Volkswagen parked within
100 yards-of the Chilean ambassador’s
residence, and set the stage for a mas-
sive worldwide FBI investigation into
the first diplomatic assassination
here.

Letelier’s coworkers, and others in
leftist circles, immediately accused

DINA, at the time the focus of allega-
tions of massive human rights viola-

Ronni Moffitt was sitting on SK______ See LETELIER, A14, Col. 1

passenger'’s side of the front seat.
died a few seconds after the blast as
she staggered from the shattered,

)

Backgrounds of the prificipals in the
Letelier infictments. Page All.

g

ORLANDO LETELIER
... vietim of 1976 bombir
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tions and torture of political prisoners,
of the bombing. They said DINA
was concerned about the eontinuing-
attention that Letelier was_ahle to fo- ..
cus on the Pinochet regime, and‘si-‘
lenced him for that reason.

The FBI, with help from the DC.

Police Department, began the inten- ,f

sive lab work and search of the homb ™
scene. Its agents began the first of
thousands of interviews, weeding out

the possibility of domestic plots #nd-

other suspects before focusing on po-
litical motivations,

The Justice Department worked ‘out
careful alliances with the State De-
partment and the Central Intelligence
Agency” to. allow their cooperation
with .the_ investigation. Within a
month of the blast, the investigation
was centered on the Cuban National-
ist Movement and the allegation by a
jailed international terrorist that two
CNM members—Ignacio Novo Sampol

and Guillermo Novo Sampol—were in-

volved in the plet.. -

The Novos, known for their firing
of a bazooka at the United Nations in
1964 when Che Guevara was speaking
there, were brought before the grand
jury .and questioned. Yesterday's in-
dictment accuses them of committing
perjury when they told that grand
jury that they did not know anything
about Letelier, DINA or the slaying.

A few- months later, another Cuban
ationalist Movement leader, Jose
ionisio Suarez Esquivel, was called
efore the same grand jury and
ranted immunity from prosecution if
e would testify about his alleged in-
volvement in the plot. He refused, and
was jailed for contempt of court for
11 months until that particular grand
jury’s term expired this year.
In Februnry 1978 prosecutor Prop—

- issuanee of Paraguayan passports for
two DINA egents to use on an unspec-
_ified .secret mission to the United
. States. - -

-Contreras then ordered Fernandez
to go to Parsguay to mest with that
country’s military intelligence agency
in connection with a two-man mission,
about which Espinoza would give him
smore details, the indictment said.

.+ Espinoza gave false indentification
- materialg to Fernandez for the Para-

myan__,u-lp to pick up the passports,
and; Ferandez called Townley to ar-

“range for Espinoza to meet him, ac-

cording to the indictment.

At & second meeting that month, Es-
pinoza teld Townley that he and Fer-
nandez “were being ordered to go to

.thc_United States on a DINA mission
- to assassinate Orlando Letelier” the

indictment stated.

After the two men obtained Para-
guayan passports, Contreras ordered
Fernandez to trayel to the United
States ia August on a DINA mission,
the, indictment alleges, and Espinoza
gave him a ticket to the United
States, where Fernandez and another
DINA agent arrived on Aug. 26 to be-
gin surveillance of Letelier.

On Sept. 7, 1976, according to the in-
dictment, Espinoza sent Townley te
the United States to “carry out the
previously discussed mission to assas-
sinate Orlando Letelier.”

Townley, using a passport in the

name of Hans Petersen Silva, arrived ., .
" hours, Paz,. Suarez Townley drove to

at Kennedy International Airport on
Sept. § and got the Letelier surveil-
lance information from l‘ermdez, the
indictment sald.

Then, according to the indictment,
the fonowlng acts occurred over the
next two weeks:

Sept. 9—Townley, driving an Avis
rental car, went to New Jersey to
meet with CNM leader Virgilio Paz
Romero and asked him to set up a

ca3e e cdd Nl llanema Navn

. MICHAEL MOFFITY
. “we feel vindicated”

Envoy Motel on New, York Avenue
NE.

Sept. la-—Paz Suarez u\d Townley
constructed the bomb in a Washing-
ton motel room.

Sept. 19—In the eurly morning

Letelier’'s house in Bethesda, and
Townley crawled under the car and
strapped the bomb into place.

Sept. 19—Townley called his wife,
Mariana Ines . Callegas de Townley,
who also was a DINA agent, in Santi-
ago to have her tell DINA the bomb
was in place.

Sept. 19—Townley flew back to New

Jersey and was picked up by Ross.

They met with Guillermo Nevo, and

-the FBI and other U.S.

charge known as mlsprimon of a tel-
ony.

Yesterday’s indictment before U.S.
District Chief Judge William B. Bryant
ended 22 months of often pessimistic
waiting by Michael Moffit and others
whoe had closely watehed the progress
of the investigation.

Motfitt, 27, was sitting in his office
at the Institute for Policy Studies
when the official news of the indict-
ment arrived.

He said he was “satisfied, but there (]
still more to be done” in terms of see-
ing how diligent the United States
will be in making sure the charges
azainst the Chilean-officials are tried.

“I hate to say, ‘I told you so’”
Moffitt said, but “we feel vindlcated
(by the charges against DINA).
knew who was responsible lnd we
never changed that.”

IPS staffers, whose leffist think
tank was ‘inﬂltrated and otherwise

. 8pied on by the FBI and police during

the antiwar years, early in the .case
publicly doubted the willingness of
. agencies to
solve & crime-against a leftist diplo-
mat such as Letelier.

“It was difficult for a while unti}
there . was some kind of trust—not
trust in-the mushy »ense, but respect,”
Motfit said. He said FBI agent Cor-
nick and ‘prosecutor Propper are
“decent people, Cornick is a damn
good cop . there are obviously good
cops in the FBI and Carter Cornick is
one of them. We weren't trying to sell
them' our whole political program.
We just wanted to see justice done.”

Moffit said that he now lives “out

of a coffee cup and qut of a begr glass
and {t's no substitute for a nﬁl’hgy)

My work (anti-Chilean junta activities
is my life because %he junta was
responsible for the death of my wife.”

He and Ronnl Moffitt had -been

.married for four months before the

bombing.
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The Novos, known for their firing
of a bazooka at the United Nations in

1964 when Che Guevara was speaking

there, were brought before the grand
jury.and questioned. Yesterday's in-
dictment accuses them of committing
perjury when they told that grand
jury that they did not know anything
about Letelier, DINA or the slaying.
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A few-months later, another Cuban
Nationalist Movement leader, Jose

ionisio Suarez Esquivel, was called

fore the same grand jury and
ranted immunity from prosecution if
e would testify about his alleged in-
volvement in the plot. He refused, and
was jailed for contempt of court for
11 months until that particular Srand
jury’s term expired this year.

In February 1978, progecutor Prop-
per and lesd FBI agent L. Carter Cor-
nick decided to make a public request
. to Chile that the country preduce for
questioning two men who had trav-
eled to the United States on official
Chilean passports and had met with
Cuban suspects in the plot.

Chile denied the existence-of the
two men; but after The Washington
Star obtained and published the pho-
tographs of the men they were
quickly identified as DINA agents
Townley and Fernandex. *

The United States was able to pres-
sure Chile into turning Townley—an
American citizen who grew up in
Chile while his father headed a U.S.
auto firm there—over to them. Once
he arrived in the United States, Town-
ley agreed to plead guilty to one count
of conspiracy to murder Letelier. He
spent day after day telling FBI agents
and prosecutors the additional details
they needed to charge others in the
plot.

According to the indictment re-
turned yesterday, the plot began in
July 1976 when DINA chief Contreras
asked the Paraguayan military intelli-
gence service director to authorize the

mmQ
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States, where Fernandez and another
DINA agent arrived on Aug. 26 to be-
gin surveillance of Letelier.

On Sept. 7, 1976, according to the in-
dictment, Espinoza sent Townley to
the United States to “carry out the
previously discussed mission to assas-
sinate Orlando Letelier.”

Townley, using a passport in the

name of Hans Petersen Silva, arrived . -
: “ hours, Paz, Suarez Townley drove to

at Kennedy International Airport on
Sept. 9 and got the Letelier survell-
lance information from Fernandez, the
indictment said.

Then, according to the indictment
the following acts oci#urted over the
next two weeks: -

Sept. 9—Townley, driving an Avis
rental car, went to New Jersey to

. meet with CNM leader Virgilio Paz

Romero and asked him to set up a
meeting with Guillermo Novo.

Sept. 10 — Townley met in New Jer-
sey with Guillermo Novo and Suarez
and “requested their assistance” in
his DINA orders to uuuimte Lete-
lier.

Sept. 13 — Townley outhned the
Letelier murder plot to members of
the governing counmeil of the CNM
during a meeting at the Chateau Ren-~
aissance motel in North Bergen, N.J.
Alvin Ross Diad} another CNM leader,
joined the others at this meeting. o

Sept. 15 — Guillermo Novo and
Suarez gave Townley and Paz explo-
sives and a remotecontrol detonaung
device. - o

Sept. 18 — Paz and Townley drove
to the District and checked into a Hol-
iday Inn in Northeast Washington.

Sept. 17 — Additional wires and
other elements of a bomb were pur-
chased by Paz and Townley at a Sears _
Roebuck and Co. store in Northeast
Washington.

Sept. 18 — Novo, Suarez and Ross
got additional bomb parts in New Jer-
sey, and Suarez drove to the District
of Columbia to join Paz and Townley.
Suarez registered at the Best Western

vh.a'f]iﬁnn “‘R"eauest

' MICHAEL MOFFITT
. “we feel vindicated”

Envoy Motel on New, York Avenue

Sept. 18—Paz, Suarez and Townley
constructed the bomb in a Washing-
ton motel room.

Sept. 19—In the eﬁrly morning

Letelier's house in Bethesda, and-
Townley cratiled under the car and
sttapped the bomb into place.

Sept. 19—Townley called his wife, .

Magiane dnes - Callegas de Townley,
who also was a DINA agent, in Santi-
ago to have her tell DINA the bomb
was in place.

Sept. 19—Townley flew back to New
Jersey and was picked up by Ross.”
They met with Guillermo cho and
Townley flew to Miami.

Sept. 21—The bomb exploded and
investigators surmised it was deto-
nated by Suarez, the only member of
the assassination téam remmfning in
Washington. Later that 'day, Townley
called Ignacio Novo in Florida and
Novo told him that “Something had
happened in the Distrjct of Colum-
bia.” Novo'and Townley met.in Flo-
rida, where Novo was briefed on the
- mission.

Sept. ‘23—Townley ﬂew back “to
Chile from Florida.

Sept. 24—“Within the Republic of

Chile, Michael Townley advised Pedro
Espinoza that the DINA mission to as-
sassinate Orlando Letelier had been
carried out.” the indictment states.
. The indictment specifically charges
* ‘the three Chileans and four of the Cu-
bans—all but Ignacio Ngvo—with con-
spiracy to murder Letelier and the
murder of Letelier under federal stat-
utes, murder of Letelier under local
statutes, murder- of Moffitt under
local statutes, and murder by use of
explosives under federal stitute. Each
count carries a possible life sentence.

Guillermo Novo and Ignacio Novo -

are charged with two counts each of
lying to a grand jury, and Ignacio

Novo was charged with failing to tell -

law enforcement autherities about the
crime after it occurred—a federal

the FBI and other U.S. agencfes to
solve a crime against a leftist diplo-
mat such as Letelier.

“It was  difficult for a while until
there- was some kind of trust—not
trust in-the mushy wense, but respect,”
Moffit said. He said FBI agent Cor-
nick and ‘prosecutor Propper are
“decent people. Cornick is a damn
good cop . . . there are obviously good
cops in the FBI and Carter Cornick is
one of them. We weren't trying. to sell
them' our whole political program.
We just wanted to see justice done.”

Moffit said that he now lives “out
.of a coffee cup and out of a glass
‘and {t's no substitute for am
My work (anti-Chilean junta activities
is my life because #e unta was
responsible for the death of my wife.”

He and, Ronal Moffitt had .been
.married for four months belore the
bomblng

i Letelier had been imprisoned by*
the military regime after the fall of .
Marxist Chilean president Salvador

Allende in a 1973 military coup. But
“Tafter his release from a oneayear
prison term, he  had .returned, to
Washmgton—where he had served
Allende as ambassador to the United

States—and built up a strong follow-
- ing in leftist’ political cireles.

His wife, lsabel Letelier, was, va-
~cationing in Martha’s Vineyard, Jass.,
yesterday and could not be reached
for comment.

U.S. Attorney Earl J. Silbert and

his top aides, all of whom were pres- 1

ent when the indictment was brought
yesterday, pralsed the investigation
of the case by the FBI and its Wash-
ipgton field office. He also com-
ménded the work by Propper and

Assistant U.S. Attorney E. Lawrence °

Barcella Jr., the two prosecutors who
will try the case before U.S. District
Judge Barrington D. Parker.

Ross, Ignacio Novo an Guillermo
Novo have already been arrested on-
Letelier-related charges an are in cus-
tody Paz and Suarez are fugitives,
‘and warrants have been issued for
their arrest. . f

Also contributing to this story. was
Washington Post staff writer Lawrence
Meyer

N

D]
|
i



Suspect’s Action
In Letehier Case
Disputed by Diary

By Jeremiak O’Leary
Washingion Star Stal! Writer

A child’'s diary says Jose Dionisio Suarez, a

Cuban exile accused in the assassination of Chi-

* lean diplomat Orlande Letelier, was with his
family in New Jersey on Sept. 19, 1976, not placing
a bomb here as the government contends, his wife
insists.

The wife, Marta, 37, says a diary kept by her 14-
year-old daughter, also named Marta, indicates
that Suarez was in Elizabeth, N.J., on that date.

' Mrs. Suarez, now a teacher in San Jose, Calif.,
said in a telephone interview that she only recently
discovered her daughter kept a careful record of
events in 1876,

“She does not permit me to read her diary,”
Mrs. Suarez said. ‘‘But she has a record in the
diary that on Sunday, Sept. 19, 1976, she enjoyed
telling her father about how she played the guitar
at Sunday mass that day.

“And later, the diary records that my hushand
stayed home that Sunday to make some repairs in
the bathroom so we could sell the house. My

* danghter also wrote that we came home from the

maovies, a double feature, and that she also told her
father about what movie we saw.”’

THE MASS WAS at 8t. Catherine’s Catholic
Church. The movies attended by Mrs, Suarez,
Marta and a second child, Victor, 9, were, accord-
ing to the diary, ‘“‘Murder on the Orient Express’
and “Big Bus."” ’

“l have not told the FBI about this,”” Mrs,
Suarez said.

“I1f my husband was working here at heme on
that day, listening to Marta talk about the guitar
mass and the movies, he could not have been in
Washington as the prosecutor says,” she said.

According to the grand jury indictments re-
turned here, Suarez came to Washington on Sept.
18, three days before the explosion that killed Le-
telier and a colleague, Ronni Moffitt.

The FBI contends that Suarez and other mem-
bers of the anti-Castro Cuban Nationalist
Movement joined forces with Michael V. Townley,
35, an American in the service of Chile’s DINA se-
cret police, to assassinate Letelier.

The indictments allege that Suarez, subject of 2
nationwide FBI manhunt, and his Cuban-born as-
sociates, Guillermo Novo, Alvin Ross Diaz and
Viﬁgmo Paz, joined in the conspiracy to kiil Le-
telier,

IT IS ALLEGED that the conspiracy was set
into motion by Army Gen. Manuel Contreras Se-
pulveda, chief of DINA; Col. Pedro Espinoza, his
operations chief; and Capt. Armando Fernandez.

Townley and Fernandez came to the United
States to execute the plot but Townley, an Ameri-
can citizen with a Chilean wife, is the govern-
ment’'s primary witness against the other conspir-
ators, the government says.
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7 An uneasy feelmgabout Cuba s

GUAMA, Cuba — You sit in
an isolated “Indian village”
vaecation retreat near this little
Cuban town, lunching on pork,
black beans and rice. You
watch the Cubans and their
American guests gulp down
anejo rum, dance the cha cha,
meringue and assorted un-
named gyrations to tunes from
a jukebox. And you admit one
thing to yourself:

There is no way to say or
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write anything about Cuba
after 17 years of Fidel Castro's
rule with certainty that it is
true. Surely not after eight
days here and perhaps not
after 80.

I

Some things are easy
enough to see. Aimost nobody
in Cuba enjoys the affluent
standard of living that is com-
mon to the great majority of
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U.S. citizens. Yet. even though
you see some shacks with
scrawny chickens and poorly
dressed children in the yards,
you are also aware that no-
where do you see the wretched
poverty commonplace in the
favelas of Brazil, the barrios
of Venezuela, the slums of
Jamaica. Cuba seems to have
no people starving, or without
shelter — a claim that not
even the U.S. can make.

“ .

...‘

A Cuban challenged me to
find a single beggar on- the
streets of Havana, a single
hooker in her nightclubs and
hotels. T saw none.

* % %

S0 you sit in Guama assess-
ing the pride of the Cubans
who are accompanying you,
eager to show you the apart-
ment buildings that have
sprung up everywhere, or the
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new schools, clinics, hospitals, .

factories that have been built
in the countryside.

You watch the Cuban offi-
cials carefully, wondering to
what extent they are living
lies. You question whether, for
all their pride in what Castro
has done to wipe out corrup-
tion, to dethrone the privileged
classes, to throw out “foreign
exploiters,” to battle racism,
these sophisticated Cubans
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ever question the price they
have paid for this advance—
ment.

You sense you may nevau
know, for Cuba is a police =
state which tolerates no dis~.::
sent, suffers nothing retnotely~j.~.
approaching a free press and
guarantees no ‘‘civil rights” b e
any individual. . -

Castro makes no apology
for this. He once said: “The’
revolution is the first to lament
that individual guarantees
cannot be granted . . . to con- -
cede those guarantees would
serve that powerful enemy -
who has tried to destroy the~"--
revolution and to drown it in-~°
the blood of the people.™

* o X ., -

So do the Cubans you are ~
watching believe in their silent
hearts that Castro and the
Communist Party betrayed-...
the revolution? Or is it possi-.
ble that all really feel that get- .
ting rid of “Yankee imperial-, -
ism” was worth even sur- -
render of press, politigal, so-
cial, economic and othel liber-, -
ties? T



"Chile. They are not yet certain,
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On the Trail Of a Murderer'

WASHINGTON — The man behind the mur-
der of Chilean exile leader Orlando Letelier, as
ederal investigators have pieced together the
stery, is probably Chile’s shadowy secret
ice chief, Manuel Contreras Sepulveda.

In one of the most complicated investiga-
tions since Watergate, FBI sleuths have traced
the man who ordered the killing to
Contreras’ office in Santiago,

however, whether Contreras him-
self gave the order or whether it
came from a top aide.

Most federal sources believe
the murder could not have been
carried out without Contreras’
direct approval. In fact, some
i t. sources speculate
that Chilean President Augusto
Pinochet himself personally sug-
gested the assassination.

No one working on the case will comment
directly. But we have learned that the FBI has
st up its activity among terrorists in Miami

to resolve the case in the near future,

complete with the names of the actual assassins.
telier was killed by a bomb, which was
attached beneath his Chevrolet. The bomb
exploded last Sept. 21 as he was driving down
Washington’s tranquil Embassy Row with two
‘American colleagues, Mike and Ronnie Moffitt.
The blast killed Letelier and Mrs. Moffitt but

. miraculously spared her husband. Afterward, an

WE \w g

w

anguished Mike Moffitt ed us to investigate
the bombing. We have kept in close touch,
therefore, with the federal investi%ation.

Within a few weeks, we were able to identify
Chile’s notorious secret'B;)lIce, known \lﬁy the
dread initials DINA, as the probable culprits.
Now we can describe the murder pjot.

"We are told that Pinochet expressed his
displeasure with Letelier to the DINA chief. We
have reason to believe that Contreras, in

res| to the Chilean president’s wishes,
dis a DINA officer to the United States to
m with two leaders of Brigade 2506, an

organization of Bay of Pigs veterans.
Some members of the brigade, trained in

violence by the CIA, allefedly have become
right-wing terrorists. The DINA agent was put in
touch with them, according to our sources, by a
Chilean diplomat in the United States, who
secretly works for DINA.

We reached the d%ylomat who reportedly has
been interrogated by U.S. authorities. At first, he
told us through an interpreter that the affair was
his “private problem.”” Then he refused to
comment; then his aide told us the charge was
“ridiculous.” ,

Investigators tell us, however, the twg bri-
ade leaders contacted among others a Cuban

molition expert, Guillermo Novo, in New
Jersey. At that time, he was on probation after.

convictivn - for “Mlegsl use of explosives. He
violated his probation and is now a fugitive,
The assassination plot was worked out, our
sources say, at a secret rendezvous near Bonao
in the Dominican ic. It was decided that a
special shaped plastic charge :vu needed for the

bombing. .

Thee ve was available on the streets of
Miami, the bomb materials were bought and
fashioned in the United States, most sources
believe.

However, one source told us the bomb was
actually constructed in Chile.

It was later delivered to the Miami area by a
Chilean military official carrying a dlr.l:;natic
passport and flying in a military airpiane, the
source said. The device was transmitted to a
member of Brigade 2506, we are told. He then
carried it to New Jersey where the assassination
team was waiting for it.
aceo! to our to Letelier.

The Justice Dept. had no formal comment on
the case. We have learned that prosecutors,
however, are trying to figure how to get
testimony from Chileans with diplomatic immu-
nity and how to extradite potential defendants
from Chile.

Footnote: The Chilean government has
repeatedly denied any involvement with the
assassination. kesmen for Brigade 2506 also
have sworn that their members had nothing to do
with murdering Letelier. Incidentally <Gt S
announced the dissolution of DINA. But our

used the bomb,

The FBI has traced the man
who ordered the killing of
Chilean Orlando Letelier to
the office of the chief of Chile’s
secret police. N

sources say its duties simply have W taken
over by other ox‘ganizations.
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~ The Cubans

Men of Long-Held Political Passions

By Christopher Dickey
Washington Post Btal! Writer
They are veterans of a long, lust
war, the five Cubans lndicted vester-
day in connection with the slaying
of & former Chilean ambassador.
Though some of them led outwardly
calm, industrious lives, they were also
familiar with the darkest sides of life
in the Cuban communmel of New
Jersey and Miami.
Among the most-radieal, right-wing
elements of those communities, con-
spiracy often blends with intense poli-

tical hatreds, the intense desire to

return to a Cuba purged of Castros
revolution, and passions burn like
fuses.

It is also a world of secrecy from
which there erupts occasional, some-
times spectacular, outbursts of vio-
lence.

" Some of the first names to come to
light in the Investigation of Orlando
Letelier's murder were those of the
Novos—Ignacio Novo Sampeol an un-
employed shoe and auto salesman,
and his younger brother Guillermo
Novo Sampol. They were implicated
by another Cuban exile leader who

was being held in Venezuela at the

time in connection with the bombing
of a ‘Cuban commercial airliner in
which 73 persons died.

The Novos were {eaders of the
militant Cuban Nationalist Movement
‘based in Union City, N.J., and their
names had long been familiar to the
federal agents who keep an eye on
the exiles' counter-revolutionary un-
derworld.

It was the Novo brothers who were
charged in 1864 with firing a bazooka
at the United Nations building while
Cuban revolutionary Che Guevara
was speaking there, though the
charges fater were dropped.

Ten /years later, Guillermo Novo
was obnvicted of plotting to blow up
a Cdban ship anchored in JMontreal.

IGNACIO NOVO BAMPOL
. « widely known in exfle community

‘By April of last year, another mem-
ber of the Cuban Nationalist Move-
ment was drawn into the investiga-
tion. But, even though he was offerad
immunity for his testimony, 38-year-
oid sslesman Jose Dionisio Suarez,
Esquivel, of Elizabetly, N.J., refused
to talk, and spent 11 monthl in jail.

Both the Novos and Suarex testi-
fied under oath that they knew noth-
ing of Letelier's murder.

According to yesterday's indict-
ment, however, Guillermo Novo, Sua-
rez, and their compatriots, Virgilio
Paz Romero and Alvin Ross Diaz met
with DINA agent Michael Vernon
Townley on Sept. 13, 1876, to plot the
murder of Orlando Letelier.

By Sept. 18 the same four mem-
bers of the Cuban Nationalist Move-
ment had helped Townley struct
a bomb, according to the ind nt.

On Sept. 21, Leételier died n a
bomb blast destroyed his car. -
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By Timothy S. Robinson
-t Washington Post Staff Writer
s *Michael Vernon Townley, a sott-spo-
n, intense and articulate 35-year-old
‘fman who has made Chile his home for
the past 20 years already is starting to
_be known in some circles as the “John
vean” of the Letelier affair.
'wu-He is an unlikely tigure to be found
his current role—asz the heavily
guarded informant who has calmly
told FBI agents and prosecutors how
-he followed orders to plant an explo-
sive whose blast left its intended vic-
.>3im so mangled that hardened investi-
. dggtors became sick at the scene ol the
rtﬂme.
~2%As he is described By people who
know him, Townley' is a skilled elec-
tronic technician capable of assem-
bling devices to detonate bombs by re-
piote control. He had been active in
commando raids against the late Chi-
»lean President Salvador Allende,
,whose Marxist regime was toppled in
a-military coup by the current Chi-
léan president, Gen. Augusto Pino-
chet

Townley, an American who grew up
in Chile where his father headed a
““large U.S. automobile operation, had
become a familiar sight to Americans
there by the early 1070s. He was
- known as a political activist who was
» suspected of participating in military
activitles of Patria y Libertad, a right-
;;wing Chilean party.
- » Although he had been charged with
~‘murder for his alleged participation
woih a Conception raid in which a night
'ﬂwatchman was killed, the .charges
were dropped when Pinochet came to
power ‘in late 1973 and Townley be-
came an agent of DINA, the Chilean
1.8ecret police a/slency
. Townley wéds expelled from Chile in
qarly Aprik
pressure n the country to turn him
gver. In the us., hls attorneys, Sey-

‘after the U.S. put intense

"The Witness

Townley: He Followed Orders

, .MICHAEL VERNON TOWNLEY
... unlikely figure in current role - -

mour Glanzer and Barry W. Levine,
struck up a deal by which he would
enter a guilty plea to one count of
conspiracy to murder Letelier and
would in return cooperate in the Lete-
lier investigation.

As a part of the deal, Townley will
only have to cooperate with and pro-
vide information to U.S. authorities
on his role in the Letelier murder.
He reportedly has additional informa-
tion about terrorist activities in other
countries, but is not required to give
that information to the U.S., sources
have said.

As was John Dean in the Watergate
affair, Townley was, by his own ac-
count, directly involved in the exe-

cution of crimes and has @ecided to
testify against his close associates.
And, as in Watergate, Townlky could,

“as did Dean, play a centralVyrole in

questioning the activities of a coun-
try’s highest government officials.
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By Jack Anderson and Les Whitten

WASHINGTON — Secret papers found
in Chilean exile leader Oriando Leteller's
attache’ case after his assassination shows
he had been cotlecting a mysterious $1,000 a
month through a ‘‘Havana connection.”

The papers. also reveal that Leteiler's
office had bee in close contact, perhaps in-
nocently, with 2 top Cuban intelligence
agent named Julian Rizo.

The respected Letelier, a former -

Chilean {oreign minister, was blown to obli-
vion on \ept. 2L as he was dri down
Washingtop's tranquil, tree-shaded Embas.

Row. mpanying him in his bive

5
(gxevrolet were two passengers, Mike Mof- '

Dead Cian exile
had link to Cuba

fit and his wife, Ronni. The bomb blast aiso
ﬂw Roani, but Mike miraculously sur-

He telephoned us afterward in anguish
and pleaded with us to investigate the as-
sassination. Our preliminary findings in-
dicated that Chile's dread secret police,
known as DINA, probably had been behind
the bombing. Now our investigation has
turned up some unexpected developments,
- The blast that killed Letelier, we have
learned, revealed that be had been leading
a strange double life. The evidence was
locked in a Samsonite attache’ case, which
investigators salvaged from the wreckage.
The briefcase was returned to the
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murdered man's family. But first, in-
wlli?ence agents copied the contents for
possible clues that might lead to the assas-
sins.

They found some unexpected clues that
were even more fascinating. The briefcase
contained papers 30 sensitive that Letelier
probably carried them to ent their
theft by CIA housebreakers. We have now
seen some of these hush-hush papers,

They show that Letelier received §1,000
a month through a ‘‘Havana connection.”
His contact was none other than Beatrice
“Tati" Allende, daughter of Salvador
Allende, the Chilean president who was sl-
ain in 1073 by a military junta. Tati now
lives in Havana with her husband, who is a

- Cuban official.

In a May 8, 1975, letter to Letelier, she -
notitied him that he will receive $5,000 as an
advance payment ‘‘para apoyer tu trabajo’’ -
~— “to support your work,”” This was to be
followed by the monthly $1,000 payments.
The money would come, she said, from the
Chilean Socialist party in exile. The dis-
bursement had -been approved, she ex-
plained, by the party's leader, Carlos
Altamierano, who is reported to be living in
exile in East Berlin. ‘ .

The Chilean Socialist Party has offices

- in East Berlin, Havana and Rome.

Intelligence sources contend that money
couldn’t have been transmitted to Letelier
without the-Cuban government's approval.
Another letter in Letelier's briefcase
was written on Sept. 14, 1978, by one of his
{loung colleagues, It tells of a meeting in
avana with Emilio Brito, a Communist
Central Committee functionary. Accord

;?I ygl&mgwrcm Brito ism-
iated 7 ' pianning group that
dires(s the subversion of PuepZo Rico and
the United States. e



Slain Chilean

- tied to Havana

Secret papers found in Chilean exile leader Orlando Letetier’s
attache case after his assassination show he had been collecting
a mysterious $1,000 a month through a ‘“‘Havana connection.”

The papers also reveal that
Letelier's office had been in
close contact. perhaps inno-
cently, with a top Cuban intel-
ligence agent named Julian
Torres Rizo.

The respected Letelier, a’

former Chilean foreign minis-
ter. was blown to oblivion on
Sept. 21 as he was drivin

down Washington's tranquil,

tree-shaded Embassy Row. .. F 4 '
+ ble clues that might lead to the

Accompanying him in his blue
Chevrolet were two passen-
gers, Mike Moffit and his wife,
Ronni. The bomb blast also
killed Ronni, but Mike miracu-
lously survived.

He telephoned us afterward
in anguish and pleaded with us
io investigaie the assassina-
tion. Qur preliminary findings
indicated that Chile's dread se-
cret police. known as DINA,

probably had been behind the

bombing. Now our investiga-
tion has turned up some unex-
pected developments.

The blast that killed Leteli-
er, we have learned, ‘revealed
that he had been leading a
strange double life. The evl-
dence was locked in a Samso-
nite attache case, which inves.
iigators salvaged from the
wreckage. .

The briefcase was returned
{o the murdered man's family.
But first, intelligence agents
copied the contents for possi-

assassins.

They found some unexpect- i
ed clues that were even more
fascinating. The briefcase con-
tained papers so sensitive that
Letelier probably carried
them to prevent their theft by .
CIA housebreakers, We have
now seen some of these hush-
hush papers.

They show that Letelier re-
ceived $1,000 a month through
& “Havana connection.” His
contact was none other than
Beatrice (Tati) Allende,
daughter of Salvador Allende,
the Chilean president who was
slain in 1973 by a military
junta. Tati now lives in Hava-

-na with her husband, who is a
.Cuban official.

In a May 8. 1975, letter to
Letelier, she notified him that
he will receive $5,000 as an ad-
vance payment ‘‘para apoyer
tu trabajo” — ‘‘to support your
work.” This was to be followed
by the monthly $1,000 pay-
ments. The wmoney would,
come, she said, from the Chi-
lean Socialist Party in exile.
The disbursement had been
approved, she explained, by
the party’s leader, Carlos Al-
tamierano,sube-iz-yeported to
lb.e living in exile in Kast Ber-

The Chilean Sqgialist Party |

has offices insfﬁ"'ﬁiﬂm,
Havana and Rome. Intelli-
gence sources contend that
money couldn’t . have been :
transmitted to Letelier without"
the Cuban government's ap-
proval. '
. Another letter in Letelier’s
briefcase was written on Sept.
14, 1978, by one of his young
colleagues. It tells of a meet-
ing in Havana with Emilio
Brito, a Communist Central’
Committee functionary. Ac-
cording to our intefligence
sources, Brito is affiliated with
the Cuban planning group that
directs the subversion of Puer-
to Rico and the United States.

The letter thanks Brito for
some scholarly material ‘re-
ceived from the hands of Ju-
lian Rizo.” The writer
promises to send other
academic information to Brito
t h “|a Mision,” meaning
the Cuban mission at the
United Nations. )

. Officially, Rizo was listed
. as the first secretary of the

Cuban mission. But as early as
March 1, 1976, we identified
him as a spy in diplomatic dis-
guise. “His mission at the
United Nations,” we wrote, “is
to develop contacts with radi-
cals in this country.”

We have omitted the name
of Letelier’s young colleague,
because he has received an
assassination threat. But we
questioned him for an hour.
The young man contended per-
suasively that he was totally
unaware of the intelligence
roles of Brito and Rizo.

\



T: ownley Gui ltyPlea Acceptan ce

- By Timothy S. Robinson

" . Washington Post Staff Writers

GS. District Judge Barrington D.
Parker yesterday postponed any ac-
osptance of a guilty pléa from Mi-
‘chael Vernon Townley, the key gov-
etsmpent witness in the Orlando Lete-
lier murder case.
- Pgrker did not disclose his reasons
-for saying he wanted to review the

plea-bargaining agreement before de-
ciding whether to accept it. But The
Washington Post learned later that
the snag developed over a section of
the agreement in which the govern-

ment agreed that a specific prison
- term would be imposed ‘upon Townr'

ley.

The presentatxon by prosecutors of
a plea-bargaining agreement involving
a specific prison-term promise for a

-

{ ‘tune in pirson. The count to which

defendant is extremely ‘rare _here
since U.S. judges prefer to exercise

sole authority over the sentencing
Pprocess. However such agreements

are legauy allowable and are used

regularly in some jurisdictions.

The exact length of the prison term
to which government prosecutors
agreed for Townley could not be as-
certained, although it reportedly would
require him to serve “substantial”

Townley has ngreed to plead garries
~a maximum prison sentence of life. -
- Townley, who grew up in Chile and

me a secret police agent there
during the current Chilean :military

regime of Gen. Augusto Pinochet, has .

agreed with presecutors that he will
plead guilty to one count of censpir-

acy to murder Leteuer,fmagtcm-\

le2n ambassador te the US, . i
Letelier and a coworker.:!mm K.

Moffitt, were killed Sept. 21, 1978/

when,a bomb exploded under the.ear -

4

in wikch they were dmving around |

Sh Circle NW.

-,

According to ourt testlmony by an

agency, DINA, ® the US. to

nate Letelier, aid actually placed the
bomb under lier’s car. -
Townley’s agrement three months

ago to plead gulty in the case is be-
lieved to have been a major break
leading to ay’s indictment of
five Cuban es in the U.S. and
taree DINA .officials in Chile for
Letelier's murder.
. Townley servad as the conduit be-
tween the two groups as well as being
directly involved in the sctual assassi-
nation, sccording to investigators.
The still-secret plea-bargaining pact,
in which Townley reportedly agrees

" to'provide information only about ac-*

tivities he mady bave been inveolved
inmU.S spil or involving U.S. citi-

" zens or property, was worked out in

more than two weeks of negotiations

- between his attorney, Seymour Glan-

zer, and the government.
ers had been notified yester-

day, in ‘thhe usual Justice Department

_he did not feel ‘the.

layed by Judge

manner, that Townley’s plea was ex-
pected before Judge Parker at 2 p.m.

"The proceeding was delayed, however,
by 2 meeting in the judge’s chambers

involving prosecutors and Glanzer.

Avound 2:40 p.m., Townley—a
bearded, thin man wearing a blue suit
—was brought jinto the courtreom to
join the attorneys who had asseeprbed
there.

When Plrher \took the" bench, ‘he
called Townlep torward and ‘:;ld h;lhm
that ke earned. ut. the
plel-bargaimiw Sgreement ~and hat

‘péurt>had beéen
“Sully advised” yet sbout the déal.

Park«nidhewantedto‘%t.epbock
and teviewl. the, "aegreement and res-
‘chedule g‘e& sopie timein the
fear fatu?éx N

“Ag & M wm'h o grpr
ceeding at. pm, Parke? smL

The indigtment ‘Agguses

“DINA head Gen. Manuel Contretas

Sepulveda. of ordering Letelier's mur-
der, and two other -DINA operatives
in Chile with. execugnz the, détails of
the plag.. e o
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__unie Arresis 5 \Named
In Letelier Indictment-

By Charles A. Krause
Washington Post Porelgn Servies,

SANTIAGO, Chile — The Chilean
government last night arrested and
placed under military detention three
Chileans indicted yesterday in Wash-
ington in the September 1876 bomb-
ing death of former Chilean foreign
minister and diplomat Orlando Lete-
lier.

The three were identified yester-
day in the indictment as Gen. Juan
Manuel Contreras Sepulveda, former
head ¢f Chile’s secret police (DINA),
and two other DINA employes, opera-

' tions director Pedro Espinoza Bravo

and agent Armando Fernadez Larios.

The government statement an-
nouncing their arrests failed to say
where they were being held or when

" they had been arrested.

The U.S. Embassy here had formal-
1y asked for the arrest and detention
of the three yesterday afternoon,
touching off what is expected to he a

. complicated legal battle over their

extradition.
The statement also stressed that

the three are innocent until proven .

guilty, and expressed the hope of
Chileap President Augusto Pinochet
that the case would be cleared up.

Contrearas is a close associate of
Pinochet.

The: statement, issued by Interior
Minister Serglo Fernandez, ssid there
would be an extradition hearing be-
fore a, Chilean court, but no date for
the hearing was given,

A U.S. Embassy note asking for
the arrests was delivered by Charles
Grover, second deputy chief of mis-
sion, with the concurrence of U.S.
Ambasgsador George W. Landau, who
was i8 northern Chile when the in-
dictménts were announced yesterday.

The detention of the three is the
first step in extradition proceedings
that probably will culminate wulti-
mately with a hearing before the
Chilean Supreme Court, according to
terms’ set forth in a 1900 treaty be-
tween Chile and the United States
and later amended in 1835.

The legal battle dver the extradition
of the three will hinge on two seem-
ingly contradictory provisions of the
1900 treaty, Chilean legal experts say.

According to the first provision,
murder and “comprehending assassi-
nation” are extraditable offenses. But
a second provision tléarly sets forth
that a. “eriminal shall not be sur-
rendered if the offense.. .. beiof a
political -characters or if he proves
that the requisition for his surrender
has , in fact, been made with a view
to punish him for an offense of a
political character.”

The three
fight extradition.

Oonmru has already retained a

A

b

suspects are expected 10

prominent Santiago lawyer, Sergio
Miranda Carrington, who once offered
to defend Nazi war criminals at the
Nuremberg trials at the end of World
War 1L

Miranda could not be reached for
comment, but i8 expected by other
lawyers in Chile to argue that the
Letelier assassination was a political
crime, and is therefore not covered
by the treaty.

However, one source pointed out
Yesterday that Contreras and the oth-
er two Chileans are also charged with
the murder of Ronni Moftitt, the fe-
male colleague of Leteller who was
riding in his car at the time it was
blown up.

This source said a possible way
around the treaty's prohibition against
extradition for political offenises might
be to argue that Moffitt's death could
not be considered politically moti-
vated ‘and that the three Chileans
should be extradited to stand trial in
the United States for her murder.

Another section of the 1900 treaty
clearly states that “neither of the
contacting parties shall be bound to
deliver up its own citizens or subjects
under the stipulations of this treaty.”
This section' is interpreted here to
mean that the Chilean Supreme Court

. could order extradition, but is not

obliged to do so, even if the court
decides there is sufficient evidence
for the three Chileans to stand trial
for the charges brought in the United
States.

Another complication cited by legal

sources here i{s that under Chilean |

laws c,onspiracy to commit a crime is
not in itself a erime. The Supreme
Court, these sources said, might well
decide not to grant extradition for
that reason. .

The 1935 treaty says that if the
person whose extradition is sought is
a citizen of the country to which the
request is addressed the surrendering
state man determine whether to de-
liver him.

Both treaties provide for the ar-
rest and detention of a person ac-
.cused of a crime in another eountry

" when that country plans to ask for

extradition. . -

. Even if the Chilean Supreme Court
does not order the three Chileans to
be extradited to stand trial in the
United States many observers be-
lleve ,(the airing of the evidence
against them in public will have -a
significant impact on Chilean public

opinion about the alleged involve- '

ment by their government in the

~ assassination of Leteller, who served:
a8 the late Salvador Allende's am-

bassador to Washington as well ag

his foreign and defense minis
fore Chile's 1973 coup. —

be-
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The Chlleans

DINA Offu:wls Inspired Fear

By Christopher chkey
Washinuton Post Biaff Writer \
There were many people in Chile
who bellsved that Manuel Confreras

Sepulveda, the first and only head of
the Directorste of National Intelligence,
was the second most powerful man in
the country. He was certainly one of the
most feared.

Before it was ddssolved last year, his
agency, known as DINA, was blamed
for the disappeayance and torture of
thousends of pedple as it sought to
fortify the strength of the military
junta’ and suppress its. epposition,
bothdn Chile and abroad.

As head of DINA, Contrerag was an-
swerable only to Chilean President
Augusto Pinochet, with whom ‘he red
putedly was oh intimate terms.

On March 21 of this year, however
as international criticism. of Chile’s
human rights. record mounted, and
the investigation of Orlando Letelier's
murder heated up, Contreras resigned
from the Army and all government
posts he ‘had held since DINA was
abolished. No official explanation for
the resignation was given, '

. Contreras is accused in the tndict-
ment of having ordered Letelier's ss
sassination, but the man the indiet-
ment charges with most of the plot-
ting and supervision for the operation
is Pedro Espinoza, & colonel in the
Chilean army and currently com-
mander of a garrison in southern
Chile. At the time of Letelier's death,
Espinoza was director of operations
for DINA. Little else i3 known about
him, though according to several
sources familiar with Chilean politics,
it had been widely suspected ‘that
Espincza was in charge of stifling crit-
icism from exiled members of the for-
mer goverpment.

Armardo Fernandez Larios, the
man sxtused of organizing the actual

CONTRERAS SEPULVEDA
. . answerable ouly to president

assassination of , Letelier, and, _with:
Michael Vernon Townley, contacting-

and coordinating the activities of the
Cuban exiles involved, is a captain in

- Chile's army.

eral, he took part in the storming o
the Moneda Palace during the 1973
coup, and now works at the Ministry
of Defense in Santiago.

The son of a retired Air Force ge\

LR
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Around the World

Chilean in Letelier Probe
'Linked to Secret Police

'SANTIAGO, Chile—A  military °
source here has identified the second
of two men sought'in connection with,
the death in Washington of former -.
ambassador Orlando Letelier as Ar- °

captain _sttached to the Chilean
secret police, special correspondent
John Dinges reported. .

The source, who said he has knowﬂ
Fernandez since military school, said

e recoznized fne officer from picl '
tures printed Saturday m the Santi-

_BEO press.

The Chilean - government has re
| fused to comment on the identity of
the two men. The Washington Post re-

" ported Monday that Chile has said the
two men sought by the United States
_-identified initlally as Juan Williams
Rose and Alejandro Romeral Jara—do
not exist in military or divilian files.

Williams' picture has been recog-
nized by several persons who said he
Jas an_American, Michael V. Town:
| Jey, with a reputation for right-wing
activity in Chile. '

Another informed source reveal
that the two published photos were

-abtained by the U.S. government fromy .
onsulate in Paraguay. The sourcel !
| said the two men apphed for

e

.

i eral traveled to the\United Stafes on
I official Chilean passports with U.S. vi-.
8as. NP

o e
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~Carter Makes the Right Move on Chile and Human Rights
i, S, P e St i Dk ot b M

. . er, an assistant U.S. attor- ated the extradition of a vital

i ¥ . A ney, initially resisted the ‘“Chilean ness, Michael Townley, an Amer
connection” in the murder when it expatriate and erstwhile agen

y / C rOI y was -on him by Letelier’s DINA, Chile’s notorious secret

I A ; A A widow, Isabel, and Michael Moffitt, lice. He persisted. His most re
the husband of Romni. At one point, visit, the Pinochet press prote:

rights advocate. - junta seized power, with CIA help, in

Jimmy Carter called home our 1974. - ' .
ambassador tq Chile. He improved  Further, the Staié Department an-
his most decisive diplomatic act by nounced that it is:reconsidering all

announcing that he would halt a skip- military aid, which-is still being sent - : ' - : - ¥ the FBI leaked the contents of Leteli- was “unnecessary and officious.™
ment of bombs destined for the ruling  despite a congressional embargo be- -~ Pinochet has reacted with furious - Chile was made something of a pet er's briefcase which purported to  He held the final S;:;'e-recall ne

unta, & cargo that & San Francigco. cause it is “‘in the'pipeline,” to coun- charges that Carter and the Justice 'l? nmt- economists Milton show .he was a Castro agent. When ations with Deputy Secretary.of §
-,hidmremen's local had refused to tries with bad records. : Department lawyers who pressed the iedman. &% former -Isabel Letelier told a U.‘N. Human Warren Christopher. The Chile
. as a matter of conscience. - No human rights .advocate could Letelier investigation are “members T Secretary m Simon,  Rights Commission that Justice had and American liberals, think he

The immediate grounds for the ask for more. Lagt.week, Carter in a. of a Communist conspiracy.” But he who of -# model " Santiago wnder icion, Attorney brought the Justice Departmen
call of George Landau from Santiago speech before the Organization of knows that the military is restive at capitalist na But im tiohina General Griffin denied it. The finesthour. . g
~was to serve notice on Chile’s dicta- American States;' warned that he the prospect of facing new world con- murder on'a Washington street is Chilean Solidarity Movement, a tight When Pinochet came to Wast
tor, Gen. Augusto Pinochet, that he - would “continue to demonstrate that demnation for exported political something that the staunchest Tory network, and practiced in the uses of ton to participate in the Pan
can’t get away with murder — not on there are costs to the flagrant disre- assassination. - T cannot couptenance, .amd Pinochet public opinioa from its democratic Canal Treaty signing, he saic
a~Washington street, dycem ﬁrd of international standards.” o - cannot expect any outcry from his tradition, complained that Bell was when asked about his involveme:
leader of the junta, the De- e OAS, which was still meeting AS LONG AS A dictator géts one patrons in U.S. banks and corpora- dragging his feet. - the Letelier murder — “I woul
partment inyestigators decided, was when the recall was announced, was - dime or ome gun from the United tions. ) : . ] have anything to do with anyt
ing evidence in the assassi- startled by his . romd)t follow-up. . States and has an American ambass- - - .- - like that.”
sation of Letelier, the Chi- Several delegates told U.S. represen- sador on the scene, he is in some kind .~ The hero of this astonishing state ; PROPPER, LOOKING neither to Now Jimmy Carter officially d
lean exile leader, who died in the tatives they were not surprised. They of shape at home. Pinochet still gets of affairs is a Justice Deg;.mnent .right nor left, sa_yin& nothing, n’t believe him. And has stoj
orhb explosion of his car at Sheridan could, however, talk of nothing else. millions from six private U.S. banks, lawyer, 35-year-old Eugene b:;)r tracked the clues. With the attorney sending him bombs. He is in troi
on Sept. 21, 1976. The Chilean exile community is de- * who declined to explain themselves per, a- dogged, ‘“‘mon-ideclogical”’ gemeral’s backing, he moved into the And Jimmy Carter has become a
\ lirious. They see the beginning of the to Chairman Henry Reuss of the investigator who had no thought of gark corners of the Cuban exile com- the hope of deliverance for mil
CARTER POINTEDLY noted that end for the Pinochet regime, which House Banking Committee. Th:{ changing American foreign policy munity; he made several trips to of Latin Americans who daily
during his time in the United States, was, until Arﬁemina caught up with may now wish to answer Reuss’ let- when he took on the investigation of le. Pinochet, who claimed he had the fear of prison, torture, kid
the ambassador would participate in it in mass jai ipgs and kidnappings, ter of two months ago — or even the death of Letelier and his com n_othm(stohjde. went through the mo- ping or death from the like:
a thorough review of the human the most brutalin Latin America. reconsider their loan policies. ion in the bombed car, Ronai tions of cooperation. Propper negoti- Augusto Pinochet. . ~
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Continued From A-1

In another application of di%lo-
matic pressure on Chile, State De-
partment spokesman John Trattner
announced yesterday that the United
States will delay a shipment of bomb
fins to Chile until it has completed a
review of human rights under the
military regime. California long-
shoremen had refused to load the fins
for shipment in protest against
Chile’s rights policy.

CHILE HAS ABOUT $60 million of
military equipment on order ar-
ranged before Congress imposed the
cutoff in 1976 as a means of register-
ing its indignation at the alleged
violations of human rights in Chile.

Chile’'s president, Gen. Augusto .
Pinochet, and his chief military as--

sistants have adamantly fought
extradition of Chilean military men
to the United States.

Recall of the ambassador could be
followed by a break in diplomatic
relations if Chile continues to impose
obstacles to the investigation being
carried out&y Assistant U.S. Attor-
ne¥ Eugene M. Propper and the FBI.,

he State and Justice departments
appear determined to back Propper
in his investigation of the murder of
Letelier and his colleague, Ronni K.
Moffitt, on Sept. 21, 1976.

The best outcome American offi-
cials say they can hope for realisti-
cally is that the Chilean government
will put the three officers on trial
under Chilean iaws while Propper
does the same in federal court here
with other suspects.

The three officers suspected of tak-
ing part in the conspiracy are Gen.
Manue} Contreras Sepulveda, retired
former thief of the DINA secret po-
lice and\pnce the inseparable com-

anion of Pinochet; Lt. Col. Pedro
spinoza, former DINA operations
chief; and Capt. Armando Fernandez
Larios, who is accused of tracking
Letelier in Bethesda and Washihgton

for several days before the bomb was .

t under the driver’s geat of the Le-

lier car.

‘The recall of Landau was an-
nounced at the State Department’s
noon briefing yesterday by Trattner,
who said:

-“AMBASSADOR LANDAU. s
being recalled from Santiago for con-
sultations with officials of the State
and Justice departments concerning
the Letelier-Moffitt assassination
investigation. The Chilean author-
ities have not been forthcoming on
important requests by the Justice
Department which have been pend-
ing for some time. The ambassador’s
presence in the U.S. will algo give us
an opportunity to review the current
state of human rights conditions in
Chile and related issues."

Chile’s new foreign minister, Her-
nan Cubillos, attending a meeting at
the Organization of American States
here, sought to minimize the signifi-
cance of the action. He even said the
recall might be useful in that it will
{Jermlt Landau ‘‘to explain in detail
he information which we have been
making available to him lately.”
Cubillos did not elaborate.

Propper declined to say what re-
quests the Chilean government was
not honoring. However, from the
wording of the statement, it is possi-
ble that the Chileans have failed to
respond to all the questions put forth
by Propper in the so-called letteis
rogatory sent to the Chilean Supreme
Court several months ago by Chiel
U.S. District Judge William Bryant.

THERE 18 ALSO speculation that
Propper mai,' have asked Chilean
of‘;iclals to let him question Con-

. ment since there is no more

‘ley is coo

treras, Espinoza and Fernandez gnd
been turned down.

The decision to recall Landau
reached after two meetings this w
between Pms})er and Deputy Secr®
tary of State Warren Christopher.

e U.S. action represents one of
the few forms of pressure the United
States has with the Chilean govern-
ilitary

rogram for Chile and econothic aid
1s minimal. Chile has ample reason
for wanting very badly to retain U.S,
{riendship since it is'in more or less
continual confrontation with three
hostile neighbors, Peru, Bolivia and
Argentina.
he diplomatic maneuver comes
at a time when Propper and the FBI
have under arrest four suspects in
the murder and as a nationwide man-
hunt continues for two other sus-

pects.
The key figure is an American,
Michael V. Townley, 36, an electron-

ics expert who espoused rightist
causes and worked for DINA. The
expatriate Townley was expelled b{
the Chileans into the custody of FB
agents and he has been charged with
one felony count of conspiracy to
murder a foreign diplomat.

ACCORDING TO THE FBI, Town-

ratinﬁ with the investiga-

tion and has acknowledged that he

placed the explosive charge in Leteli-
er’s auto.

The government also charges that
Townley and Fernandez, one of the
Chilean army officiers, as DINA
afents, conspired with a terrorist cell
of anti-Castro Cubans to kill the left-
ist Chilean politician. .

Under arrest on conspiracy
charges are Alvin Ross Diaz and two
brothers, Guillermo and Ignacio
Novo. The Cuban fugitives are Virgi-
}iog’?z ang J os: Diogisio Suarez, who
s believed to have detonated the re-
mote control bomb ths.:*ﬂqug Le-
telier and Moffitt at Sheridan Circle.




% By Lewis H. Divguid
: Weskington Post Baff Writer
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‘Chilean Forelgn Minister Hernan

Cylifilos charged yesterday that the
US-Justice Department is applying
ble pressure on his country
failing to live up to an agree-
or full cooperation in the inves-
fii)n of the assassination of former
Chilehn ambassador Oriando Letelier.

X'S. handling of the eage, he said,

Americans’

gime that they don’t like ™
Cubillos, here for the General: As
sembly of the Organization of Amer-

icaii.States, called yesterday’s recall
" Townley,
who worked for Chile's seeret police -

“owtof all proportion. I find it strange
M(bey have taken a diplomatie re-

,

acmntowh:thnmyacdmiml
case.”

help, because maybe he can expuln to

people here the Chilean position—as I

would have done if I had the chance.”

Cubillos, who two months ago be-
came the first civilian foreign minis-

ter since the military coup of 1978, in- .
_dicated that U.S. tactics could eompli-

raises the quemnofwhethert.hoﬁute extradition of any Chileans .

‘is seeing justice -
dome~or brlngingdm a military re-

charzedmthclﬂlnurderotutn-

“ler.

Imist.inz that Chﬂe malnt.lim “l

" will to collaborate in the investiga-

. tion,” he said the proof of this “is the

fact that we handed over” Michael
the American expatriate

Hnwever.hendded “xmuwm .

' andis accused here of playin; a ma

jor role in Letelier’s death.

Chile strained its own judiclial proe-
ess {0 accommodate U.S. demands at
that time, he said. “We told the
United States we wanted reciprocity

- [of cooperation] in the case. That has
not been forthcoming. We are being -
‘pressured on several aspects of the
case without any respect for our legal

proceedings.”

He pointed out that Chile {nitisted

its own investigation on the basis of
official passports with false names is-
sued to Townley and a Chilean army

officer for a trip io the United States -

prior to Letelier’s death.
Cubillos also stated that, eoatriry

" to published accounts, an amnesty de-
creed by the Chilean junta in April

“hilean Calls U.S. Move ‘Out of All Pmportwn

does not apply to pe.rlom who mlght
eventuslly be charged in the Letelier

“We felt that somebody could be in-
volved and we didn’'t want to cover it

up,” he said.
“The Department of Ju does
not trust us or .our legal sy ” he

added .
Cubﬂlos is a former exocuﬂve of a

Santisgo conglomerate and was: in-
strumental in operation of its El Mer-

" eurio newspaper when it was a princi-

pal opposition voice to the late prni—
dent Salvador Allende.

At that time, according to a US,

Senate committee investigation, the
Central Intelligence Agency funneled
$1.7 miilion to the newspaper. .

R
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By Jack Anderson and Les Whittes

WASHINGTON - Some of the world's
most sinister secret police are operating in
the United Staes with the b| of the
Central Intelligence Agency. There is
evidence that foreign ts have
arranged murders, committed burglaries,
attempted kidnaping and terrorized
political opponents in violation of U.S. laws.

In past columns, we have reported that
the CIA has a secret understanding with
such notorious foreign intefl cles
as Chile’s DINA, Iran's SAVAK South
Korea's KCIA. Not only does the CIA work
closely with these police agencies; the
agents operate within one another's
countries by mutual consent,

Now the Senate Foreign Relations
Committee has quietly started an investiga-
tion into the activities of foreign in-
telligence agencies in the United States.
The committee is particularly curious
about the CIA's role in these activities.

On the House side, Rep. Donaid Fraser,
D.-Minn., has also asked the CIA to divulge
the details of its reciprocal arrangements
with foreign intelligence agencies. CIA
has refused to cooperate.

As far back as Juiy 17, 1875, we
published charges that the KCIA had
terrorized Korean exiles, had set up lilegal
front groups to manipulate U.S. public opi-
nion and had tried to buy off U.S. congress-
men. We also cited documents irom
SAVAK'’s files as evidence that the Iranian
secret police were intimidating opponents
of the shah in this country. The documents
included detailed instructions om how to
burglarize homes and offices.

In our reports on the Chilean police, we
warned on Nov. 16, 1975: “‘There is reason
to believe that DINA has hired thugs to
track down and and assassinate prominent
exiles." Ten months later, Chilean exile
leader Orlando Letelier was blown up in his
car on Washington's embassy row.
Investigators are now convinced that DINA

Foreign spies get
CIA cooperation

- DINA's own flles. It is a memo, dated Sept.

16, 1975, from DINA chief Manuel
Contreras Sepulveda to Chilean President
Augusto Pinochet.

The memo requests “‘an additional
allotment of $600,000 for the (DINA)
budget.” Among four reasons for the extra
money, this was the most fascinating: *Ad-
ditional expenses for the neutralizing of the
principal adversaries of the government
junta in the exterior, especially in Mexico,
Argentina, Costa Rica, the United States,
France and Italy.”

We can only speculate of course, what
the phrase ‘‘neutralizing of the principal
adversaries'’ means. But the memo was
followed by an assassination attempt
against Chilean dissident Bernardo
Leighton on the streets of Rome. Then
Leteller was dynamited to death on the
streets of Washington,

The FBI also learned of murder plots
against two other Chilean exiles. Gabriel
Valdes and Rodomiro Tomic, who were
given protection.

We hand-delivered a copy of the DINA
memo to the Chilean embassy in
Washington and waited a week while em-
bassy officials examined it. A spokesman
then denounced the documeat as

‘“‘completely false.” He sald Contreras’.

signature was a '‘forgery.”” The fact that
the memo was not written on a DINA let-
terhead, the spokesman asserted, was ad-
ditional proof that the document was a
fabrication. :

The memo was delivered to us by
sources who have been reliable in the past.
For three weeks, we painstakingly checked
it with a number of sources including U.S.
officlals. They ali agreed it not only ap-
peared genuine but was consistent with
their own intelligence information.

A DINA defector now in asylum in the
Italian embassy in Santiago, according to
competent sources has confirmed the
authenticity of the memo. We have also had
access to other DINA documents, which the
Chilean government has acknowledged are
authentic. These resemble the difputed.
document in every detail. Many, incidexntal-

hired Cuban killers to murder Letelier. ‘

“As additional evidence, we have now .

\ tained an explosive document from ly, are not written on DINA letterhea . .
\ pr
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ding- to Carlos Rafael Ro-
guez, Cuba's vice president
1 a member of the political
eau of the Cuban Commu-

Cuba's ‘Kissinger’

HAVANA — Some African
intries have asked Cuba to
prepared to defend coun-
s other than Angola in the

- country which has been at-
tracked by white-ruled Rhode-
sia and which Cuba might
have to help defend. The
Cuban leader insisted, how-
ever, that the Cuban troops
now in Angola are there “only
for the purpose of defending:

part of Alrica, ac-

\ .Angola . . . we are not en-
tparty. ) gaged, through Angola, to par-
In a lengthy interview, Ro- ticipate in any other African
guez specifically mentioned  affairs.”

zambique as an African He said that any action to
o

| adopt a friendyer posture t0- :

rd Cuba when Cuba is
‘t’:';ing to export communism
to Africa as well as '
Latin America, the long-txmt?
Marxist )
«We are Communist.

)

ax
.an

er-

-
to
ral

his

the rest of

er res :
oo Itis the;
st desire, not only o
a}l(ri:f (Castro) but the enor-
ous majority of our citizens,
to have communism,all over
the world. It is @ fact . . . that
does not mean that we believe
that communism may
established through fhe em-
ploy of armies or of subversive
groups sent {from one country
to the other.”

Cuba is certain, Rodriguez
said, that.communism will be
established in Africa and Latin
America, but “only throu
the emergence of revolution-
ary forces among people who
will fight for . . . socialism in
their own way and by the
own means. We are willing to
give them solidarity. ‘wh;'ch
does not imply that solidarity .
" will be converted into fueling ;
revolutionary groups. or into
e prsene f G Ao
forces in any 0 S.

The Cuban leader added:
“We don't bel'\e\gea th;aﬂt’_fthe
American people have 1o lear
anything from Cuba, because
we are a very little country . .
we don't menace anybody. We
are here establishing our own
sort of government, our own
type state, our own type of so-
cial relations. 1 believe. that it
is the duty of the American
government — whoever may
be Its President — 10 respect
not only in Cuba but in other
countries the desire and the
will of their geude to do as
they please.” -~

defend Mozambique or ‘any
" country- other than Angola
would require a separate deci-
, 5i6n by the Cuban government
and its ruling Communist
party. He did not rule out such
a decision, howéver, insisting
that Cuba’s involvement in
Angola is justified both by the
fact that Cuba is-an ‘“‘Afro-
Latin American country” and
that it sent troops to Angola at

X

_ ‘Angolan government.
Rodriguez, who long has
{been the dominant architect of
Cuban foreign policy and who
lagt week was elected a vice
president of - both the new
council of state and the coun-
cil of ministers, made these re-
marks while asserting that the
people of the United States
have nothing to fear from
Cuba and that Cuba is eager to

1

discusses a de‘tente with U.S

relations
States.
Rafael Rodriguez
that the United{States
economic embgrgo of
and he said thht the
States has a ‘‘d#ty to h:
ty” to crack down on
exiles whom he called
sters” who sabotage

with the °

ajrliners and perpetrate
violence against Cuba.

the request of the “legitimate” }

M o W aat wageds 8 o1 e

proceed toward mormalizing ‘Asked why the US.

By JACK ANDERSON:

the U.S., Rodrigug?Z gave three
reasons. First, hé said. it's ab-
surb that countries living next
door to each other should hold
policies of mutual hostility
when thelr peoples are not en-
ged in any conflict; second,
he said, the U.S has the most
advanced technology ,in the

orld in certain areas of mod-

rn industry, and Cuba wants
access to that téchnology
through normal means; third,
he said, Cuba wishes to restore
the important trade relations /
she had with the United States
prior to 1960.

/

Cuba’s foreign policyméker
said he did not believe the
Cuban involvement in Angola

¥ [was the major reason thaet the
Ford Administration halted
ot | rapprochement with Cuba. He
blamed it on Mr. Ford's fear
at Rotuild Reagan would use
sig the issue to win the Republican
ng nomination. Rodriguez said
ﬁss now believes it ‘‘entirely possi-
ag Dle for both countries to. ne-
cful gotiate and to establish normal
ee relations,. to have cultural
haé communication, and have \
re. Mmany of the forms of relations
not Which are normal between L
nk. Communist and . non-Commu-
Ay nist countries in Europe and
‘iiy‘ Asia and are not normal now
he InLatin America.”
ck, - ' ‘/
ous SKETCALS
8y Ben Burroughs |
ans - '
e ‘
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By Craig Herndon—The Washingion Post

Letelier’s car after the explosion which killed the former Chilean ambassador and an associate, Ronni K. Moffitt, at Sheridan Circle.

LETELIER, From Al

blasting caps brought to the U.S.
from Chile by American-born DINA
agent Michael Vernon Townley, had
been found in an apartment once
occupied by a man identified as Ross
in Union City. Townley, named as the
agent who actually placed the bomb,
has positively identified the “matches”
as being among the same ones he
brought from Chile because of the
manner in which he modified them,
the agent added.

Although yesterday’s hearing fo-
cused on ;{oss's role in the alleged
conspiracy, it provided more informa-
tion than has previously been made
publie about the specific roles of the
five other persons charged so far.

1t did not include any detailed testi-
mony on the manner in which DENA
allegedly ordered the plot, nor dis-
close in any detail what Chileaq gov-
ernment officials could. be eriminally
culpable. Government sources have
said in the past that at least three
Chilean government officials could
be charged in the alleged plot, inelud-
ing the now-ousted head of DINA,
Gen. Manuel Contreras Sepulveda.

The only Chilean discussed at yes-
terday’s hearing was Capt. Armando
_Fernandez Larios, who has previously
been identified as the second-DINA
agent who came to the US. as part
of the alleged DINA mission to mur-
der Letelier, The US. cannot attempt

Coast Guard Slow Sometimes
On Spills, GAO Reports

¢ Assoclated Press

The Coast Guard often has been
slow to contain and clean up oil spills,
the General Accounting Office said in
a report yesterday.

A study of 137 spills along the At-
lantic and Gulf coasts showed that in

VIRGILIO PAZ

to extradite Larios, a Chilean citizen,
until formal charges are filed.
Cornick, under questioning by As-
sistant U.S. Attorney Eugene M. Prop-
per of the major crimes division in
Washington, said the joint FBI-U.S.
attorney’s office investigation “re-
vealed that two representatives of
DINA traveled to the US. to arrange
and facilitate the assassination of Or-
lando Letelier,” and that they spe-
cifically were “on assignment for
DINA to kill” the former ambassador.
As developed under the question-

ing by Propper and Ross defense at-
torney Paul Goldberger, Cornick gave

tha follnwing sbeanalas o1 -

MICHAEL TOWNLEY

the alleged international “hit” carried
out by DINA in Washington:
Townley, who is cooperating with

U.S. investigators and has agreed to

plead guilty to one count of conspir-
ing to murder Letelier, arrived at
John F. Kennedy Intermational Air-
port in New York on Sept. 9, 1976.
There he was met by Fernandez, who
had been following Letelier agound
for 10 days to ascertain his work and
driving habits.

Townley then contacted Virgilio Paz

Romero (who has been charged in the
case and is a fugitive), whom he knew
previously —apparently when Townley

JOSE SUAREZ
« » « alleged participants in plot to assassinate former Chilean ambassador to Washington.

who now lives in New Jersey, and
Townley met in the Newark area and
the DINA agent asked to be put in
contact with ether members of the
New Jersey-based Cuban Nationalist
Movement, a militant Cuban exile
group.

Townley was put in touch with Guil-
lermo Novo Sampol and Jose Dionisio
Saurex Esquivel (also a fugitive now
and “told them the nature of his

mission and requested their assist-
ance,” Cornick said.

A group meeeting was set up on
Sept. 12 with other leaders of the
CNM at the Chatean Renaissance

Townley again discussed the Teteller
murder plot and his need for as-
sistance.

Attending the group meeting, the
FBI agent said, were Novo, Suarez,

Paz, Ross and a Newark physician, Dr.
Juan B. Pulido. Pulido has not been
charged in the investigtaion,

Within the next day or so, Paz
called Townley and said the group
had agreed to cooperate in the plot.
(Cornick denied yesterday that any
money was involved in the assassin-
ation plot and indicated the Cubans
received nothing tangible for their
cooperation with the DINA plot.)

Suarez and Novo got a plastic bag
full of TNT in the Newark area and
gave it to Townley, and he and Paz
drove with the explosives to Washing-
ton in Paz’s Volvo automobile on the
evening of Sept. 15.

In Washington, Townley and Paz
confirmed aspects of the surveillance
conducted by Fernandez and bought
some other parts used in the bomb,
Cornick continued.

Suarez joined the two men in Wash-
ington on Saturday, Sept. 18, and
they constructed the bomb. Around
midpight that night or early Sunday
morning Townley placed the bomb
atop the Iframe of Letelier's blue
Chevelle so that its blast would be
aimed directly at the driver, and Paz
and Suarez assisted him.

After placing the bomb, Townley
called Guillermo Novo in New Jersey
and then flew back to the Newark
area. In Newark on Sunday morning,
he was met at the airport by Ross
and told Ross about what had occur-
red in Washington, Cornick said.

Ross drove Townley to Novo's apart-
ment and Townley again repeated the
details of what had occurred in Wash-
ington, the agent testified.

The only person of the group who
remained in Washington was Suarez,
Cornick testified, and investigators

haliarra that ha cadivvadad ot 2

By Ann Stevens for The Washingtox
Orlando Letelier was outspoken critic of Chine’s military government.

Letelier’s Car Carried Bomb for 3 Days, FBI Agent Says

dan Circle NW. The bomb explo:
about 100 feet from the Chilean &
bassador’s residence, but there is
indication that the Chilean €mba:
here was aware of or involved in t
alleged murder plot.

Another FBI agent, Richard G. S
oral, testified about the discovery
the “electric matches” in an apa
ment that had been rented in an :
sumed name by a person identified
court yesterday as Ross. ~

Sikoral said he had interview:
Ross last fall in connection with oth.
unrelated bombings, and that at tl
time Ross said he was opening a bus
ness at a Union City, N.J., addres

Sikoral said he went to the Unic
City address about four months ago 1
question Ross again and found th;
an apartment there had heen rente
by a Carlos Garcia but was now v
cant. The superintendent of the buil
ing identified a picture of Ross i
Garecia, Sikoral added.

On March 8, Sikoral said, the buil
ing superintendent called the FBI 1
report he had found what appeare
to be bombing material in a cubb
hole in the apartment, which he w:
converting to his own private offic

The FBI agent described the m
terial as *electric matches” Als
found in the apartment were th
three letters to Chilean officials an
a small bottle of potassium perma
ganate, a “heat intensifylng” chem
cal, the agent added under questio;
ing by Assistant U.S. Attorney ']
Lawrence Barcella Jr.

Cornick then took the stand agah
and said Townley had positively ider
tiffed the electric matches found i
the Unjon City apartment as being
among the 10 he had brought int
the U.S. from Chile. Townley said h
had modified all of the electric matche
in a special and easily identifiable ma
ner, that one had been used in the T ot



were when Pinochet came to
m&m 1773 and Townley be-

an agent ¢’ DINA, the Chilean

oy police agency,

- Yy reportedly viewed his
DINA role a5 that of a seldier, a man
who followed orders. He is sald to
e worked at high levels—often

sffuir, Townley was, ﬂln‘;;ﬁ" .
count, directly lnvolvz in tthone;:
cution of erimes and has decided to
testity againet his close assoclates,
And, as in Watergate, Townley could,
as’ did Dean, play a eentrai-*mlt'lgl
questioning the activities of a coun.
try's highest government officials,

2.

! , . t; ‘Uﬁh tIaTﬂi? COuntry progwee Tor

questioning two men who had trav-
eled to the United States on official
Chilean passports and had met with
Cuban suspects in the plot.

Chile denied the existence-of the
two men; but after The Washington
Star obtained and published the pho-
tographs of the men they were
quickly identified as DINA agents
Townley and Fernandes, *

The United States was able to pres-
sure Chile into turning Townley—an
American citizen who grew up in
Chile wirile his father headed a U.S,
auto firm there—over to them. Once
he arrived in the United States, Town.
ley agreed to plead guilty to one count
of conspiracy to murder Letelier. He
spent day after day telling FBI agents
and prosecutors the additional detalls
they needed to charge othgrs in the
plot. -.

According to the indictment re-
turned yesterday, the plot began in
July 1876 when DINA chief Contreras

asked the Paraguayan military intelli- .

gence service director to authorize the

U.3. Extr a’di?ion""Réquest, |
Expected to Face Hurdles ™

SANTIAGO, Chile (AP} — While
the Foreign® Ministry -was presepted
with a.U.8, diplomatic.note yesterday
asking the arrest of Chile's former se-
curity police ‘chief and .tow other
agents on - murder charges, expert ob-
serrvers felt chances are slight that
the men will be extraadicted :as re-
quested.

They believe it possible, however,
that a trial will be held here for re-

tired Brig. Gen. Juan Manuel Contr

eras Sepulveda, Col. Pedro Espinosa
Bravo and Capt. Armando Fernande:z
Larios. .
Informed Sources: said For-
eign Minister Hernan Cubillos re-
ceived the U.S. note from Charles
Grover, deputy chief of mission. Am-

bassador George Landau is traveling

outside Santiago.
The Chileans were included fer mu
der yesterday by a Washington grand

»

jury in conneetion with the 1976 bomb

killings there of exiled Chilean Social-
ist Orlando Letelier and an American
co-worker.

The 1902 extradition treaty between
Chile ‘and the United States provides
that each country will deliver persons

charged with crimes n the other coun- -

try, but it says neighter country is
bound to hand over its own citizens.

Under a later Pan American Con-
vention of 1933, Chile obligated itself
to try its own citizens if it does not
extradite them and if the only reason
for not“extraditing is that they are
Chilean citizens.

The government of President Au-
gusto Pinochet ignored requests by
The Assocated Press during the past

- month for the chance to discuss Chi.
lean extradition customs and proce-
dures with a court or government ex-
pert. '

Other sources said the procedure

THEY WILH \NUBITINIY IT0Yw wacve ~ e ——

and “requested their assistance” in
his DINA orders to assassinate Lete-
lier. .

Sept. 13 ~— Townley outlined the
Letelier murder plot to members of
the governing council of the CNM
during a meeting at the Chateau Ren-"
aissance mote] in North Bergen, N.J.
Alvin Ross Dikt] another CNM leader,
joined the others at this meeting.

Sept. 18 — Guillermo Novo and
Suarez gave Townley and Paz explo-
sives and a remote-control detonating
device. - i R

Sept. 16 — Paz and Townley drove
to the District and checked into a Hol-
iday Inn in Northeast Washington.

Sept. 17 — Additional wires and

other elements of a bomb were put-
chased by Paz and Townley at a Sears
Roebuck and Co. store in Northesst
Washington. i

Sept. 18 — Novo, Suarez and Ross
got additional bomb parts in New Je.
sey, and Suarez drove to the
of Columbia to join Paz and Townley.
Suarez registered at the Best Western

would be somewhat like this: after ar-
rest, the extradition request will make
its way to the Chilean supreme
court, which is then responsible for
condutimg hesrings to determine the
validity in Chilean jurisprudence of
evidence made available by the
United States,

If the court finds validity in the
cliarges; then ‘Contreras, espinosa and
Fernandez must either be extradited
for trial in the United States or be
brought to ttfal here. A Chilean irives-
tigation is already underway.

Apparently no special treatment ig
acccorded military officers under the
two extradition agreements,

It is understood that Chile gener.
ally chooses not to extradite its own
citizens, but diplomatic sources said

‘they believe it was done in at least

one previous case,

A member of the four-man ruling
military junta other than Pinochet re-
cently told a journalist he felt certain
Chile wouid not hand Contreras over
to the United States.

A diplomatic 'fource said the only
reason he could see why Chile might
agree to extradition was that the rest
of the world would not belteve the
three were getting an unbiaged trial
here.

The Chilean court system has by
tradition been independent and re-
spected. The junta has no decrees lim-
iting the counrt's independence as
such, but anti-government lawyers
claim the court is practicing a form of
self-restrictipn.

The supreme court, for example,
was hesitant to investigate accusatons

-against the Contrerasrun DINA, A

former court president has . com-
plained that dina agents blocked
whatever attempts were made to in-
vestigate, .
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nated by Suarez, the only member of
the assassination téam remsining in
Washington. Later that day, Townley
called Ignacio Novo in Florida and
Novo told him that “Something had
happened in the District of Colum-
bia.” Novo'and Townley met.in Flo-

rida, where Novo was briefed on the -
- mission. . :

Sept. "23—Townley flew back "to
Chile from Florida.

Sept. 24—“Within the Republic of
Chile, Michael Townley. advised Pedro
Espinoza that the DINA mission to as-

sassinate Orlando Letelier had been

carried out.” the indictment states.
The indictment specifically charges

“the three Chileans and four of the Cu-

bans—all but Ignacio Nevo—with con-
spiracy to murder Letelier and the
mtrder of Letelier under federal stat-
utes, murder of Letelier under local
statutes, murder of Moffitt under

. .. Jocal statutes, and u:jge: by _use of
. dplosives uider tezr -tﬁmw Each
couint carvies a possible life sentence.

Guillermo Novo and Ignacio Novo -

o

are charged with two counts each of

lying to a grand jury, and Ignacio
Novo was charged with failing to tell -
law enforcement authorities about the
erime : aftér it occurred—a federal




